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General Revenue Bonds, 2017 Series A
Year
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

Principal
Amount
$ 2,685,000
2,765,000
2,905,000
3,045,000
2,610,000
1,025,000

Interest
Rate
5.00%
5.00
5.00
5.00
2.00
4.00

Yield
0.93%
1.12
1.35
1.53
1.77
1.98

CUSIP†
Number
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63968AT47
63968AT54
63968AT62

Year
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

Principal
Amount
$ 1,070,000
1,105,000
1,160,000
1,205,000
1,235,000

Interest
Rate
4.00%
5.00
3.00
3.00
5.00

Yield
2.17%
2.36
2.50
2.60
2.69*

CUSIP†
Number
63968AT70
63968AT88
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63968AU29
63968AU37

Yield
2.17%
2.36
2.50
2.60
2.69*

CUSIP†
Number
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63968AV36
63968AV44
63968AV51
63968AV69
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2020
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2022
2023

*
†
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Amount
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5.00%
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00

Yield
0.93%
1.12
1.35
1.53
1.77
1.98
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Number
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63968AU94

Year
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

Principal
Amount
$ 5,180,000
5,450,000
5,725,000
6,000,000
6,305,000

Interest
Rate
5.00%
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00

Priced to the first call date of January 1, 2027.
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included for the convenience of the 2017 Series A/B Bondowners only. The District shall not be responsible for the selection
of CUSIP numbers, nor is any representation made as to their correctness on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds or as indicated
herein.
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No dealer, salesman, or any other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any
representations, other than those contained in this Official Statement, in connection with the offering contained
herein, and, if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon as having been
authorized by the District or the Underwriters. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell, or a
solicitation of an offer to buy, any securities other than the securities offered hereby, or an offer to sell or
solicitation of an order to buy the securities offered hereby to any person in any jurisdiction where such offer or
solicitation of such offer would be unlawful. The delivery of this Official Statement at any time does not imply that
information herein is correct as of any time subsequent to its date.
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE
2017 SERIES A/B BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE
OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.
This Official Statement contains statements which, to the extent they are not recitations of historical fact,
constitute “forward-looking statements.” In this respect, the words “estimate,” “project,” “anticipate,” “expect,”
“intend,” “believe,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. A number of
important factors affecting the District’s business and financial results could cause actual results to differ from
those stated in the forward-looking statements.
The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The
Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, their
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this
transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.
__________
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INTRODUCTION
The purpose of this Official Statement, including the cover page, the inside cover page, and the appendices
hereto, is to set forth certain information concerning Nebraska Public Power District (the “District”), its System
(hereinafter described), its General Revenue Bonds (the “General Bonds”) issued pursuant to the hereinafter defined
General Resolution, and particularly its $20,810,000 General Revenue Bonds, 2017 Series A (the “2017 Series A Bonds”)
and $65,180,000 General Revenue Bonds 2017 Series B (the “2017 Series B Bonds” and, together with the 2017 Series A
Bonds, the “2017 Series A/B Bonds”).
This introduction is not a summary of this Official Statement. It is only a brief description of, and guide to, and is
qualified by the information contained in, the entire Official Statement, including the front cover page and inside cover
page and the Appendices hereto, and the documents summarized or described herein. A full review should be made of the
entire Official Statement. The offering of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the
entire Official Statement.
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are to be issued pursuant to Chapter 70, Article 6, Revised Statutes of the State of
Nebraska, as amended (the “Act”), and the General Revenue Bond Resolution of the District adopted June 4, 1998, as
supplemented by a supplemental resolution authorizing the 2017 Series A/B Bonds (said Resolution, as heretofore
supplemented and as so supplemented, the “General Resolution”). The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.,
is the Trustee (the “Trustee”) under the General Resolution.

The District
The District is a public corporation and political subdivision of the State of Nebraska. See “THE DISTRICT.”

Authority of Issuance
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are authorized to be issued pursuant to the Act, and are being issued and secured
under the General Resolution.

Purposes of Issuance
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are being issued for the purpose of refunding certain of the District’s outstanding
General Bonds and paying costs of issuance. See “PLAN OF REFUNDING AND APPLICATION OF THE
2017 SERIES A/B BOND PROCEEDS.”
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Terms of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds
Payments
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds will bear interest payable at the rates shown on the inside cover page hereof,
semiannually on January 1 and July 1 of each year commencing on July 1, 2017, to be computed on the basis of a 360-day
year of twelve 30-day months. Principal of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds is payable in the amounts and on the dates as
shown on the inside cover page hereof. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE 2017 SERIES A/B BONDS—General.” The
Trustee will serve as Paying Agent for the 2017 Series A/B Bonds.
Denominations
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are to be issued in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.
Redemption
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are subject to redemption as described herein. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE
2017 SERIES A/B BONDS.”
Book-Entry-Only System
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) is acting as securities depository for the
2017 Series A/B Bonds through its nominee, Cede & Co., to which principal and interest payments on the 2017 Series A/B
Bonds are to be made. One or more fully registered bonds in denominations in the aggregate equal to the principal amount
per maturity of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds will be registered in the name of Cede & Co. Individual purchases will be
made in book-entry-only form and purchasers of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds will not receive physical delivery of bond
certificates, all as more fully described herein. Upon receipt of payments of principal and interest, DTC is to remit such
payments to the DTC Participants (as hereinafter defined) for subsequent disbursement to the beneficial owners of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds. For a more complete description of the book-entry-only system, see “DESCRIPTION OF THE
2017 SERIES A/B BONDS—Book-Entry-Only System.”

Security and Sources of Payment
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are special obligations of the District payable solely from the hereinafter defined
Pledged Property. See “SECURITY FOR THE GENERAL BONDS.”

Availability of Continuing Disclosure
The District has agreed to provide continuing disclosure for the benefit of the owners of the 2017 Series A/B
Bonds, during the period the 2017 Series A/B Bonds are outstanding, by filing certain annual and periodic information
with the Electronic Municipal Market Access System (“EMMA”) of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking
Board (“MSRB”), as described herein under “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING FOR THE
2017 SERIES A/B BONDS.”

Additional Information
The descriptions of constitutional provisions, statutes, the 2017 Series A/B Bonds and the General Resolution,
and other documents contained herein do not purport to be definitive or comprehensive, and all references thereto are
qualified in their entirety by reference to the actual laws and documents.
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THE DISTRICT
General
Nebraska Public Power District is a public corporation and political subdivision of the State of Nebraska. Control
of the District and its operations is vested in a Board of Directors consisting of 11 members popularly elected from
districts comprising subdivisions of the District’s chartered territory.
The District’s chartered territory includes all or parts of 86 of the state’s 93 counties and more than
400 municipalities in the state. The right to vote for the District’s Board of Directors is generally limited to retail and
wholesale customers receiving more than 50 percent of their annual energy from the District.
The District operates an integrated electric utility system including facilities for generation, transmission, and
distribution of electric power and energy for sales at wholesale and retail. Management and operation of the District is
accomplished with a staff of approximately 1,960 employees. The District has the power, among other things, to acquire,
construct, and operate generating plants, transmission lines, substations, and distribution systems and to purchase,
generate, distribute, transmit, and sell electric energy for all purposes. There are no investor-owned utilities providing
retail electric service in Nebraska.
The District has no power of taxation, and no governmental authority has the power to levy or collect taxes to
pay, in whole or in part, any indebtedness or obligation of or incurred by the District or upon which the District may be
liable. Under the Act, the District has the right of eminent domain. The property of the District, in the opinion of its
General Counsel, is exempt under the State Constitution from taxation by the State and its subdivisions, but the District is
required by the State Constitution and the Act to make payments in lieu of taxes which are distributed to the State and
various governmental subdivisions.
Under the Act, the District has the power and is required to fix, establish, and collect adequate rates and other
charges for electrical energy and any and all commodities or services sold or furnished by it. Such rates and charges must
be fair, reasonable, and nondiscriminatory and adjusted in a fair and equitable manner to confer upon and distribute among
the users and consumers of such commodities and services the benefits of a successful and profitable operation and
conduct of the business of the District. In the opinion of the General Counsel to the District, the District’s electric rates are
not subject under present law to either State of Nebraska or federal regulation, except as modified by the Energy Policy
Act of 2005, which is detailed herein. For additional information concerning rates, see “CERTAIN FACTORS
AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY—Federal Power Act Requirements” and “RATES.”

Board of Directors
The members of the District’s Board of Directors, their titles, number of years on the Board, and expiration of
their terms of office are listed in the following table.
Number of Years
on Board

Name and Title
Kenneth Kunze, Chairman ........................................................
Gary G. Thompson, First Vice Chairman .................................
Thomas J. Hoff, Second Vice Chairman ....................................
Jerry L. Chlopek, Secretary .......................................................
Fred L. Christensen....................................................................
Melissa S. Freelend ...................................................................
Barry D. DeKay .........................................................................
Mary A. Harding .......................................................................
William C. Hoyt ........................................................................
William D. Johnson ...................................................................
Edward J. Schrock .....................................................................
*

Began term January 2017.
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8
24
6
8
4
*
2
14
*
*
10

Term Expires
2021
2023
2019
2021
2019
2023
2021
2021
2023
2023
2019

Executive Management and General Counsel
The District’s executive management staff and General Counsel are as follows:
PATRICK L. POPE, President & Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Pope was appointed President & Chief Executive
Officer in April 2011. Mr. Pope graduated from the University of Nebraska in 1979 with a bachelor’s degree in Electrical
Engineering. He also earned a master’s degree in Business Administration from the University of Nebraska in 1995. He
has also completed the Institute of Nuclear Power Operations (“INPO”) reactor technology course for utility executives at
the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He joined the District in December 1979 as an Electrical Engineer. He has also
held the positions of Distribution Planning Engineer, District Operations Superintendent, Regional Operations
Superintendent, Regional Manager, Energy Control Center Manager, Vice President—Transmission Services, Vice
President—Energy Delivery, and Vice President—Energy Supply. He was appointed a Vice President in November 1999,
and appointed Chief Operating Officer in January 2008.
TRACI L. BENDER, Vice President, Chief Financial Officer & Treasurer. Ms. Bender graduated from the
University of Nebraska in 1984 with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration with an emphasis in Accounting and
received a master’s degree in Business Administration—Finance & Accounting from Regis University in 2006. She has
also completed the INPO reactor technology course for utility executives at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
She joined the District in September 1990 as Technical Accounting Supervisor. Ms. Bender also has held the positions of
Rate Supervisor, District Manager, Finance and Accounting Manager, and Corporate Planning and Risk Manager. She was
appointed a Vice President in March 2006.
KENDALL B. CURRY, Vice President, Customer & Corporate Services. Mr. Curry graduated from the
University of Nebraska in 1983 with a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering. He also earned a master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Nebraska in 1990. Mr. Curry oversees the District’s customer services,
human resources, strategic management process, safety, business support services, account management, economic
development, contracts, renewables, and energy efficiency teams. Mr. Curry has been with the District for 20 years with
leadership positions in Energy Efficiency, Nuclear Engineering, Customer Care, Operations Services, and Safety.
Mr. Curry also has experience in engineering sales, consulting, and manufacturing. Mr. Curry is a registered Professional
Engineer and Certified Energy Manager. He was appointed a Vice President in August 2011.
KENNETH N. HIGGINBOTHAM, Vice President, Nuclear & Chief Nuclear Officer. Mr. Higginbotham
graduated from University of Maryland University College with a bachelor’s degree in Nuclear Science and Engineering
in 2000 and received a master’s degree in Management from the University of Maryland in 2005. He joined the Cooper
Nuclear Station management team in October 2012 as General Manager of Plant Operations, under the Support Services
agreement between the District and Entergy Nuclear Nebraska, LLC (“Entergy”). He has worked in the nuclear power
industry in numerous positions the past 25 years with Entergy at the company’s River Bend Station in Louisiana and at the
Grand Gulf Nuclear Station in Mississippi. A veteran of the United States Navy, he has worked various positions within
the United States Navy’s nuclear fleet. He was appointed a Vice President and Chief Nuclear Officer in January 2017.
While a part of the management of Cooper Nuclear Station, Mr. Higginbotham is still employed by Entergy.
THOMAS J. KENT, Vice President & Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Kent graduated from the University of
Nebraska with a bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering in 1985 and received a master’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of Nebraska in 2005. He has also completed the INPO reactor technology course for
utility executives at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He joined the District in May 1990 as Environmental
Qualification Coordinator at Cooper Nuclear Station. Mr. Kent also has held the positions of Retail District Manager,
Retail Regional Manager, Retail Customer Care Manager, Chief Information Officer, Corporate Planning and Risk
Manager, and Transmission and Distribution Manager. He also spent four years on active duty as a commissioned officer
in the United States Navy. He was appointed a Vice President in May 2011.
JOHN C. McCLURE, Vice President, Governmental Affairs & General Counsel. Mr. McClure graduated from
the University of Nebraska with a bachelor’s degree in Arts and Sciences in 1977 and a law degree in 1980. He has also
completed the INPO reactor technology course for utility executives at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. He
joined the District in October 1980 as a staff attorney and also has held various positions relating to strategic planning and
governmental affairs. He was appointed a Vice President in February 2003. Mr. McClure was appointed General Counsel
in December 2004.
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The System
The System consists of (i) each facility, plant, works, systems, building, structure, improvement, machinery,
equipment, fixture, permit, license, patent, and other real and personal property, which was owned, operated, or controlled
by the District as of June 4, 1998, the date of adoption of the General Resolution, (ii) Cooper Nuclear Station, (iii) each
renewal, replacement, addition, modification, and improvement to (i) or (ii) above, and (iv) all real or personal property
and rights therein and appurtenances thereto, as authorized by supplemental resolution of the District to constitute part of
the System. The System does not include any properties or facilities of the System sold or otherwise disposed of by the
District pursuant to the General Resolution. For additional information concerning the System, see “SYSTEM
GENERATION, TRANSMISSION, AND OTHER FACILITIES.”
Outstanding Indebtedness
The District had outstanding the following indebtedness as of December 31, 2016(1):
$1,611,915,000 General Bonds(2).
$74,000,000 Commercial Paper Notes, Series A of an authorized $150,000,000 (the “Series A Notes”).
$188,923,633 under a Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement (the “Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement”) with a
limit of $200,000,000.
(1)

(2)

The 2016 preliminary financial data included in this Official Statement has been prepared by, and is the responsibility of, the
District’s management. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has not audited, reviewed, compiled or performed any procedures with
respect to the accompanying preliminary financial data. Accordingly, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP does not express an opinion
or any other form of assurance with respect thereto.
Includes General Bonds to be refunded with the proceeds of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. See “PLAN OF REFUNDING AND
APPLICATION OF THE 2017 SERIES A/B BOND PROCEEDS.”

Additional Obligations
The District has entered into a credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with commercial banks to provide for
borrowings to be made by the District up to an aggregate amount not to exceed $150,000,000 to provide liquidity support
for the Series A Notes. The Credit Agreement terminates on July 1, 2017. The obligation of the District to pay the
principal and interest on the Series A Notes is payable from the Pledged Property subject and subordinated to the pledge of
the Pledged Property to the payment of the General Bonds, but the obligation of the District under the Credit Agreement is
on a parity with the District’s obligation to pay the General Bonds.
The District has entered into a Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement (the “Taxable Revolving Credit
Agreement”) with commercial banks. Such Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement provides for loan commitments to the
District up to an aggregate amount not to exceed $200,000,000. The Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement allows the
District to increase the loan commitments to $300,000,000. The Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement terminates on
July 30, 2018. The obligation of the District to pay the principal, interest, bank fees, and expenses pursuant to the Taxable
Revolving Credit Agreement is payable from the Pledged Property subject and subordinated to the pledge of the Pledged
Property to the payment of the General Bonds, however the payment obligation of the District under the Taxable
Revolving Credit Agreement would be on a parity with the District’s obligation to pay the General Bonds in the event the
Credit Agreement is drawn upon to pay the Series A Notes.
As a member of The Energy Authority (“TEA”), the District has provided certain guarantees aggregating
$28.9 million to support TEA trading activities. Such guarantees are on a parity with the General Bonds. For additional
information, see “POWER, TRANSMISSION, AND CERTAIN OTHER AGREEMENTS—TEA Agreement.”
The District has entered into a Participation Power Agreement (the “NC2 Agreement”) with Omaha Public
Power District (“OPPD”) to purchase 23.67 percent of the power from a 664 megawatt (“MW”) coal-fired power plant
owned and operated by OPPD and known as Nebraska City Station Unit 2 (“NC2”). OPPD retains 50 percent of the output
for its own use and has entered into similar participation power sales agreements with other power purchasers. The
District’s obligations under the NC2 Agreement, including its obligation to pay a share of the cost of any deficit as a result
of a defaulting power purchaser, are on a parity with the General Bonds. For additional information with respect to NC2,
see “SYSTEM GENERATION, TRANSMISSION, AND OTHER FACILITIES—Nebraska City Station Unit 2” and for
additional information relating to the NC2 Agreement, see “POWER, TRANSMISSION, AND CERTAIN OTHER
AGREEMENTS—Nebraska City Station Unit 2 Agreement.”
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The District expects to enter into an agreement or agreements providing for the creation of a commodity
exchange brokerage account or accounts to support the District’s natural gas and electric trading activities, related to the
District’s generation of electricity, and related to transactions provided under the Southwest Power Pool (“SPP”)
day-ahead integrated market, with trading in such account or accounts limited to a maximum notional amount of
$35.0 million on all open transactions at any time. The District expects to adopt a supplemental resolution or resolutions
determining said agreement or agreements to be a Financial Contract under the General Resolution payable out of the
Revenue Fund as an Operating Expense.
The District has adopted a supplemental resolution authorizing the execution of energy and financial product
transactions provided under the SPP day-ahead integrated market, agreements related to power futures contracts traded on
the Intercontinental Exchange and agreements related to natural gas financial products traded on the Chicago Mercantile
Exchange as Financial Contracts payable out of the Revenue Fund created under the General Resolution. Such transactions
and agreements are required to be within the limitations and conditions contained in the District’s energy risk management
policy as such policy may be amended from time to time. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Energy Risk
Management Practices.”
Additional Financing
The District expects to issue additional General Bonds in 2017 to finance or refinance capital costs for its capital
improvement plan. The District may at any time also issue bonds to refund any existing indebtedness.
Financial Management Policy
The District has a Financial Management Policy (the “Financial Management Policy”), which is subject to
periodic review and revisions. The Financial Management Policy is not incorporated into the General Resolution and does
not represent an agreement or covenant for the benefit of the owners of indebtedness of the District, including the General
Bonds. The Board may amend or modify the Financial Management Policy without notice to the owners of indebtedness
of the District, including the General Bonds. The Financial Management Policy represents general financial strategies and
procedures that are implemented to demonstrate financial integrity and fiscal responsibility in the management of the
District’s business and its assets. Employees must abide by all applicable District bylaws, Board resolutions, bond
resolutions, federal and state laws, other relevant legal requirements, and the Financial Management Policy.
Set forth below is a description of significant sections of the Financial Management Policy as it relates to rates
and the issuance of District indebtedness. The Financial Management Policy is available upon request from the District.
Rates and Pricing Policy
The District’s goal for its rates is to focus its cost of wholesale power (production and transmission) so as to stay
within or near the National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation Key Ratio Trend Analysis (Ratio 88) (the
“CFC Data”) published best (or lowest 25th percentile) quartile for cost per kWh purchased. The goal for the District’s cost
of retail service, which includes all levels of service, is that the total average cost of service to all of its retail customers is
near or in the best (or lowest 20th percentile) quartile as measured by the Energy Information Agency. For additional
information with respect to its rates, customers and wholesale power contracts, see “RATES” and “THE CUSTOMERS”.
Debt Service Coverage
The General Resolution requires the District to charge and collect rents, rates, fees, and charges for the use or
sale of output, capacity, or service of the System in an amount to produce revenues for each fiscal year sufficient to meet
operating expenses during such fiscal year and 100 percent of the aggregate debt service for such fiscal year, the amount,
if any, to be paid during such fiscal year into the Debt Service Fund and amounts necessary to pay and discharge all
charges or liens payable out of revenues during such fiscal year, including but not limited to, Reimbursement Obligations,
Credit Obligations and Financial Contracts. For additional information with respect to the rate covenant, see “SECURITY
FOR THE GENERAL BONDS”.
Under the Financial Management Policy, the District plans to establish a minimum debt service coverage ratio on
the General Bonds of 1.5 times the debt service on the General Bonds. For additional information with respect to the
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calculation of debt service coverage ratios on the General Bonds and historical debt service coverage ratios, see
“FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Revenues and Expenses Under the General Resolution”.
Additional Indebtedness
The District plans, pursuant to the Financial Management Policy, to issue separate series of indebtedness,
including separate series of General Bonds, for production projects and for transmission projects, maturing as hereinafter
described. (Transmission projects include transmission, subtransmission and distribution projects.)
Each series of indebtedness issued for production projects, with the exception described in the next sentence, is
expected to mature no later than January 1, 2036, the end of the term of the hereinafter defined 2016 Contracts. No more
than 20 percent of the amount of outstanding indebtedness issued for production projects, calculated at the time of
issuance of each series of such indebtedness, or $200 million, whichever is less, will be permitted to mature after
January 1, 2036. For additional information with respect to the 2016 Contracts, see “THE CUSTOMERS—District’s
Wholesale Customers—2016 Wholesale Power Contracts.” Refunding savings of indebtedness associated with production
projects will be applied in each year in which there are refunded maturities.
Transmission indebtedness issued for transmission projects is expected to mature over the useful life of the asset
that is being financed. New transmission indebtedness may mature after January 1, 2036, the end of the term of the
2016 Contracts. The District’s transmission indebtedness is payable from the revenues received during the term of the
2016 Contracts and from retail sales and transmission revenues received under various SPP tariffs. After January 1, 2036,
transmission indebtedness will be payable from revenues to be derived from wholesale and retail customers who use the
District’s transmission facilities, as well as revenues from various SPP tariffs. Refunding savings of indebtedness
associated with transmission projects will be applied in each year which there are refunded maturities.

Capital Improvement Plan
The District regularly reviews and updates its capital improvement plan to reflect currently projected projects and
expenditures. The District typically finances large capital projects associated with the generation and transmission assets
with General Bonds. The District also utilizes the Series A Notes and revenues collected through current year rates for
certain capital projects that are shorter lived assets and other improvements to the System.
The cost of the capital improvement plan in years 2017 and 2018 is expected to be $288.3 million, which
includes $7.2 million for SPP transmission projects authorized by SPP, $83.4 million for other transmission projects,
$41.5 million for capital improvements at Cooper Nuclear Station, $52.7 million for capital improvements at
Gerald Gentleman Station and $103.5 million for other capital projects of the District. Of the 2017 to 2018 capital
improvement plan, $172.1 million is expected to be funded through revenues collected through current year rates and
$116.2 million is expected to be funded with indebtedness. The District expects to finance in 2017 and 2018 a prior year
SPP Notice to Construct capital project for approximately 225 miles of 345 kV transmission line with a preliminary
estimated cost of $364 million.
The cost of the capital improvement plan in years 2019 through 2022 is expected to be $524.2 million, which
includes $146.9 million for transmission projects and does not currently include any additional SPP transmission projects
authorized by SPP, $92.8 million for capital improvements at Cooper Nuclear Station, $94.6 million for capital
improvements at Gerald Gentleman Station and $189.9 million for other capital projects of the District. Of the 2019 to
2022 capital improvement plan, $361.4 million is expected to be funded through revenues collected through current year
rates and $162.8 million is expected to be funded with indebtedness. This projected investment in capital improvements is
dependent on loads and any future environmental and regulatory impacts.
For additional information on capital projects, see “SYSTEM GENERATION, TRANSMISSION, AND OTHER
FACILITIES—Cooper Nuclear Station and Transmission Facilities.”
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
TransCanada Keystone Pipeline, LP Agreements
The District has an agreement with TransCanada Keystone Pipeline, LP (“Keystone”) pursuant to which the
District constructed certain transmission facilities that connect to the retail electric systems that provide Keystone with
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electric service to the pump stations for the Keystone Pipeline. Keystone pays the District a monthly fee consisting of the
cost of the total capital expenditures and financing costs incurred by the District with respect to those transmission
facilities. The monthly fee is based on a ten-year amortization commencing October 2010, payable in equal monthly
payments using the District’s actual borrowing rate plus an administrative fee. TransCanada Corporation and TransCanada
Pipeline USA Ltd. have jointly and severally guaranteed the payment obligations of Keystone under its agreement with the
District. The District had an identical agreement, with guaranties, for construction of the transmission facilities to serve the
pump stations for the Keystone XL Pipeline, a proposed 36-inch-diameter crude oil pipeline, beginning in Hardisty,
Alberta, and extending south to Steele City, Nebraska, which agreement was cancelled in 2016 after the 2012 application
for a Presidential permit for construction of the Keystone XL Pipeline was denied.
On January 24, 2017, President Trump signed a Presidential Memorandum regarding construction of the
Keystone XL Pipeline which invited Keystone to promptly resubmit its application to the Department of State for a
Presidential permit for the construction and operation of the Keystone XL Pipeline, and if the application is submitted,
directing Secretary of State to take all actions necessary and appropriate to facilitate its expeditious review, and directing
that the Secretary of State shall reach a final permitting determination, including a final decision as to any conditions on
issuance of the Presidential permit that are necessary or appropriate to serve the national interest, within 60 days of
submission of the permit application. The Presidential Memorandum also directed the Secretary of the Army, Secretary of
the Interior, as well as the Directors of the Bureau of Land Management and the United States Fish and Wildlife Service, if
the Presidential permit is issued, to take all actions necessary and appropriate to review and approve as warranted, in an
expedited manner, requests for authorization, approvals or other relief under applicable laws and regulations within their
jurisdiction to the maximum extent permitted by law, related to the Keystone XL Pipeline.
Nothing in the Presidential Memorandum alters any State or local process or condition that is necessary to secure
access from an owner of private property to construct the pipeline and cross-border facilities. Land or an interest in land
for the pipeline and cross-border facilities may only be acquired consistent with the U.S. Constitution and applicable State
laws.
TransCanada announced on January 26, 2017, that it resubmitted the Presidential Permit application to the
U.S. Department of State for approval of the Keystone XL Pipeline. The District has not entered any new agreements with
TransCanada with respect to said Pipeline. The Presidential permit dated March 23, 2017 for the Keystone XL Pipeline
U.S. and Canada border crossing facilities has been issued.
On February 16, 2017, Keystone filed with the Nebraska Public Service Commission an application for approval
of the preferred route of the Keystone XL pipeline under state law.
Wholesale Rates Litigation
Effective January 1, 2016, the District entered into 20-year wholesale power sales contracts with a substantial
number of its existing wholesale customers (the “2016 Contracts”). The 2016 Contracts replaced wholesale contracts that
were entered into in 2002 (the “2002 Contracts”). For additional information relating to said wholesale power sales
contracts and wholesale customers, see “THE CUSTOMERS—District’s Wholesale Customers—2016 Wholesale Power
Contracts.”
The 2016 wholesale rates resulted in a 0.6 percent increase for wholesale customers who signed the
2016 Contracts, and a 3.8 percent increase for those wholesale customers who remained under the 2002 Contracts. The
2002 Contract customers will pay their share of previously incurred OPEB (hereinafter defined) costs through 2021.
Customers under the 2016 Contracts receive a discount for the deferral of OPEB collections, extending those collections
into the new contract period and resulting in the lower net wholesale rate increase. Eight wholesale customers who
remained under the 2002 Contracts filed for binding arbitration in May 2016 claiming the 2016 wholesale rate violates the
2002 Contracts, is contrary to Nebraska’s rate statute and reflects bad faith toward those not signing the 2016 Contracts.
Since May 2016, the disputed amounts are being set aside in eight separate accounts. The first meeting of the arbitration
panel occurred in September 2016. The dispute now includes the OPEB component of the 2017 wholesale rates. A
decision is expected in the second quarter of 2017. If these wholesale customers are successful on the merits of their claim,
the District’s Board of Directors may need to reconsider the 2016 wholesale rate change.
The District currently has 10 wholesale customers remaining on the 2002 Contracts, which include the
eight wholesale customers referred to above. These customers represented 4.5 percent of the District’s 2016 operating
revenues. The 2016 wholesale rate increase in dispute accounted for $1.8 million of 2016 revenues. The District estimates
the 2017 wholesale rate increase in dispute to be $2.0 million.
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Monolith Materials, Inc.
Monolith Materials, Inc. (“Monolith”) has expressed an interest to construct and operate a carbon black facility
adjacent to the District’s Sheldon Station coal-fired generating facility in Nebraska. The construction of the carbon black
facility is expected to be accomplished in two phases. In 2014, Monolith finished construction and began operating the
first new carbon black plant permitted and built in the U.S. in over 20 years. This 1 kiloton per year plant is located in
Redwood City, California. Carbon black is a material used in reinforcing tires and other industrial rubber products. It can
be customized to act as a pigment in inks, paints and toner.
Groundbreaking for the first phase, to be called Olive Creek Facility—Phase 1, occurred in October 2016.
Monolith expects Olive Creek Facility—Phase 1 to be mechanically complete and operational in 2018. Monolith has
signed a contract with the District to construct the necessary transmission facilities to serve this initial load. After
successful commissioning of the Olive Creek Facility—Phase 1, Monolith intends to construct a large expansion of said
facility to be called the Olive Creek Facility—Phase 2.
The electric service to the Monolith facilities will be provided by Norris Public Power District, a firm wholesale
customer of the District. After completion of the Olive Creek Facility—Phase 2, Monolith will become the single-largest
industrial customer served in the District’s territory. The District entered into a 20-year contract with Monolith to purchase
the carbon black plants’ production of hydrogen rich tail gas, which will be produced by Monolith during production of
carbon black. The District will have to convert its existing coal-fired boiler at Sheldon Station Unit No. 2 to burn the
hydrogen rich tail gas. The boiler conversion is expected to result in a reduction of carbon dioxide (“CO2”), sulfur
dioxide (“SO2”), mercury, and other air emissions. Monolith is obligated under the hydrogen purchase agreement to
reimburse the District for the boiler conversion costs.
The start of Monolith’s construction for the Olive Creek Facility—Phase 2 is currently scheduled to begin in the
second half of 2019. Construction of the Olive Creek Facility—Phase 2 is expected to be completed in 2020. The District
is planning to start detailed design for the Sheldon Station Unit No. 2 boiler conversion in the third quarter of 2019, with
the modified boiler ready to accept the hydrogen rich tail gas in the first quarter of 2021. The commercial operation
date (defined jointly as the date on which the Olive Creek Facility—Phase 2 is capable of sufficient, steady state hydrogen
rich tail gas supply, and the Sheldon Station Unit No. 2 boiler conversion to burn the hydrogen rich tail gas and convert it
to electricity) is currently scheduled for the second quarter of 2021.
SECURITY FOR THE GENERAL BONDS
The General Bonds, including the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, are special obligations of the District payable solely
by the Pledged Property. The General Resolution pledges and assigns the Pledged Property as security for the payment of
the principal and redemption price of, and interest on, the General Bonds, subject to the provisions of the General
Resolution permitting the application of the Pledged Property for the purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in
the General Resolution. The Pledged Property is defined by the General Resolution to include the Revenues and all funds
and accounts created under the General Resolution, including the investments on deposit therein.
Revenues include all revenues, income, rents, and receipts earned by the District from or attributable to the
ownership and operation of the System. Amounts transferred to the Stabilization Account from the Revenue Account of
the Revenue Fund are not deemed Revenues and amounts withdrawn from the Stabilization Account and transferred to the
Revenue Account are deemed Revenues.
Pursuant to the General Resolution, the District can issue additional General Bonds on a parity with the
2017 Series A/B Bonds for any lawful purpose of the District without complying with any historical or projected financial
tests. The District can also enter into Financial Contracts, Credit Obligations, and Reimbursement Obligations which
would be on a parity with the General Bonds without complying with any historical or projected financial tests. Financial
Contracts are contracts entered into by the District to mitigate interest rate, fuel, or other commodity risks and would
include interest rate swaps, fuel hedges and participation in the SPP day-ahead integrated market. Credit Obligations are
contracts for the purchase of power or energy or similar contracts under which the District is obligated to make payments
whether or not such services or commodities are made available or received. Reimbursement Obligations are issued by the
District to evidence the District’s obligations to credit enhancers of debt of the District. The District’s obligations to the
liquidity provider for the Series A Notes are deemed a Reimbursement Obligation under the General Resolution. Any
payments required to be made by the District pursuant to a Financial Contract or Credit Obligation shall be payable from,
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and may be secured by, any Fund or Account created by or under the General Resolution other than the Revenue Fund,
provided, however, the District may enter into a Financial Contract payable from the Revenue Fund with respect to fuel or
energy, and such payment or security may be on a parity with, or subordinate to, other required payments and security
from such Fund or Account, all as the District shall determine pursuant to a Supplemental Resolution prior to entering into
such Financial Contract or Credit Obligation.
As further security for the General Bonds, the District has created a Debt Service Reserve Fund consisting of a
Primary Account and a Secondary Account. The Primary Account is funded in an amount equal to the Primary Debt
Service Reserve Fund Requirement which, subject to certain adjustments, is 50 percent of maximum annual interest on all
outstanding General Bonds. Upon the issuance of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, the Primary Debt Service Reserve Fund
Requirement will be $37,870,395. The amount on deposit in said Primary Account can be used only to pay principal and
interest on the General Bonds. Any deficiency in the Primary Account is required to be made up in 12 equal monthly
installments. The Secondary Account is funded in an amount equal to the Secondary Debt Service Reserve Fund
Requirement which is $50,727,357, established upon the issuance of the initial series of General Bonds under the General
Resolution in 1998. Amounts on deposit in said Secondary Account will be available to pay principal and interest on the
General Bonds and will also be available for any lawful purpose of the District. Any deficiency in said Secondary Account
is required to be made up in ten equal semiannual installments or may be made up over a longer period if determined by
the Board of Directors. The Secondary Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement may be reduced or eliminated by the
Board of Directors. For further information see “Appendix B—Description of Certain Provisions of the General
Resolution” under the headings “Debt Service Reserve Fund—Primary Account” and “Debt Service Reserve Fund—
Secondary Account.”
Pursuant to the General Resolution, the District has covenanted to charge and collect rates and charges for the
use or for the sale of the output, capacity, or service by the System, which, together with other monies expected by the
District to be available therefor, are expected to produce Revenues in each fiscal year sufficient to pay the sum of: (i) all
amounts estimated to be required to pay operating expenses of the System during such fiscal year, (ii) a sum equal to
100 percent of the aggregate debt service for such fiscal year computed as of the beginning of such fiscal year, (iii) the
amount, if any, to be paid during such fiscal year into the Debt Service Reserve Fund, and (iv) amounts necessary to pay
and discharge all charges and liens payable out of the Revenues during such Fiscal Year including, but not limited to,
payment of Reimbursement Obligations, Credit Obligations, and Financial Contracts.
For additional information relating to the application of Revenues, the terms and conditions for the issuance of
additional General Bonds, Financial Contracts, Credit Obligations, Reimbursement Obligations, and the District’s rate
covenant, see “Appendix B—Description of Certain Provisions of the General Resolution.”
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are not an obligation of the State of Nebraska and Nebraska law provides that the
State of Nebraska shall never pledge its credit or funds, or any part thereof, for the payment or settlement of any
indebtedness whatsoever of the District. The District has no taxing power.
PLAN OF REFUNDING AND APPLICATION OF THE 2017 SERIES A/B BOND PROCEEDS
The proceeds of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, together with other available funds of the District, are expected to
be used (i) to refund the District’s outstanding General Revenue Bonds, 2007 Series B (the “2007 Series B Bonds” or the
“Refunded Bonds”) and (ii) to pay financing costs. The District expects to issue Series A Notes to refund a portion of the
2007 Series B Bonds.
Upon delivery of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, the District will enter into an Escrow Deposit Agreement with The
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., Chicago, Illinois, as Trustee, to provide for the refunding and the
defeasance of the Refunded Bonds. The Escrow Deposit Agreement will create an irrevocable trust fund to be held by such
Trustee and applied to the payment of the Refunded Bonds. A portion of the proceeds of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds,
together with other available funds of the District, will be deposited with such Trustee and either held as cash, or invested
in direct obligations of the United States of America. Such investments shall mature as to principal and interest at such
times and in such amounts as will be sufficient without reinvestment (i) to pay the redemption price of the Refunded
Bonds to be redeemed on July 1, 2017, and (ii) to pay the interest on all of the Refunded Bonds on and prior to July 1,
2017. The cash, together with the principal of and interest earned on such investments under the Escrow Deposit
Agreement, will be pledged solely for the benefit of the holders of the Refunded Bonds.
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Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds
2017 Series A Bonds
Sources of Funds
Principal Amount of the 2017 Series A Bonds ...................................................
Net Original Issue Premium of the 2017 Series A Bonds ...................................
Available Funds of the District ...........................................................................
Release from the Debt Service Reserve Fund—Primary Account ......................
Total ..............................................................................................................
Application of Funds
Deposit to the Escrow Fund ................................................................................
Financing Costs(1) ................................................................................................
Total ..............................................................................................................

$ 20,810,000.00
1,706,711.00
264,794.70
149,739.40
$ 22,931,245.10
22,754,344.34
176,900.76
$ 22,931,245.10

2017 Series B Bonds
Sources of Funds
Principal Amount of the 2017 Series B Bonds ....................................................
Net Original Issue Premium of the 2017 Series B Bonds ...................................
Available Funds of the District ...........................................................................
Release from the Debt Service Reserve Fund—Primary Account ......................
Total ..............................................................................................................
Application of Funds
Deposit to the Escrow Fund ................................................................................
Financing Costs(1) ................................................................................................
Total ..............................................................................................................

$ 65,180,000.00
9,259,630.60
856,187.24
233,124.47
$ 75,528,942.31
74,957,483.11
571,459.20
$ 75,528,942.31

Series A Notes
Sources of Funds
Principal Amount of the Series A Notes .............................................................
Available Funds of the District ...........................................................................
Release from the Debt Service Reserve Fund—Primary Account ......................
Total ..............................................................................................................
Application of Funds
Deposit to the Escrow Fund ................................................................................
Financing Costs(1) ................................................................................................
Total ..............................................................................................................
(1)

$ 11,320,000.00
134,707.13
269,414.26
$ 11,724,121.39
11,685,937.44
38,183.95
$ 11,724,121.39

Includes costs of issuance and underwriters’ discount.

DESCRIPTION OF THE 2017 SERIES A/B BONDS
General
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., has been appointed the Trustee, Paying Agent, and
Registrar for the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. For so long as the 2017 Series A/B Bonds are registered in the name of Cede &
Co. (as nominee of DTC) or its registered assigns, payments of principal and interest shall be made in accordance with the
operational arrangements of DTC.
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are issuable as fully-registered bonds, in denominations of $5,000 and integral
multiples thereof. The 2017 Series A/B Bonds will initially be dated the date of delivery and will mature on the dates and
in the principal amounts, and bear interest, payable on January 1 and July 1 of each year, commencing July 1, 2017, at the
respective interest rates shown on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. Interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds
will be calculated based on a 360-day year, consisting of twelve 30-day months. In the event that the 2017 Series A/B
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Bonds are no longer registered in the name of Cede & Co., interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds is payable by check or
draft mailed to the registered owners thereof by the Trustee at the addresses appearing on the registration books on the
15th day of the month preceding the interest payment date. Principal of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds is payable at the
designated corporate trust operations office of the Trustee in East Syracuse, New York.
Transferability and Registration
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds will be available to the ultimate purchasers in book-entry-only form. Purchasers of
the 2017 Series A/B Bonds will not receive certificates representing their interests in such 2017 Series A/B Bonds
purchased, except as described below under “Book-Entry-Only System.” DTC will act as securities depository (“Securities
Depository”) for the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. As discussed below under “Book-Entry-Only System,” transfers of
ownership interests in the 2017 Series A/B Bonds will be accomplished by book entries made by DTC and, in turn, by
DTC Participants (as hereinafter defined) acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners (as hereinafter defined) of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds. The District, the Trustee, and any other person may treat the registered owner of any
2017 Series A/B Bond as the absolute owner of such 2017 Series A/B Bond for the purpose of making payment thereof
and for all other purposes, and the District and the Trustee shall not be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary,
whether such 2017 Series A/B Bond shall be overdue or not. All payments of or on account of interest or principal to any
registered owner of any such 2017 Series A/B Bond shall be valid and effectual and shall be a discharge of the District and
the Trustee in respect of the liability upon such 2017 Series A/B Bond, to the extent of the sum or sums paid.
When the 2017 Series A/B Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the District and
the Trustee shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom a
DTC Participant holds an interest in the 2017 Series A/B Bonds with respect to (1) the accuracy of the records of DTC,
Cede & Co., or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, (2) the delivery
to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than a registered owner as shown on the Bond Register, of any notice
with respect to the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, including any notice of redemption, (3) the payment to any DTC Participant or
any other person, other than a registered owner as shown on the Bond Register, of any amount with respect to principal of,
premium, if any, or interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, (4) the selection by DTC or any DTC Participant of any person
to receive payment in the event of a partial redemption of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, (5) any consent given or action
taken by DTC as registered owner, or (6) any other matter. The District and the Trustee may treat and consider Cede &
Co., in whose name each 2017 Series A/B Bond is registered, as the holder and absolute owner of such 2017 Series A/B
Bond for the purpose of payment, giving notices of redemption and others matters.
Redemption of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds
Optional Redemption of the 2017 Series A Bonds
The 2017 Series A Bonds maturing on January 1, 2028, shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, as a
whole, or in part in the manner determined by the District, at any time on or after January 1, 2027, at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount of the 2017 Series A Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption
date.
Optional Redemption of the 2017 Series B Bonds
The 2017 Series B Bonds maturing on January 1, 2028, shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, as a
whole, or in part in the manner determined by the District, at any time on or after January 1, 2027, at a redemption price
equal to the principal amount of the 2017 Series B Bonds to be redeemed, together with accrued interest to the redemption
date.
Selection of 2017 Series A/B Bonds for Redemption
In the event less than all of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds of an entire maturity are redeemed, the 2017 Series A/B
Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed will be selected at random by the Trustee in such manner as the Trustee in its
discretion may deem fair and appropriate.
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Notice of Redemption
Notice of redemption of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds is to be mailed by the Trustee not less than 30 days before
the redemption date to the registered owners of any 2017 Series A/B Bonds or portion of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds
which are to be redeemed, at their last addresses, if any, appearing on the registration books of the District. Failure to give
notice by mail, or any defect in such notice shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds. Any notice which is mailed in the manner provided in the Resolution shall be conclusively
presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the registered owners of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds to be redeemed
received the notice. The District may provide that any notice of redemption may be cancelled prior to the designated date
of redemption by giving written notice of such cancellation to all parties who were given notice of redemption in the same
manner as such notice of redemption was given.
For so long as a book-entry-only system is in effect with respect to the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, the Trustee will
mail notices of redemption to DTC or its nominee or its successor, and if less than all of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds of a
maturity are to be redeemed, DTC or its successor and DTC Participants (as hereinafter defined) and Indirect
Participants (as hereinafter defined) will determine the particular ownership interest of 2017 Series A/B Bonds of such
maturity to be redeemed. Any failure of DTC or its successor or a DTC Participant or Indirect Participant to do so, or to
notify a Beneficial Owner (as hereinafter defined) of a 2017 Series A/B Bond of any redemption will not affect the
sufficiency or the validity or the redemption of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. See “Book-Entry-Only System” below.
Neither the District, the Trustee nor the Underwriters can give any assurance that DTC, the DTC Participants or
the Indirect Participants will distribute such redemption notices to the Beneficial Owners of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, or
that they will do so on a timely basis.
Book-Entry-Only System
The information contained in the following paragraphs of this subsection “Book-Entry-Only System” has been
extracted from a schedule prepared by DTC, New York, New York, entitled “SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT
LANGUAGE DESCRIBING DTC BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE.” The District makes no representation as to the
completeness or the accuracy of such information or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such information
subsequent to the date hereof.
DTC will act as securities depository for the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. The 2017 Series A/B Bonds will be issued
as fully-registered bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond will be issued for each maturity of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.
DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization”
within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation”
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the
provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over
3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market
instruments (from over 100) countries that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also
facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited
securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This
eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and
non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.
DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding
company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation, and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are
registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or
indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”).
Purchases of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the 2017 Series A/B Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however,
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expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.
Transfers of ownership interests in the 2017 Series A/B Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of
Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates
representing their ownership interests in the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry-only
system for the 2017 Series A/B Bonds is discontinued.
To facilitate subsequent transfers, all 2017 Series A/B Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of 2017 Series A/B Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of
Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the
actual Beneficial Owners of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants
to whose accounts such 2017 Series A/B Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct
and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.
Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment transmission to them of
notices of significant events with respect to the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and
proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds may wish
to ascertain that the nominee holding the 2017 Series A/B Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices
to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the Trustee
and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them. THE DISTRICT AND THE TRUSTEE WILL NOT
HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO SUCH DIRECT AND INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE
PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO THE 2017 SERIES A/B BONDS.
Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the
2017 Series A/B Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus
Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the
2017 Series A/B Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).
Principal and interest payments on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’
accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the District or the Trustee, on payable
dates in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the
accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and
not of DTC, the Trustee, or the District, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time
to time. Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the District or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct
Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.
DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the 2017 Series A/B Bonds at
any time by giving reasonable notice to the District or the Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor
depository is not obtained, the 2017 Series A/B Bonds are required to be printed and delivered as described in the
Resolution.
The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository). In that event, the 2017 Series A/B Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.
THE DISTRICT, THE TRUSTEE, AND THE UNDERWRITERS SHALL NOT HAVE ANY
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT, ANY BENEFICIAL
OWNER OR ANY OTHER PERSON CLAIMING A BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN THE
2017 SERIES A/B BONDS UNDER OR THROUGH DTC OR ANY DTC PARTICIPANT, OR ANY OTHER PERSON
WHICH IS NOT SHOWN ON THE REGISTRATION BOOKS OF THE TRUSTEE AS BEING A HOLDER, WITH
RESPECT TO THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT
PARTICIPANT; THE PAYMENT BY DTC OR ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOUNT IN
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RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PURCHASE PRICE, PREMIUM, IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THE
2017 SERIES A/B BONDS; ANY NOTICE WHICH IS PERMITTED OR REQUIRED TO BE GIVEN TO OWNERS
UNDER THE GENERAL RESOLUTION; THE SELECTION BY DTC OR ANY DIRECT OR INDIRECT
PARTICIPANT OF ANY PERSON TO RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF A PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF
THE 2017 SERIES A/B BONDS; ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS AN OWNER;
OR ANY OTHER PROCEDURES OR OBLIGATIONS OF DTC UNDER THE BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.
SO LONG AS CEDE & CO. (OR SUCH OTHER NOMINEE AS MAY BE REQUESTED BY AN
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF DTC) IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE 2017 SERIES A/B BONDS,
AS NOMINEE OF DTC, REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE HOLDERS OR OWNERS OR REGISTERED HOLDERS
OR REGISTERED OWNERS OF THE 2017 SERIES A/B BONDS MEANS CEDE & CO., AS AFORESAID, AND
DOES NOT MEAN THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE 2017 SERIES A/B BONDS.
The foregoing description of the procedures and record keeping with respect to beneficial ownership interests in
the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, payment of principal, interest, and other payments on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds to Direct
and Indirect Participants or Beneficial Owners, confirmation and transfer of beneficial ownership interest in such
2017 Series A/B Bonds, and other related transactions by and between DTC, the Direct and Indirect Participants and the
Beneficial Owners is based solely on information provided by DTC. Accordingly, no representations can be made
concerning these matters, and neither the Direct nor Indirect Participants nor the Beneficial Owners should rely on the
foregoing information with respect to such matters, but should instead confirm the same with DTC.
RATES
Under the Act, the District has the power and is required to fix, establish, and collect adequate rates and other
charges for electrical energy and any and all commodities or services sold or furnished by it. Such rates and charges must
be fair, reasonable, and nondiscriminatory and adjusted in a fair and equitable manner to confer upon and distribute among
the users and consumers of such commodities and services the benefits of a successful and profitable operation and
conduct of the business of the District. In the opinion of the General Counsel to the District, the District’s electric rates are
not subject under present law to either State of Nebraska or federal regulation, except as modified by the Energy Policy
Act of 2005. For additional information, see “CERTAIN FACTORS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY
INDUSTRY—Federal Power Act Requirements.” However, if the District is required to purchase the output from
qualifying facilities under the federal Public Utility Regulatory Policies Act, the purchase price paid by the District for
such output could be subject to standards set by Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) regulations.
Pursuant to the General Resolution, the District has covenanted to charge and collect rates and charges for the
use or for the sale of the output, capacity, or service by the System, which, together with other monies expected by the
District to be available therefor, are expected to produce Revenues in each fiscal year sufficient to pay the sum of: (i) all
amounts estimated to be required to pay operating expenses during such fiscal year, (ii) a sum equal to 100 percent of the
aggregate debt service for such fiscal year computed as of the beginning of such fiscal year, (iii) the amount, if any, to be
paid during such fiscal year into the Debt Service Reserve Fund, and (iv) amounts necessary to pay and discharge all
charges and liens payable out of the Revenues during such Fiscal Year including, but not limited to, payment of
Reimbursement Obligations, Credit Obligations, and Financial Contracts. Amounts transferred to the Stabilization
Account from the Revenue Account of the Revenue Fund shall not be deemed Revenues in the year transferred and
amounts withdrawn from the Stabilization Account and transferred to the Revenue Account shall be deemed to be
Revenues in the year withdrawn.
The District, in its accounting procedures, allocates costs between wholesale and retail service and establishes its
rates to produce revenues sufficient to meet its estimated respective wholesale and retail revenue requirements. Wholesale
revenue requirements include unbundled costs accounted for separately between generation and transmission.
Transmission costs not recovered from the District’s wholesale power contracts are expected to be recovered through rates
charged by SPP. For additional information, see “THE CUSTOMERS—Transmission Customers.” The rates for retail
service include an amount to recover the costs of wholesale power service in addition to distribution system costs for the
then current year. The District’s wholesale power contracts provide for the establishment of cost-based rates. Such rates
can be adjusted at such times as deemed necessary by the District. The wholesale power contracts also provide for the
creation of a rate stabilization account. Any surplus or deficiency between revenues and revenue requirements, within
certain limits set forth in the wholesale power contracts, may be retained or withdrawn through the rate stabilization
account. Any amounts in excess of the limits will be included as an adjustment to revenue requirements in the next rate
review. The wholesale power contracts also include a provision for establishing a new/replacement generation fund. This
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provision would permit the District to collect an additional 0.5 mills per kilowatt hour (“kWh”) above the normal revenue
requirements to be used for future capital expenditures associated with generation.
The District’s retail rates are adjusted from time to time as necessary. Franchises granted by certain cities and
villages in which the District furnishes electric energy at retail provide that at no time shall the District charge a greater
sum for electric energy than is charged by the District in other communities of like size and under similar conditions. The
maximum charges allowed under the present franchises do not adversely affect the District’s revenue-producing ability
and allow sufficient margin for adjustment to enable the District to meet its obligations under the General Resolution.
The District’s policy is to finance part of the capital improvements to its System from revenues and it sets rates
to effect this policy.
The District implemented a 0.6 percent increase in the District’s wholesale rates on January 1, 2017, for those
wholesale customers who signed the 2016 Contracts, and for those wholesale customers who remain under the
2002 Contracts. No increase in retail rates was implemented in 2017.
The District implemented a 0.6 percent increase in the District’s wholesale rates on January 1, 2016, for those
wholesale customers who signed the 2016 Contracts, and a 3.8 percent increase in the District’s wholesale rates on
January 1, 2016, for those wholesale customers who remain under the 2002 Contracts. No increase in retail rates was
implemented in 2016. For information with respect to litigation initiated by certain wholesale customers that remain under
the 2002 Contracts, see “RECENT DEVELOPMENTS—Wholesale Rates Litigation.”
For information concerning revenue per kWh, see “THE CUSTOMERS—Customers, Energy Sales, and
Revenues.”
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THE CUSTOMERS
Classifications
The following table shows data on the classification of, and sales of energy to, the customers served in 20163 by
the System.

OPERATING REVENUES

Average
Cents Per
kWh Sold
Less
Government
Taxes/
Transfers(1)

Average
Cents Per
kWh Sold

Average
Number of
Customers

MWh
Amount

%

Revenues (in 000’s)
Amount
%

Retail:(2)
Residential...........................................
10.77 ¢
12.79 ¢
71,868
818,305
4.3 $ 104,642
8.50 ¢
9.88 ¢
19,530
1,131,223
6.0
111,722
Commercial .........................................
Industrial .............................................
5.57 ¢
5.93 ¢
59
1,277,557
6.8
75,777
7.91 ¢
9.05 ¢
91,457
3,227,085
17.1
292,141
Total Retail Sales(3) .........................
Wholesale:
Municipalities(4) ....................................................
6.26 ¢
46
1,868,510
9.9
116,906
Public Power Districts and Cooperatives(4) ...........
5.85 ¢
25
7,806,394
41.3
456,614
Total Firm Wholesale Sales ..............................
5.93 ¢
71
9,674,904
51.2
573,520
Total Firm Retail and Wholesale Sales ........
6.71 ¢
91,528
12,901,989
68.3
865,661
Participation Sales ...................................................
4.05 ¢
5
1,926,845
10.2
77,996
2.20 ¢
2
4,073,339
21.5
89,492
Other Sales(5)............................................................
Total Electric Energy Sales ..........................
5.47 ¢
91,535
18,902,173 100.0
1,033,149
Other Operating Revenues(6) .........................................................................................................................
66,060
Unearned Revenues(7) ...................................................................................................................................
54,788
Total Operating Revenues............................................................................................................................. $1,153,997
MWh
Amount

COST OF POWER PURCHASED AND GENERATED

Production(8) ..........................................................................................................
Power Purchased ...................................................................................................
Total Production and Power Purchased ........................................................

14,787,399
4,864,394
19,651,793

%

75.2
24.8
100.0

9.1
9.7
6.5
25.3
10.1
39.6
49.7
75.0
6.8
7.7
89.5
5.7
4.8
100.0

Costs (in 000’s)
Amount
%

$ 458,122
177,121
$ 635,243

72.1
27.9
100.0

(1) Customer collections for taxes/transfers to other governments are excluded from base rates.
(2) Operating revenues included energy billed to retail customers in 2016.
(3) Includes $51.8 million of revenue from customers served directly from the District’s owned facilities.
(4) Sales are Total Requirements.
(5) Includes sales in the Southwest Power Pool (“SPP”) and nonfirm sales to other utilities.
(6) Includes $37.6 million of SPP Transmission revenue, $9.5 million of T-2 Transmission Agreements revenue, $19.0 million of surface
irrigation revenue, electric property rental revenue and miscellaneous revenue.
(7) Includes 2016 surplus revenues deferred to future periods of $14.7 million.
(8) Includes only fuel, operation, and maintenance costs. Debt service and capital-related costs are excluded.

3

Preliminary, subject to change. Based on unaudited financial information.
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District’s Retail Customers
In 2016, the District served an average of 91,457 retail customers. Total retail revenues in 2016 were
$292.1 million. Currently the District’s retail service territory includes 80 municipalities, of which 79 are
municipal-owned distribution systems operated by the District for the municipality pursuant to a Professional Retail
Operations Agreement (“PRO Agreement”), with retail revenues totaling $240.3 million. In addition, the District serves
certain rural areas at retail and several large industrial customers located in rural areas with retail revenues totaling
$51.8 million.
The PRO Agreement of the electric distribution system of 6 of the municipalities representing $7.0 million of
2016 annual retail revenues, commenced on various dates between March 1, 2003 and April 1, 2003, under an agreement
having an initial minimum term of 20 years. Under such agreement, each municipality may terminate its agreement by
giving at least five years’ prior written notice, which written notice can be given after the fifteenth year or any anniversary
date thereafter.
The PRO Agreement of the electric distribution system of 64 of the municipalities representing $146.5 million of
2016 annual retail revenues, commenced on various dates between October 1, 2003 and May 1, 2008, under an agreement
having a term of 25 years. Under such agreement, each municipality has an option to terminate the PRO Agreement and
become solely a wholesale customer of the District at any time after the fifteenth year of the agreement by giving at least
five years’ written notice.
The PRO Agreement of the electric distribution system of the City of Norfolk (“Norfolk”) representing
$40.6 million of 2016 annual retail revenues, commenced on January 1, 1991, under an agreement having an initial term of
15 years. The initial term was extended through December 31, 2030, subject to Norfolk being able to terminate the
PRO Agreement on the anniversary date by giving at least five years’ written notice. If the PRO Agreement is terminated,
Norfolk would continue to be a wholesale customer for the lesser period of ten years or through December 31, 2030.
The PRO Agreement of the electric distribution system of 7 of the municipalities representing $22.7 million of
2016 annual retail revenues, commenced on various dates between April 1, 2016 and April 1, 2017, under an agreement
having a term of 25 years. Under such agreement, each municipality has an option to terminate the PRO Agreement and
become solely a wholesale customer of the District at any time after the fifteenth year of the agreement by giving at least
five years’ written notice.
The PRO Agreement of the electric distribution system of one of the municipalities representing $23.5 million of
2016 annual retail revenues, commenced February 1, 2017, under an agreement having a term of 20 years. Under such
agreement, the municipality has an option to terminate the PRO Agreement and become solely a wholesale customer of
the District at any time after the fifteenth year of the agreement by giving at least five years’ written notice.
The District owns and operates the electric distribution system in one of the 80 municipalities. This municipality
is entitled to acquire its distribution system when the District has paid the indebtedness incurred to acquire or improve
such distribution system.
The District’s average revenue per kWh sold, less government taxes/transfers to its retail customers, in 2016 was
7.97¢, with an average of 5.64¢ per kWh for industrial customers, 8.51¢ per kWh for commercial customers, and 10.83¢
per kWh for residential customers. The District’s average revenue per kWh sold, including government taxes/transfers, to
its retail customers in 2016 was 9.05¢, with an average of 5.93¢ per kWh for industrial customers, 9.88¢ per kWh for
commercial customers, and 12.79¢ per kWh for residential customers.

District’s Wholesale Customers
The District serves its wholesale customers under total requirements contracts that require them to purchase total
power and energy requirements from the District, subject to certain exceptions described below. Total wholesale sales in
2016 were $573.5 million. Wholesale customers now being served under the 2016 Contracts include 23 public power
districts (20 of which are served under one contract with the Nebraska Generation and Transmission Cooperative),
one cooperative, and 37 municipalities with 2016 revenues totaling $520.1 million. Wholesale customers being served
under the 2002 Contracts include one public power district and nine municipalities with 2016 revenues totaling
$52.5 million. Three municipalities are now being served by other public power districts, with 2016 revenues totaling
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$0.7 million. One of the District’s municipalities under the 2002 Contracts allowed their contract to terminate on May 31,
2016, with 2016 revenues totaling $0.2 million.
In 2016, the District’s average revenue per kWh for electric power and energy sold and delivered was 6.26¢ per
kWh for its municipal wholesale customers and 5.85¢ per kWh for its public power district and cooperative wholesale
customers.
2002 Wholesale Power Contracts
The 2002 Contracts allow a wholesale customer to reduce its purchases of power and energy upon giving
appropriate notice. Reductions could amount to as much as 90 percent of their power and energy requirements under
certain circumstances. All wholesale customers under the 2002 Contracts are required to purchase at least ten percent of
their power and energy from the District through December 31, 2021.
The District has received notices from nine wholesale customers as to their intent to level off, reduce, or
terminate the requirements under their 2002 Contracts for various amounts from 2017 through 2021. These wholesale
customers represented 4.5 percent of the District’s 2016 operating revenues. The District expects that no requirements of
said nine wholesale customers will be served by the District in 2022, and such wholesale customers will purchase all of
their electric requirements from other suppliers. One of such wholesale customers filed a lawsuit in state court in
June 2014, regarding the reduction rate under its 2002 Contract. In orders issued in January and February 2016, the trial
court allowed the wholesale customer to reduce its electric requirements from the District by 30 percent commencing
January 1, 2018, by 60 percent commencing January 1, 2019, and by 90 percent commencing January 1, 2020. The other
wholesale customers that have filed notices with the District to reduce their electric requirements may amend their
reduction notices to reflect said court order. The District appealed the order to the Nebraska Court of Appeals. Oral
argument has not yet been scheduled. The District expects to sell the energy not sold to such wholesale customers into the
SPP Integrated Market and continues to explore additional firm requirement and/or fixed price agreements.
One wholesale customer has not given notice to reduce and continue under the 2002 Contracts. This customer
represented 0.1 percent of the District’s 2016 operating revenues.
For information with respect to litigation initiated by certain wholesale customers that remain under the
2002 Contract, see “RECENT DEVELOPMENTS—Wholesale Rates Litigation.”
In 2016, three of the District’s municipal wholesale customers began purchasing power from three of the
District’s public power district wholesale customers. These customers represented 0.1 percent of the District’s
2016 operating revenues. One of the District’s municipal wholesale customers allowed their contract to terminate. This
customer represented less than 0.1 percent of the District’s 2016 operating revenues.
2016 Wholesale Power Contracts
Effective January 1, 2016, the District entered into 2016 Contracts with certain wholesale customers described
above. The 2016 Contracts with these wholesale customers provide for the District to sell and such wholesale customers to
purchase their total demand and energy requirements, subject to certain exceptions described below, from the District, in
each year for a term of 20 years. The 2016 Contracts include provisions discussed below relating to a wholesale
customer’s right to reduce its purchases from the District. The 2016 Contracts are to continue in force after such 20-year
term from year to year unless terminated on an anniversary thereof by at least five years’ written notice given by either
party, which notice may be given at any time on and after the fifteenth year of the term of the 2016 Contracts.
As discussed below, the 2016 Contracts allow a wholesale customer to give notice to reduce its purchase of
demand and energy requirements from the District based on a comparison of the District’s average annual wholesale
power costs (as hereinafter defined) in a given year compared to power costs of U.S. utilities for such year listed in the
CFC Data. The CFC Data places a utility’s power costs in percentiles so that any given utility can compare its power costs
on a percentile basis to the CFC Data published quartile information.
Average annual wholesale power costs are defined by the 2016 Contracts as being equal to the average annual
production plus transmission cost per kWh for all wholesale customers taking service under the 2016 Contracts (excluding
the load and revenues of end use customers taking service under certain rate schedules). The 2016 Contracts allow a
wholesale customer to reduce its power and energy purchases from the District if the District’s average annual wholesale
power costs percentile level for a given year are higher than the 45th percentile level (the “Performance Standard
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Percentile”) of the power costs of U.S. utilities for such year as listed in the CFC Data, as the CFC Data may be modified,
amended, superseded, or replaced as mutually agreed to by the District and a majority of the members of the Rate Review
Committee created under the 2016 Contracts.
The 2016 Contracts would not allow any reductions in demand and energy purchases by a wholesale customer as
long as the District’s average annual wholesale power costs percentile remained below the Performance Standard
Percentile. The District is permitted to receive a performance credit if the District’s average annual wholesale costs
percentile for a given calendar year is less than the 25th percentile level of the power costs of U.S. utilities as listed in the
CFC Data. Such performance credit would be the amount of one-half of the difference between said 25th percentile level
and the District’s cost percentile (rounded to one decimal place). Any such performance credits to which the District is
entitled is permitted to be banked by the District. In any calendar year in which the District’s annual average wholesale
power cost percentile exceeds the Performance Standard Percentile, and if the District has sufficient accumulated
performance credits available, the District can utilize an amount of such performance credits equal to the difference
between the District’s actual cost percentile level (rounded to one decimal place) and the Performance Standard Percentile
and the District shall not be considered to have exceeded the Performance Standard Percentile for that calendar year.
For any calendar year beginning with 2016 cost data, if the District’s annual average wholesale power cost
percentile exceeds the Performance Standard Percentile for said calendar year following application of any performance
credits, a wholesale customer has the right upon providing written notice to the District of at least one calendar year, to
reduce its power and energy purchases from the District in any year according to the following schedule: for the 1st year of
exceedance, a wholesale customer would have the right to immediately reduce its power and energy purchases by up to
15 percent of the wholesale customer’s Base Monthly Demand Obligation (as defined below); for the 2nd year of
exceedance, a wholesale customer would have the right to immediately reduce its power and energy purchases by up to an
additional 15 percent of the wholesale customer’s Base Monthly Demand Obligation; for the 3rd year of exceedance, up to
an additional 20 percent reduction of the wholesale customer’s Base Monthly Demand Obligation; for the 4th year of
exceedance, up to an additional 20 percent reduction of the wholesale customer’s Base Monthly Demand Obligation; for
the 5th year of exceedance, up to an additional 25 percent reduction of the wholesale customer’s Base Monthly Demand
Obligation.
If a wholesale customer elects to utilize its right to reduce its purchase from the District as set forth above, such
wholesale customer is required to provide written notice to the District for such reduction not less than one calendar year
prior to the commencement of each such reduction; provided, if the wholesale customer does not provide notice to the
District to reduce its purchases prior to the reporting of the Performance Standard Percentile for the ensuing calendar year,
the wholesale customer’s right to provide notice to reduce its purchase from the District for the prior year’s exceedance is
waived by the wholesale customer. The maximum percentages available for reduction as listed above are based on the
number of calendar years that the District has not met the Performance Standard Percentile (following application of any
performance credits) since the inception of the 2016 Contract, regardless of whether or not the wholesale customer has
provided reduction notices for any prior exceedances. The reductions in power and energy purchases are at the option of a
wholesale customer. Exceedance by the District does not need to occur in consecutive years for customers to be eligible
for the stated levels of reduction. For example, if the District has had exceedances in three prior years for which a
wholesale customer has not provided timely written notice to the District as described above, such wholesale customer
could reduce by up to only 20 percent of the customer’s Base Monthly Demand Obligation in the next year of exceedance
and not the aggregate amount of percentages for all of the prior waived years of exceedance.
A wholesale customer’s Base Monthly Demand Obligation is defined by the 2016 Contracts as the average of the
wholesale customer’s demand requirements provided by the District (increased by the hereinafter defined qualified local
generation but shall exclude demand provided by Western) during such month in each of the three calendar years prior to
the date when the wholesale customer first commences to reduce its purchase of demand and energy requirements from the
District.
Under certain circumstances, a wholesale customer can offset its demand and energy requirements by utilizing
qualified local generation which is defined by the 2016 Contracts as generation interconnected to the wholesale customer’s
subtransmission or distribution facilities behind the meter of the District used to determine a wholesale customer’s power
bill and such generation must use as an energy source either methane, wind, solar, biomass, hydropower or geothermal
resource or be a FERC-certified small power production facility. A wholesale customer can use qualified local generation
for offset purposes with an aggregate nameplate rating of up to two MW or ten percent of a wholesale customer’s
reference demand, whichever is greater, subject to a maximum cap of 50 percent of the wholesale customer’s reference
demand. The 2016 Contracts define reference demand as the average of the annual highest District supplied demand to the
wholesale customer recorded during any hour in each of the five previous calendar years.
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The following table lists the District’s wholesale power costs percentile for the calendar years 2011 to 2015 set
forth in the CFC Data:

Year

CFC Data
Percentile

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

24.4%
29.1
31.0
27.6
31.3

The 2016 Contracts provide for cost-based rates and allow the District to retain surplus net revenues and collect
for deficit net revenue, up to defined limits, in a rate stabilization account. The initial limit on surplus net revenue that can
be accumulated in the rate stabilization account is an amount equivalent to ten percent of annual production revenues
derived from all 2016 Contracts. Such limit can be increased by action of the District’s Board of Directors to 20 percent of
such annual production revenues. The initial limit on deficit net revenue that can be accumulated in the rate stabilization
account is an amount equivalent to five percent of annual production revenues derived from all 2016 Contracts. Any
surplus accumulation in excess of 20 percent of such annual production revenues requires approval of a majority of
members of the Rate Review Committee that is established pursuant to the 2016 Contracts.
The 2016 Contracts require the District to furnish a summary report to each wholesale customer that sets forth
revenue forecasts, revenue requirements, and any rate adjustments necessary to meet such revenue requirements. If such
summary report indicates a need for a rate adjustment, notice is required to be given to the wholesale customer at least
120 days prior to the proposed effective date of such adjustment.

Other Utilities (Nonfirm and Other Sales)
In addition, the District currently makes unit participation sales that share operating expenses on a pro rata basis.
Such sales are to the City of Lincoln, Nebraska (“Lincoln”) from the power and energy produced at Gerald Gentleman
Station, Sheldon Station, Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility, Laredo Ridge Wind Facility, Crofton Bluffs Wind Facility, and
Broken Bow I Wind Facility; to Municipal Energy Agency of Nebraska (“MEAN”) from Ainsworth Wind Energy
Facility, Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility, Laredo Ridge Wind Facility, and Crofton Bluffs Wind Facility; to OPPD from
Ainsworth Wind Energy Facility, Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility, Crofton Bluffs Wind Facility, Broken Bow I Wind
Facility, and Broken Bow II Wind Facility; and to Grand Island Utilities (“Grand Island”) from Ainsworth Wind Energy
Facility, Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility, Laredo Ridge Wind Facility, and Broken Bow I Wind Facility. The District also
has contracted, fixed price demand and energy sales to JEA (City of Jacksonville, Florida) from Ainsworth Wind Energy
Facility. The District also engages in sales and interchanges of power and energy with other utilities. For additional
information concerning agreements relating to the sale of power and energy of the System, see “POWER,
TRANSMISSION, AND CERTAIN OTHER AGREEMENTS.”

Transmission Customers
The District currently owns and operates 5,267 miles of transmission and subtransmission line encompassing
nearly the entire state of Nebraska. The District became a transmission owning member of SPP, a regional transmission
organization, in 2009. The District files a rate with SPP annually that provides for the recovery of all transmission revenue
requirements associated with transmission facilities equal to or greater than 115 kV. SPP collects and reimburses the
District for the use of the District’s transmission facilities by entities other than the District’s firm requirements customers
and all transmission customers still served directly by the District through grandfathered Transmission
Agreements (“T-2 Agreements”).
In 2016, the District’s transmission revenue collected through its SPP rate was $37.6 million. The District
collects the revenues associated with the use of the District’s transmission facilities not otherwise collected by SPP, from
its General Firm Power Service (“GFPS”) firm wholesale customers, which revenues were $68.9 million in 2016, from its
grandfathered T-2 Agreements, which revenues were $9.5 million in 2016, and from its retail customers, which revenues
were $21.9 million in 2016.
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If the GFPS or T-2 Agreements terminate, the District expects SPP would collect and remit the portion of these
revenues associated with the use of the District’s transmission facilities equal to or greater than 115 kV through the
SPP rate. In this situation, the District would continue to bill and collect from these customers for the use of the District’s
transmission facilities less than 115 kV through a transmission interconnection agreement.

Customers, Energy Sales, and Revenues
The following table shows customers, energy sales, and peak loads of the System, including participation sales,
in each of the five years, 2012 through 2016.

Calendar Average Number of
Year
Retail Customers
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

89,355
89,604
90,293
91,140
91,457

Wholesale
Customers(1)

Native Load
Sales(2)

98
97
86
82
78

13,169,488
13,140,595
12,932,518
12,579,390
12,901,988

Megawatt-Hour Sales
Percentage
Total
Growth
Sales(3)
6.3
(0.2)
(1.6)
(2.7)
2.6

19,275,026
20,830,094
20,658,755
20,990,883
18,902,172

Percentage
Growth(4)
(3.0)
8.1
(0.8)
1.6
(10.0)

Anytime Peak
Load (MW)
Busbar
Native Load
3,030.3
2,872.6
2,811.0
2,695.4
2,963.7

At the end of 2016, includes sales to firm wholesale customers, participation customers (Lincoln, MEAN, JEA, OPPD, Grand Island), and a
yearly average of 2 nonfirm customers. Bilateral sales to utilities decreased in 2014 due to SPP’s transition to an integrated market. In 2016,
three of the District’s municipal wholesale customers began purchasing power from three of the District’s public power district wholesale
customers, and one of the District’s municipal wholesale customers allowed their contract to terminate.
Native load sales include wholesale sales to total firm requirements customers and include the responsibility of replacement power being
procured by the District if the District’s generating assets are not operating. Predominantly, native load customers are served under
long-term total requirements contracts.
Total sales from the System include sales to Lincoln from Gerald Gentleman Station and Sheldon Station; to Heartland from Cooper
Nuclear Station, which sale commenced January 1, 2004, and terminated December 31, 2013; to KCPL from Cooper Nuclear Station, which
sale commenced January 1, 2005, and terminated on January 18, 2014; to MEAN, JEA, OPPD, and Grand Island from Ainsworth Wind
Energy Facility, which sales commenced October 1, 2005, and terminates on September 30, 2025; to OPPD, MEAN, Lincoln and
Grand Island from Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility, which sales commenced March 1, 2009, and terminates on February 28, 2029; to MEAN
from Gerald Gentleman Station and Cooper Nuclear Station, which sale commenced January 1, 2011, and terminates on December 31,
2023; to MEAN, Lincoln and Grand Island from Laredo Ridge Wind Facility, which sales commenced February 1, 2011, and terminates on
January 31, 2031; to OPPD, Lincoln and Grand Island from Broken Bow I Wind Facility, which sales commenced December 1, 2012, and
terminates on November 30, 2032; to OPPD, Lincoln and MEAN from Crofton Bluffs Wind Facility, which sales commenced November 1,
2012, and terminates on October 31, 2032; and to OPPD from Broken Bow II Wind Facility which sale commenced October 1, 2014, and
terminates on September 30, 2039.
The decrease in percentage growth from 2015 to 2016 was a result of reduced nonfirm revenues due to lower energy sales due to the
planned refueling and maintenance outage at Cooper Nuclear Station, lower natural gas prices and additional wind generation in the
SPP Integrated Market. For additional information, see “FINANCIAL INFORMATION—Management’s Discussion of Financial Results.”
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THE SYSTEM
Capacity Resources
To meet the estimated anytime peak load in 2017 of 2,850.7 MWs, the District had available 3,651.0 MW of
capacity resources that included (i) 3,046.2 MW of generation capacity from 12 owned and operated generating plants and
22 plants over which the District has operating control, as noted below: (ii) 447.6 MW of firm capacity purchases from the
Western Area Power Administration (“Western”), and (iii) 157.2 MW of a capacity purchase from NC2. Of the total
capacity resources of 3,651.0 MW, 273.7 MW are being sold via participation sales or other capacity sales agreements,
leaving 3,377.3 MW to serve the District’s firm retail and wholesale customers and to meet capacity reserve requirements.

Type

Number
of
Plants(1)

Summer 2017
Accredited Capability
(MW)(2)

Percent
of
Total

3
1
6
12
3
1
8
34

1,679.3
765.0
106.8
93.6
125.3
220.0
56.2
3,046.2

55.2
25.1
3.5
3.1
4.1
7.2
1.8
100.0

Steam—Conventional(3) ..............................................
Steam—Nuclear .........................................................
Hydro..........................................................................
Diesel..........................................................................
Combustion Turbine(4) ................................................
Combined Cycle .........................................................
Wind(5) ........................................................................

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

Includes three hydro plants and 12 diesel plants under contract to the District.
Accreditation by SPP for the summer season 2017, pursuant to standard performance tests conducted by the District. Pursuant to
agreements with other utilities, a portion of the accredited capability of certain generating plants has been sold to such utilities.
Includes Gerald Gentleman Station, Sheldon Station, and Canaday Station.
Includes the Hallam, Hebron, and McCook peaking turbines.
Includes Ainsworth Wind Energy Facility and seven wind facilities under contract to the District.

Energy Supply
The following table shows the percentages of the District’s energy supply produced from various sources and
purchased, excluding energy produced with respect to Participation Sales and Other Sales, in each of the five years 2012
through 2016.
Sources of the District’s Energy Supply
(% of MWh)
Year
2012 ..................................
2013 ..................................
2014 ..................................
2015 ..................................
2016 ..................................
(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)

Coal(1)

Nuclear

Hydro(2)

Wind(3)

Gas
and Oil

Purchases(4)

55.6
56.6
51.7
48.4
48.0

27.5
30.0
29.9
33.8
32.3

8.2
6.8
5.3
5.9
6.8

3.3
4.6
6.5
6.2
6.9

1.9
0.8
1.1
1.0
1.5

3.5
1.2
5.5
4.7
4.5

Includes NC2.
Includes hydro purchases from generating plants of The Central Nebraska Public Power & Irrigation District (“Central”), which Power
Purchase Agreement terminated December 31, 2013, Loup, over which the District has operating control, and Western.
Includes Ainsworth Wind Energy Facility, Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility, which began commercial operation in March 2009, Laredo Ridge
Wind Facility, which began commercial operation in February 2011, Springview II Wind Energy Facility, which began commercial
operation in August 2011, Crofton Bluffs Wind Facility, which began commercial operation in November 2012, Broken Bow I Wind
Facility, which began commercial operation in December 2012, Steele Flats Wind Facility, which began commercial operation in
November 2013, and Broken Bow II Wind Facility, which began commercial operation in October 2014.
These are primarily purchases from SPP and JEA.
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District-Owned Generation Facilities
The following table shows the generation facilities owned by the District and their respective fuel types, summer
2017 accredited capability, and in-service dates.

Facility

Fuel Type

Gerald Gentleman Station Units No. 1 and No. 2 ............
Cooper Nuclear Station ....................................................
Beatrice Power Station .....................................................
Sheldon Station Units No. 1 and No. 2 ............................
Combustion Turbines (3 generating plants) .....................
Canaday Station ...............................................................
Hydro (3 generating plants) ..............................................
Ainsworth Wind Energy Facility(2)...................................

(1)
(2)

Coal
Nuclear
Combined Cycle
Coal
Oil or Natural Gas
Natural Gas
Water
Wind

Summer 2017
Accredited
Capability (MW)(1)
1,365.0
765.0
220.0
215.0
125.3
99.3
21.3
8.3
2,819.2

In-Service Date
1979, 1982
1974
2005
1961, 1968
1973
1958
1887, 1927, 1939
2005

2017 summer accredited net capability based on SPP criteria.
Nominally rated at 60 MW.

Future Power Supply
The District’s core planning principles for its most recent Integrated Resource Plan aligns with the Board of
Directors’ strategic goals which include further diversifying its mix of generating resources (nuclear, coal, hydro, wind,
energy efficiency and demand response), energy storage, and capitalizing on the competitive strengths of
Nebraska (available water, proximity to coal, and abundance of wind). Key goals from the District’s Integrated Resource
Plan include (i) achieving a goal of ten percent of the District’s energy supply from renewable resources by 2020,
(ii) increasing focus on energy efficiency to meet customer load growth, and (iii) increasing diversification with a trend
toward cleaner energy. The probabilistic analysis under the Integrated Resource Plan focused on key future uncertainties
including customer load growth, future environmental regulations including CO2, capital additions and operation and
maintenance costs of new units, future fuel, and market prices for electricity. The results showed that with the District’s
recapture of 120 MWs of base load generation from expiring capacity and energy contracts out of Cooper Nuclear Station,
and lower projected load growth, the District is positioned to meet its firm load requirement needs for the next 10 to
15 years. Specific actions on which the District will focus to meet load growth needs include (i) addition of renewables,
(ii) effectiveness of energy efficiency programs, and (iii) evaluation of additional peaking capacity. For additional
information, see “SYSTEM GENERATION, TRANSMISSION, AND OTHER FACILITIES.”
The District’s Board of Directors approved the Integrated Resource Plan during the second quarter of 2013. The
Integrated Resource Plan was shared with the general public and the District’s wholesale customers in a series of meetings
in the first quarter of 2013. Although the District included a power uprate for Cooper Nuclear Station in its Integrated
Resource Plan, the District’s most recent evaluation of the costs and market risks related to a power uprate has led the
District to decide not to engage in a power uprate for Cooper Nuclear Station at this time. Long-term operation of
Gerald Gentleman Station appears to continue to be commercially viable even if additional long-term environmental
controls are required. The District would need to revisit this assumption if high CO2 costs occur. Operation of Sheldon
Station and Canaday Station appears marginally beneficial unless and until additional environmental controls or other
costly major modifications are required. More wind and energy efficiency also appear beneficial, but not under a low
native load growth scenario. One recommended action item from the Integrated Resource Plan is to periodically review the
major uncertainties identified in the Integrated Resource Plan and report on any changes. The District expects to issue its
next Integrated Resource Plan in 2018.

POWER, TRANSMISSION, AND CERTAIN OTHER AGREEMENTS
The following are brief summaries of the principal power and other agreements of the District. The Kingsley
Construction and Operation Agreement with Central relating to the Kingsley Project is summarized under “SYSTEM
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GENERATION, TRANSMISSION, AND OTHER FACILITIES—The Kingsley Project—Kingsley Project Agreement
with Central.”

MEAN and OPPD Power Sales Contracts
The District has a Multi-Unit Participation Agreement with MEAN which began January 1, 2011 and continues
through December 31, 2023. The District is obligated to sell 50 MW through the end of the agreement.
The District has an energy call option contract with OPPD to sell 50 MW beginning June 2017 through
May 2018, and 25 MW beginning June 2018 through May 2019.

Agreements with Lincoln
The District and Lincoln have entered into Participation Power Sales Agreements, as amended, for the sale to
Lincoln of 30 percent of the net power and energy that can be produced by Sheldon Station and eight percent of the net
power and energy that can be produced by Gerald Gentleman Station, respectively. Pursuant to the agreement related to
Sheldon Station, Lincoln is required to pay 30 percent of all costs (excluding fuel costs) attributable to Sheldon Station
and, pursuant to the agreement relating to Gerald Gentleman Station, Lincoln is required to pay eight percent of all
costs (excluding fuel costs) attributable to Gerald Gentleman Station, in each case whether or not the respective Station is
operating or is operable. The cost of fuel is based on the amount of energy scheduled by Lincoln. In addition, the District
is required to provide substitute energy to Lincoln under certain circumstances. Each Agreement is to terminate upon the
later of the last maturity of the debt attributable to the respective Station or the date on which the District retires such
Station from commercial operation.

Agreement with Central
The District and Central are parties to a Water Storage Agreement which provides generally that during the term
of such agreement the District may store 125,000 acre feet of water in Lake McConaughy for irrigation and which further
provides generally for the coordinated operation of the District’s respective hydraulic operations. The Water Storage
Agreement provides, among other things, for the transfer of Central’s storage water from Lake McConaughy through
District-owned canals and reservoirs. Such Agreement provides that either party may, at its option, cancel the agreement
by providing three years’ written notice. This storage water, together with other water appropriated to the District,
provides condenser cooling for Gerald Gentleman Station.

Nebraska City Station Unit 2 Agreement
The District’s obligation under the NC2 Agreement to make payments is an unconditional “take-or-pay”
obligation, obligating the District to make such payments whether or not NC2 or any part thereof is completed, delayed,
terminated, available, operable, operating, or retired. The NC2 Agreement contains a step-up provision obligating the
District to pay a share of the cost of any deficit in funds for operating expenses, debt service, other costs related to NC2,
and reserves as a result of a defaulting power purchaser. The District’s obligation pursuant to such step-up provision is
limited to 160 percent of its original participant share (23.67 percent).
In the event of default by any of the participants, the following shall occur as pertains to the obligation of the
defaulting participant(s): (i) OPPD shall take and pay for the costs of the first 50 MW of power of the defaulting
participant(s), (ii) any power of the defaulting participant(s) above 50 MW will be offered to the other participants,
(iii) any power of the defaulting participant(s) that remain will be offered to third parties on a long-term basis, and (iv) any
power of the defaulting participant(s) that still remains shall be distributed among the non-defaulting participants in
proportion of their respective shares, provided that a non-defaulting participant shall not be obligated to purchase more
than 160 percent of their original participant share. A non-defaulting participant is liable under its NC2 Agreement only
for the debt service on debt issued by OPPD on behalf of the participants for NC2 and not for debt issued individually by
such defaulting participant for its share of NC2. For additional information, see “THE DISTRICT—Additional
Obligations.”
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OPPD has retained 50.0 percent of NC2. In addition to the District’s participation of 23.67 percent in the
NC2 plant, the other participants include the following: City of Grand Island, Nebraska for 5.0 percent; City of Falls City,
Nebraska for 0.83 percent; City of Nebraska City, Nebraska for 1.67 percent; and out-of-state sales totaling 18.83 percent
to City of Independence, Missouri, Missouri Joint Municipal Electric Utility Commission, and the Central Minnesota
Municipal Power Agency.

Agreements with Western
The power requirements of the System have been provided principally from District-owned or controlled
generation and from purchases of firm power and energy from Western. From time to time, the District also effects
purchases and sales of supplemental short-term blocks of power and energy with other utilities in the region.
The District’s purchases from Western consist of 152 MW of firm power and 288 MW of firm peaking power
from the Upper Great Plains region, pursuant to a contract which terminates on December 31, 2020 and 4 MW of firm
power from the Rocky Mountain Region, pursuant to a contract which terminates on September 30, 2024. The District also
receives and pays for approximately 4 MW of firm power from the Upper Great Plains region for pass through to
four Native American tribes, pursuant to several contracts, which all terminate on December 31, 2020. The firm energy
purchased from Western in 2016 represented approximately 5.9 percent of the District’s wholesale and retail native load
energy supply requirements.

Wind Energy Agreements
The District has entered into power purchase agreements with seven wind facilities having a total capacity of
435 MW. These agreements are for terms ranging from 20 to 25 years and require the District to purchase all the electric
power output of these wind facilities. The District has entered into power sales agreements to sell 154 MW of this capacity
to four other utilities in Nebraska over similar terms. See “SYSTEM GENERATION, TRANSMISSION, AND OTHER
FACILITIES” for information relating to such wind facilities.

SPP Membership
Following FERC’s Order of November 26, 2008 approving amendments to SPP’s governing documents
addressing the District’s concerns as a political subdivision, the District became a Transmission Owning member of the
SPP on April 1, 2009. The District’s rates for transmission service are filed with SPP and FERC pursuant to a formula rate
approved by FERC Order on January 27, 2009.
SPP was founded in 1941, incorporated as a nonprofit entity in 1994, and became a FERC-approved Regional
Transmission Organization in 2004. Currently, SPP has a Board of Directors comprised of eight independent Directors and
the President/CEO of SPP. Recent SPP bylaw changes allow for expansion of the Board up to ten members. In addition,
SPP has a Members Committee, comprised of 20 member representatives elected by the member sectors that meet
concurrently with the Board and vote on all items before consideration by the Board. A representative from the District
was elected to the SPP Members Committee. SPP also has a FERC-approved Regional Delegation Agreement with the
North American Electric Reliability Corporation (“NERC”) to act as a Regional Entity, as defined in the Federal Power
Act (“FPA”). The Regional Entity is governed by a separate group of four independent trustees. SPP employs about
600 personnel and is based in Little Rock, Arkansas. SPP’s members, including investor-owned utilities, municipalities,
cooperatives, state power agencies, independent power producers, power marketers, independent transmission companies,
and federal agencies serve over 18 million people. SPP serves a peak load of approximately 46,000 MW, and provides
transmission service over approximately 61,000 miles of transmission lines in 14 states: Nebraska, Kansas, Missouri,
Oklahoma, Arkansas, New Mexico, Texas, Louisiana, Iowa, Minnesota, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, and
Wyoming.
Membership in SPP provides the District balancing authority service, reliability coordination service, generation
reserve sharing, regional tariff administration, generation interconnection service, network, and point-to-point transmission
service, and regional transmission expansion planning.
On March 1, 2014, SPP commenced a Day-Ahead, Ancillary Services, and Real-Time Balancing
Market (“Integrated Market”). The Integrated Market also provides a financial market to hedge transmission congestion,
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or financial virtual products to hedge uncertainties, such as unplanned outages. SPP is operating a single NERC certified
Balancing Authority in the Integrated Market.
FERC approved changes to SPP’s transmission cost allocation and expansion planning process. In two separate
FERC dockets, FERC approved SPP’s “Highway/Byway” cost allocation methodology and its Integrated Transmission
Planning (“ITP”) process. This Highway/Byway methodology allocates 100 percent of the annual transmission revenue
requirements of ITP Highway projects (345 kV and above) on a load ratio share to all SPP transmission customers. In
addition, the methodology allocates 33 percent of the annual transmission revenue requirements of ITP Byway
projects (100 to 300 kV) on a load ratio share to all SPP transmission customers. The District’s load currently represents
approximately six percent of the entire SPP members’ load. The SPP Board has approved $9.7 billion worth of
transmission upgrades since 2004. For the period 2017 through 2022, it is currently estimated the District will receive
more revenues than costs for non-District allocated projects.
FERC also approved SPP’s ongoing ITP process. This process will develop transmission expansion plans for
20-year, 10-year, and 4-year planning horizons, which will be based on expected changes in such factors as generation
resource planning to meet renewable energy requirements, and develop a more robust transmission system across the
SPP membership. The SPP ongoing ITP process will be completed over a 36-month cycle, with a 20-year plan developed
in the first 18 months, followed by a 10-year plan developed over the next 18-month period. The District expects to
finance any District projects resulting from the ITP with General Bonds.
On January 1, 2016, Tri-State Generation and Transmission Association, Inc. (“Tri-State”) became a
transmission member of SPP and its transmission facilities in western Nebraska, and the corresponding annual
transmission revenue requirements were placed under the SPP tariff. SPP filed at FERC to place the Tri-State transmission
facilities in the District’s pricing zone rather than establish a new pricing zone for Tri-State. The District protested the
filing at FERC, because it results in approximately a $4.3 million per year, or 8 percent, cost shift increase to the
transmission customers in the District’s pricing zone. As a result of the District’s protest, FERC set the matter for hearing
before an administrative law judge and the District and other parties submitted briefs and testimony on the proper pricing
zone and whether SPP’s decision is discriminatory and an unjust and unreasonable cost shift to the District. On
February 23, 2017, the administrative law judge issued an initial decision upholding the SPP pricing zone placement and
made recommended conclusions to FERC. This initial decision has no legal effect until reviewed and acted upon by the
FERC which will be after the District submit briefs on its exceptions to the factual and legal conclusions in the initial
decision. FERC’s future ruling on the initial decision can be appealed to a federal circuit court of appeals. When FERC
will rule on initial decision cannot be predicted.

Midwest Reliability Organization Agreement
The District is a member of the Midwest Reliability Organization (“MRO”), which is the NERC Regional
Reliability Entity that was organized and became effective January 2005. The MRO will monitor and enforce compliance
with NERC standards. The MRO has a FERC-approved delegation agreement with NERC to serve as Regional Entity, as
defined in the FPA.

TEA Agreement
On June 1, 1999, the District became a member of TEA, a nonprofit corporation located in Jacksonville, Florida,
providing power marketing and resource management services primarily on behalf of its members. In addition to the
District, the current members of TEA include JEA; the Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia; South Carolina Public
Service Authority; Gainesville Regional Utilities; City Utilities of Springfield, Missouri; Public Utility District No. 1 of
Cowlitz County, Washington; and American Municipal Power, Inc. of Columbus, Ohio. TEA is engaged in buying and
selling wholesale electric power and is procuring natural gas for its members for use in their operations, as well as serving
as members’ market participant in various regional transmission organizations, so as to maximize the efficient use of
energy resources, reduce operating costs, and increase operating revenues of its members without impacting the safety and
reliability of their electric systems. As a member of TEA, the District made payment of a membership fee and certain
contributions to capital and is providing certain guarantees not exceeding $28.9 million for electric trading by TEA. Such
guarantees have been authorized as Credit Obligations under the General Resolution on a parity with the General Bonds.
The District has not incurred any credit losses in relation to TEA trading activity.
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Other Transmission and Interconnection Agreements
The District has a long-term Transmission Service Contract with Basin Electric for bulk transmission service in
connection with the Missouri Basin Power Project managed by Basin Electric. The contract provides, among other things,
that the District, under certain conditions, will receive up to 575 MW of power from Basin Electric near Sidney, Nebraska,
for transmission over the District’s bulk transmission system, to certain points of interconnection with Western and
Lincoln. In connection with the bulk transmission service for Basin Electric, Basin Electric has paid the District a
contribution in aid of construction for certain additions to the District’s bulk transmission system which were necessary to
provide for such bulk transmission service. Basin Electric has also agreed to pay the District’s operating and maintenance
expenses and renewal and replacement costs attributable to such bulk transmission service. The contract also provides for
the District to repay Basin Electric a percentage of Basin’s contribution in aid of construction if Basin Electric determines
that it no longer can utilize such bulk transmission service. The District’s obligation to make such repayment has been
materially reduced and will terminate during the year 2020.
The District has an interconnection agreement (“MINT Agreement”) with six regional utilities located in
Missouri, Iowa, and Nebraska concerning a transmission project (the “MINT Project”). The MINT Agreement governs the
operation and maintenance of a 345 kV transmission line and associated facilities connecting the Cooper Nuclear Station
substation in Nebraska to the Fairport and St. Joseph substations in Missouri, and provides the District certain transmission
capacity rights on the facilities. The MINT Agreement also provides for the sale and purchase of emergency energy among
the MINT Project participants pursuant to a service schedule contained in the agreement. The MINT Agreement has an
initial term extending to 2040 and year to year thereafter subject to certain contract provisions. The MINT Agreement
complies with FERC Order 890 and allows third-party interconnections.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Independent Accountants
The financial statements as of 2015 and 2014 and for each of the two years in the period ended December 31,
2015, included in this Official Statement, have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, independent accountants, as
stated in their report appearing in Appendix A.
The 2016 preliminary financial data included in this Official Statement has been prepared by, and is the
responsibility of, the District’s management. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has not audited, reviewed, compiled or
performed any procedures with respect to the accompanying preliminary financial data. Accordingly,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP does not express an opinion or any other form of assurance with respect thereto.

Revenues and Expenses Under the General Resolution
The following table shows the revenues and expenses of the District for the years ended December 31, 2016,
2015 and 2014. Such revenues and expenses, insofar as they relate to the increase in net position in the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 are derived from the audited financial statements of the District. The financial information of
the District for the year ended December 31, 2016 has not been audited.
Under the provisions of the District’s wholesale power contracts, any surplus or deficiency between revenues and
revenue requirements, within certain limits set forth in the wholesale power contracts, may be retained in a rate
stabilization account. Any amounts in excess of the limits will be included as an adjustment to revenue requirements in the
next rate review. A similar process is followed in accounting for any surplus or deficiency in revenues necessary to meet
revenue requirements for retail electric service.
Under generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) for regulated electric industries, such surplus or
deficiencies are accounted for as “regulatory assets or liabilities.” The District follows this accounting treatment. See
Footnote 1.B of Notes to Financial Statements in Appendix A.
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Summary Statements of Revenues and Expenses Per Financial Statements and Reconciliation to
Net Revenues Under the General Resolution for the Three Years Ended 2016, 2015, and 2014
Year Ended December 31
2015
2014
2016(1)
(Dollars in Thousands)
Operating Revenues: .............................................................................................
Operating Expenses:
Power Purchased ............................................................................................
Power Production ...........................................................................................
Transmission and Distribution Operation and Maintenance ............................
Customer Service and Information .................................................................
Administrative and General ............................................................................
Decommissioning ...........................................................................................
Depreciation and Amortization .......................................................................
Retail Communities and In Lieu of Tax Payments ..........................................
Total Operating Expenses ......................................................................
Operating Income ..................................................................................................
Investment and Other Income .........................................................................
Debt and Other Expenses ...............................................................................
Increase in Net Position ..................................................................................
Add:(1)
Collections for Future Debt Retirement(2) .......................................................
Debt and Other Expenses(2) ............................................................................
Depreciation and Amortization(3) ....................................................................
Payments to Retail Communities(4) .................................................................
Amortization of Current Portion of Financed Nuclear Fuel(5) ..........................
Amounts Collected from Third-Party Financing Arrangements(6) ...................
Deduct:(1)
Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on Investment Securities ...........................................
Investment Income Retained in Construction Funds(7) ....................................
Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement Interest(8) .............................................
Net Position Available for Debt Service under the General Resolution(1) ...............
General System Bonded Debt Service(1) ................................................................
Ratio of Net Position Available for Debt Service(1) ...............................................
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)

(6)
(7)
(8)

$ 1,153,997

$ 1,097,216

$ 1,122,454

177,121
458,122
101,952
17,696
94,112
21,429
133,666
36,617
1,040,715
113,282
31,772
62,121
82,933

166,587
441,344
87,259
17,213
66,291
14,720
130,247
36,598
960,259
136,957
22,355
68,252
91,060

174,348
493,655
83,839
17,502
59,372
18,522
126,440
37,015
1,010,693
111,761
26,039
75,438
62,362

0
62,121
133,666
26,553
39,468
991
262,799

0
68,252
130,247
26,552
24,675
850
250,576

1,188
75,438
126,440
26,874
20,700
1,276
251,916

43
354
0
397
$ 345,335
$ 174,094
1.98

(1,245)
302
1,010
67
341,569
185,637
1.84

203
190
1,731
2,124
312,154
207,758
1.50

$
$

$
$

Preliminary, subject to change. Based on unaudited financial information.
Debt and other expenses, exclusive of interest on customer deposits, is not an operating expense as defined in the General Resolution.
Depreciation and amortization are not operating expenses as defined in the General Resolution.
Under the provisions of the General Resolution, the payments required to be made by the District with respect to the Professional Retail
Operating Agreements are to be made on the same basis as subordinated debt.
General Bond financed nuclear fuel is not an operating expense as defined in the General Resolution. As of July 31, 2015, the effective date
of the Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement, amortization of nuclear fuel expense under the Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement is
excluded from the debt service calculation as the District’s obligation to make payments under the Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement is
subordinate to the District’s obligation to pay debt service on General Bonds.
The payments received by the District from third-party financing arrangements are included as Revenues under the General Resolution, but
are not recognized as revenue under GAAP.
Interest income on investments held in construction funds is not Revenue as defined in the General Resolution.
As of July 31, 2015, the effective date of the Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement, interest expense under the Taxable Revolving Credit
Agreement is excluded from the debt service calculation as the District’s obligation to make payments under the Taxable Revolving Credit
Agreement is subordinate to the District’s obligation to pay debt service on General Bonds.

29

Management’s Discussion of Financial Results
Years Ended December 31, 20164, 2015, and 2014
Operating Revenues. Operating revenues are affected by many factors including weather and economic
conditions. Operating revenues increased from $1,097.2 million in 2015 to $1,154.0 million in 2016, an increase of
$56.8 million. Revenues from sales to the District’s firm requirements customers increased from $848.3 million in 2015 to
$865.7 million in 2016, an increase of $17.4 million, or 2.1 percent. The increase in revenues from 2015 to 2016 was due
primarily to a 2.6 percent increase in energy sales to firm requirements customers. Operating revenues decreased from
$1,122.5 million in 2014 to $1,097.2 million in 2015, a decrease of $25.3 million. Revenues from sales to the District’s
firm requirements customers decreased from $887.6 million in 2014 to $848.3 million in 2015, a decrease of $39.3 million
or 4.4 percent. The decrease in revenues from 2014 to 2015 was due primarily to lower unbilled retail energy with a
revenue impact of $14.4 million and a 1.4 percent decrease in sales volume which was the result of milder temperatures.
Revenue from participation sales increased from $77.2 million in 2015 to $78.0 million in 2016, an increase of
$0.8 million. Revenue from participation sales decreased from $81.1 million in 2014 to $77.2 million in 2015, a decrease
of $3.9 million. The decrease was due primarily to participation sales to Lincoln which decreased by $4.4 million due to a
23.0 percent reduction in the dispatch of generation from Sheldon Station due to lower prices in the SPP Integrated
Market. The decrease was partially offset by increased wind participation sales.
Other sales consist of sales in the SPP Integrated Market and nonfirm sales to other utilities. TEA has energy
marketing responsibilities for the District’s nonfirm off-system sales and the related management of credit risks. Other
sales decreased from $134.6 million in 2015 to $89.5 million in 2016, a decrease of $45.1 million. The decrease was a
result of reduced nonfirm revenues due to lower energy sales due to the planned refueling and maintenance outage at
Cooper Nuclear Station, lower natural gas prices and additional wind generation in the SPP Integrated Market. For
information regarding Cooper Nuclear Station’s next refueling and maintenance outage, see “SYSTEM GENERATION,
TRANSMISSION, AND OTHER FACILITIES—Cooper Nuclear Station—Refueling and Maintenance Outages.” Other
sales decreased from $172.5 million in 2014 to $134.6 million in 2015, a decrease of $37.9 million. The decrease was a
result of lower prices in the SPP Integrated Market which was due to lower natural gas prices and additional wind
generation.
Other operating revenues consist primarily of revenues for transmission and other miscellaneous revenues. These
revenues were $66.1 million, $60.7 million, and $58.4 million in 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively. The majority of these
revenues were from other SPP transmission customers for their share of qualifying transmission upgrade projects of the
District.
As indicated under “Rates,” a surplus or deficiency in revenues necessary to meet revenue requirements during a
wholesale or retail rate period was taken into account in projecting revenue requirements and in establishing wholesale and
retail rates in subsequent rate periods.
The District recognizes all revenues in excess of revenue requirements in any year as a deferral or reduction of
revenues. Such surplus revenues are excluded from the net revenues available under the General Resolution to meet debt
service requirements for such year. Surplus revenues are included in the determination of net revenues available under the
General Resolution to meet debt service requirements in the year that such surplus revenues are taken into account in
setting rates. The District recognized or increased revenues a net amount of $54.8 million in 2016. The District’s revenues
in 2016 from electric sales to retail, wholesale, and other utilities resulted in a surplus, or over collection of costs, of
$10.0 million, which surplus amount was deferred (decrease in revenues). In addition, the wholesale rates that were in
place for 2016 included a refund of $17.4 million of surplus net revenues from past rate periods. Such surplus had
previously been accounted for as a reduction in revenues in the year(s) the surplus occurred. Accordingly, the
2016 revenues from electric sales, which reflect the surplus being refunded, are offset by a revenue adjustment (increase in
revenues) for such amount. The District also recognized or increased revenues by $24.7 million for the Cooper Nuclear
Station fall refueling and maintenance outage costs, which costs were pre-collected for in 2015. This regulatory liability
was eliminated through revenue recognition during the 2016 outage year. In addition, the District recognized or increased
revenues by $22.7 million for OPEB expenses related to past service and included in 2016 rates.
The District deferred or decreased revenues a net amount of $23.7 million in 2015. The District’s revenues in
2015 from electric sales to retail, wholesale, and other utilities resulted in a surplus, or over collection of costs, of
4

Preliminary, subject to change. Based on unaudited financial information.
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$11.0 million, which surplus amount was deferred (decrease in revenues). In addition, the wholesale rates that were in
place for 2015 included a refund of $12.0 million of surplus net revenues from past rate periods. Such surplus had
previously been accounted for as a reduction in revenues in the year(s) the surplus occurred. Accordingly, the
2015 revenues from electric sales, which reflect the surplus being refunded, are offset by a revenue adjustment (increase in
revenues) for such amount. The District also deferred or decreased revenues by $24.7 million for the pre-collection of
Cooper Nuclear Station refueling and maintenance outage costs. This regulatory liability was eliminated through revenue
recognition during the 2016 outage year, by recognizing or increasing revenues by $24.7 million for the pre-collection of
Cooper Nuclear Station refueling and maintenance outage costs.
The District deferred or decreased revenues a net amount of $77.1 million in 2014. The District’s revenues in
2014 from electric sales to wholesale, retail, and other utilities resulted in a surplus, or over collection of costs, of
$91.4 million, which surplus amount was deferred (decrease in revenues). In addition, the wholesale rates that were in
place for 2014 included a refund of $14.3 million of surplus net revenues from past rate periods. Such surplus had
previously been accounted for as a reduction in revenue in the year(s) the surplus occurred. Accordingly, the
2014 revenues from electric sales, which reflect the surplus being refunded, are offset by a revenue adjustment (increase in
revenues) for such amount.
Power Purchased. Power purchased expenses increased from $166.6 million in 2015 to $177.1 million in 2016
due primarily to additional energy purchases from NC2 and the wind facilities. Power purchased expenses decreased from
$174.3 million in 2014 to $166.6 million in 2015 due primarily to lower market prices and fewer energy purchases in the
SPP Integrated Market.
Power Production. Power production expenses increased from $441.3 million in 2015 to $458.1 million in 2016
due primarily to the costs associated with a planned refueling and maintenance outage at Cooper Nuclear Station in 2016.
No such outage occurred in 2015. This increase was mostly offset by lower fuel costs as the result of decreased generation.
Power production expenses decreased from $493.7 million in 2014 to $441.3 million in 2015 due primarily to lower fuel
costs as a result of decreased generation and to costs associated with a planned refueling and maintenance outage at
Cooper Nuclear Station completed November 2, 2014, which ended the station’s first 24-month operating cycle. No such
outage occurred in 2015.
Transmission and Distribution Operation and Maintenance. The transmission and distribution operation and
maintenance expenses were $102.0 million, $87.3 million, and $83.8 million in 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively. These
costs increased $14.7 million in 2016 as compared to 2015 due primarily to higher fees charged by SPP for the District’s
share of qualifying transmission upgrade projects, including an SPP resettlement for prior periods for the implementation
of a tariff provision to compensate transmission upgrade sponsors for qualifying upgrades used by other transmission
customers. These costs increased $3.5 million in 2015 as compared to 2014 due primarily to an increase in SPP wheeling
and fees, which represent costs the District must pay to other SPP transmission owners for their qualifying transmission
upgrade projects.
Customer Service and Information. Customer service and information expenses were $17.7 million,
$17.2 million, and $17.5 million in 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively. These expenses did not vary significantly for these
years.
Administrative and General. Administrative and general expenses were $94.1 million, $66.3 million, and
$59.4 million in 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively. These costs increased $27.8 million in 2016 as compared to 2015 due
primarily to OPEB expenses related to past service and included in 2016 rates. These costs increased $6.9 million in 2015
as compared to 2014 due primarily to increases in healthcare costs along with increased expenses for outside services.
Decommissioning. Decommissioning expenses were $21.4 million, $14.7 million, and $18.5 million in 2016,
2015, and 2014, respectively. Decommissioning expenses represent the net amount accrued each year for the future
decommissioning of Cooper Nuclear Station, which amount was equivalent to the interest income on investments in the
nuclear facility decommissioning fund plus amounts collected for decommissioning in the rates for electric service each
year. Decommissioning expenses increased by $6.7 million in 2016 as compared to 2015 due to an increase in interest
income on investments. Decommissioning expenses decreased by $3.8 million in 2015 as compared to 2014 due to a
decrease in interest income on investments. No amount for decommissioning was collected through rates in 2016, 2015, or
2014.
Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation and amortization expenses were $133.7 million, $130.2 million,
and $126.4 million in 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively. These expenses did not vary significantly for these years.
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Investment and Other Income. Investment and other income were $31.8 million, $22.4 million, and $26.0 million
in 2016, 2015, and 2014, respectively. These incomes increased $9.4 million in 2016 as compared to 2015 due primarily to
increases in interest income on investments as the result of higher interest rates and fund balances. These incomes
decreased $3.6 million in 2015 as compared to 2014 due primarily to decreases in interest income of the decommissioning
fund investments.
Increase in Net Position. The increase in net position (net revenues) was $82.9 million in 2016, $91.1 million in
2015, and $62.4 million in 2014. The decrease in net position of $8.2 million in 2016 as compared to 2015 reflected a
decrease in revenue requirements used to establish rates for 2016 due to decreased revenue bond principal payments and
construction from revenue, partially offset by increased commercial paper principal payments. The increase in net position
of $28.7 million in 2015 as compared to 2014 reflected an increase in revenue requirements used to establish rates for
2015 for the purpose of increased construction from revenue and commercial paper principal payments, partially offset by
decreased revenue bond principal payments.

Liquidity and Liquidity Resources
As of December 31, 2016, the District’s cash and temporary investments totaled $476.1 million5, excluding
proceeds of General Bonds, amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Fund and the amount on deposit in the Debt Service
Reserve Fund.
The Secondary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund is funded in an amount equal to the Secondary Debt
Service Reserve Fund Requirement which is $50.7 million, established upon the issuance of the initial series of General
Bonds under the General Resolution in 1998. The District had on deposit in the Secondary Account as of December 31,
2016, $51.3 million* in cash and securities. Amounts on deposit in the Secondary Account are available for any lawful
purposes of the District.
The District can also issue its Series A Notes to pay the costs of any capital requirements. As of December 31,
2016, the District had outstanding $74.0 million* principal amount of Series A Notes of an authorized issue of
$150 million.
The District can also draw on the Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement for any lawful purpose of the District. As
of December 31, 2016, the District had outstanding $188.9 million* of the $200 million limit.

Other Postemployment Benefits
The District provides certain other postemployment hospital-medical and life insurance benefits to qualifying
retirees, surviving spouses, and eligible employees on long-term disability, and their dependents. The hospital-medical
plan has been amended over the years and provides different benefits based on hire date and/or the age of the employee.
The District pays all or part of the cost (determined by age) of certain hospital-medical premiums for employees hired on
or prior to December 31, 1992. Employees hired on or after January 1, 1993, are subject to a contribution cap that limits
the District’s portion of the cost of such coverage to the full premium the year the employee reached age 65, or the year in
which the employee retires if older than age 65. Employees hired on or after January 1, 1999, are not eligible for other
postemployment hospital-medical benefits once they reach age 65. Employees hired on or after January 1, 2004, are not
eligible for other postemployment hospital-medical benefits once they retire. The District amended the plan effective
July 1, 2007, to provide that any former employee who is rehired will receive credit for prior years of service. The District
further amended the plan effective September 1, 2007, to provide that employees hired or rehired on or after that date must
work five consecutive years immediately prior to retirement to be eligible for other postemployment hospital-medical
benefits once they retire. The District also provides a postemployment death benefit of $5,000 for qualifying employees.
The District does not provide postemployment pension benefits other than a defined contribution plan. Additional
information concerning the defined contribution plan can be found in Footnote 10 of Appendix A—Financial Statements
of Nebraska Public Power District.
The District’s annual OPEB expense is actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of accounting
standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). In 2016, the District’s Board approved the
5
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continued use of regulatory accounting for OPEB expense, which equates OPEB expense with the amount authorized in
rates for the funding of the OPEB trusts. The amount included in rates for OPEB expense in 2016 was $52.9 million. The
amount in rates was more than the OPEB expense calculated under GASB standards for OPEB as the amount in rates
included collections for prior year additional accrued liability. Of the amount included in expenses for 2016, $22.7 million
was funded from General Bonds. In addition, the amount to be included in expenses in 2017 is $53.3 million. Of this
amount, $23.0 million was also funded from General Bonds.
Based on a January 2016 actuarial study, the District’s actuarial liability was approximately $333.8 million,
using a discount rate of 6.25 percent. The market value of plan assets was $75.2 million as of January 1, 2016, which
resulted in a net OPEB liability of $258.6 million. At December 31, 2016, the market value of plan assets was
$142.7 million6. OPEB funding will continue to be determined annually by the District’s Board of Directors. The trusts
are currently projected to be fully funded by January 1, 2034. Additional information concerning the District’s
OPEB liability can be found in Footnote 11 of Appendix A—Financial Statements of Nebraska Public Power District.
In 2016 and 2017 wholesale production rates, the District included a $25 million catch-up collection associated
with the unfunded OPEB accrued liability for past production-level services. In 2016, $1.6 million of this amount was
collected from the 2002 Contracts customers. In 2017, approximately $2.0 million of this amount will be collected from
the 2002 Contracts customers. The remainder, and capitalized interest until January 1, 2022, was funded with General
Bonds. The financed contributions were placed in the OPEB trusts to fund postemployment benefit obligations. The
2016 Contracts customers will begin paying, through rates, the level debt service on certain of the General Bonds
beginning in 2022 and continuing through 2033.

Energy Risk Management Practices
The nature of the District’s business exposes it to a variety of risks, including exposure to volatility in electric
energy and fuel prices, uncertainty in load and resource availability, the creditworthiness of its counterparties, and the
operational risks associated with transacting in the wholesale energy markets.
To help manage energy risks, including the risks related to the District’s participation in the SPP Integrated
Market, the District relies upon TEA to both transact on its behalf in the wholesale energy markets and to develop and
recommend strategies to manage the District’s exposure to risks in the wholesale energy markets. TEA combines a strong
knowledge of the District’s system, an in-depth understanding of the wholesale energy markets, experienced people, and
state-of-the-art technology to deliver a broad range of standardized and customized energy products and services to the
District.
TEA has assisted the District in developing its Energy Risk Management (“ERM”) program. The program
originates with the Board-approved ERM Governing Policy and the ERM-Approved Products and Limits Standard. These
documents establish the philosophy, objectives, delegation of authorities, approved products and their limits on the
District’s energy and fuel activities necessary to govern its ERM program. The objective of the ERM program is to
increase fuel and energy price stability by hedging the risk of significant adverse impacts to cash flow. These adverse
impacts could be caused by events such as natural gas or power price volatility, or extended unplanned outages. The
ERM program has been developed to provide assurance to the Board that the risks inherent in the wholesale energy market
are being quantified and appropriately managed.

6
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Debt Service Requirements for General Bonds
The following table shows the debt service for the General Bonds to be outstanding upon the issuance of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds:
Calendar
Year(1)

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033
2034
2035
2036
2037
2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
2043
2044
2045
(1)
(2)

Outstanding General Bonds
Principal
Interest

$ 71,235,000
89,510,000
70,190,000
73,325,000
74,610,000
74,855,000
77,670,000
81,650,000
84,240,000
71,395,000
71,095,000
79,005,000
63,950,000
66,415,000
65,385,000
68,070,000
68,930,000
51,635,000
37,025,000
36,305,000
24,805,000
25,230,000
17,865,000
15,910,000
14,545,000
15,135,000
9,675,000
2,545,000
2,675,000

$ 73,278,280
68,605,335
64,378,322
61,144,254
57,661,169
53,899,064
50,694,114
47,061,145
43,113,209
39,121,720
35,738,030
32,264,544
28,417,768
25,531,847
22,245,582
19,026,898
15,765,168
12,317,817
9,817,729
7,971,605
6,147,252
4,897,559
3,626,327
2,784,583
2,042,721
1,371,331
672,725
261,000
133,750

2017 Series A Bonds
Principal
Interest

$ 2,685,000
2,765,000
2,905,000
3,045,000
2,610,000
1,025,000
1,070,000
1,105,000
1,160,000
1,205,000
1,235,000

$ 625,765
759,700
621,450
476,200
323,950
271,750
230,750
187,950
132,700
97,900
61,750

2017 Series B Bonds
Principal
Interest

$ 6,010,000
5,930,000
6,225,000
6,545,000
6,865,000
4,945,000
5,180,000
5,450,000
5,725,000
6,000,000
6,305,000

$ 2,281,300
2,958,500
2,662,000
2,350,750
2,023,500
1,680,250
1,433,000
1,174,000
901,500
615,250
315,250

Debt service amounts are for the years in which they accrue, not for the years in which they are paid.
Amounts may not add to total due to rounding.

34

Total(2)

$ 156,115,345
170,528,535
146,981,772
146,886,204
144,093,619
136,676,064
136,277,864
136,628,095
135,272,409
118,434,870
114,750,030
111,269,544
92,367,768
91,946,847
87,630,582
87,096,898
84,695,168
63,952,817
46,842,729
44,276,605
30,952,252
30,127,559
21,491,327
18,694,583
16,587,721
16,506,331
10,347,725
2,806,000
2,808,750

SYSTEM GENERATION, TRANSMISSION, AND OTHER FACILITIES
Gerald Gentleman Station
Description
Gerald Gentleman Station is located at a site near the Sutherland Reservoir, approximately 22 miles west of
North Platte, Nebraska. Sutherland Reservoir is a part of a canal system and water storage facilities that the District owns
and operates between Ogallala and North Platte, Nebraska. Gerald Gentleman Station is a coal-fired, steam-electric
generating station, consisting of Gerald Gentleman Station Unit No. 1 and Unit No. 2, each having a single coal-fired
steam generating boiler and a turbine-generator unit having a nominal rating of 650 MW. Based on SPP accreditation
criteria, Gerald Gentleman Station Unit No. 1 has a summer 2017 accredited net capability of 665 MW. Gerald Gentleman
Station Unit No. 2 has a summer 2017 accredited net capability of 700 MW. Each boiler is designed to burn low sulfur
coal with a range of characteristics representative of coal available in the Gillette, Wyoming region.
Operation
Gerald Gentleman Station Unit No. 1 began commercial operation in April 1979. Gerald Gentleman Station Unit
No. 2 began commercial operation in January 1982. The two Units generated 8,796,336 megawatt hour (“MWh”) net in
2015 and 7,783,824 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant capacity factors of 73.6 percent and 64.9 percent,
respectively, based on an accredited net capability of 1,365 MW.
Fuel Supply
Coal for Gerald Gentleman Station is supplied under numerous coal sales contracts with several coal suppliers
including Alpha Coal Sales LLC, Cloud Peak Energy Resources LLC, Peabody COALSALES LLC, Arch Energy
Resources LLC and other spot market suppliers. Expiration of these coal supply contracts and agreements vary from
December 31, 2017 to December 31, 2018 with the coal purchase and sale agreement with Cloud Peak Energy
Resources LLC being subject to a right to terminate the agreement upon 60 days’ notice and allows for purchases of coal
through confirmation letters at prices and quantities that are agreed to at the time of the purchase which cannot exceed the
District’s authorized quantities.
Coal supplied pursuant to the coal sales contracts is mined near Gillette, Wyoming, and is loaded into rail cars
owned or leased by the District for unit train delivery by Union Pacific Railroad Company (the “UP”) to
Gerald Gentleman Station. The District’s operating practice is to schedule deliveries of coal to Gerald Gentleman Station
to meet the operating requirements of Gerald Gentleman Station and to maintain an inventory of coal in the event
scheduled deliveries of coal are interrupted. These inventories are projected to be sufficient to meet Gerald Gentleman
Station’s total requirements for a minimum of 45 consecutive days and for 60 days during the peak seasons while at
maximum operating levels 24 hours each day. The quantity of coal the District has the right to purchase under its coal
sales contracts, including coal in inventory, is sufficient to meet the forecasted operating requirements at
Gerald Gentleman Station until December 31, 2017. Current coal sales contracts provide for partial operating requirements
through 2018. A combination of future coal sales contracts and spot market purchases will be utilized to provide for
operating requirements beyond 2017.
The District has a railroad spur track which connects Gerald Gentleman Station with the Burlington Northern
Santa Fe Railroad Company and a railroad spur track which connects Gerald Gentleman Station with the UP. In 2011, the
District executed a long-term multi-year coal transportation contract with UP under which UP will transport coal to
Gerald Gentleman Station. The quantity of coal which the District has the right to ship under the UP coal transportation
contract is sufficient to meet the operating and coal supply inventory requirements of Gerald Gentleman Station.

Sheldon Station
Description
Sheldon Station is located approximately 22 miles southwest of Lincoln, Nebraska, in Lancaster County,
Nebraska. Sheldon Station is a coal-fired, steam-electric generating station, consisting of Unit No. 1 and Unit No. 2, each
having a single coal-fired steam generating boiler and a turbine-generator unit with nominal ratings of 100 and 115 MW,
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respectively. Based on SPP accreditation criteria, Sheldon Station has a total summer 2017 accredited net capability of
215 MW.
Operation
Commercial operation of Unit No. 1 began in July 1961 and Unit No. 2 in July 1968. Sheldon Station generated
969,720 MWh net in 2015 and 515,490 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant capacity factors of 49.2 percent and
27.3 percent, respectively, based on the plant’s accredited capability. The capacity factor was lower in 2016 due to
additional planned outage days and due to economic dispatch.
Fuel Supply
The Sheldon Station coal supply can be provided under the same contracts as Gerald Gentleman Station that have
UP access. The District’s operating practice is to schedule deliveries of coal to Sheldon Station so as to meet the operating
requirements of Sheldon Station, and to maintain an inventory of coal in the event scheduled deliveries of coal are
interrupted. These inventories are projected to be sufficient to meet Sheldon Station’s total requirements for a minimum of
45 consecutive days and for 60 days during the peak seasons while at maximum operational levels 24 hours each day. The
quantity of coal the District has the right to purchase under its coal sales contract is sufficient to meet the operating and
coal supply inventory requirements at Sheldon Station until December 31, 2017.
UP is the only railroad that can serve Sheldon Station. In 2011, the District executed a long-term multi-year rail
transportation contract with UP under which UP will transport coal for Sheldon Station. The quantity of coal which the
District has the right to ship under the UP coal transportation contract for Sheldon Station is sufficient to meet the
operating and coal supply inventory requirements of Sheldon Station.

Nebraska City Station Unit 2
NC2 is a 664 MW coal-fired, steam-electric generating station owned and operated by OPPD and is located
adjacent to OPPD’s Nebraska City Station Unit 1. NC2 commenced commercial operation on May 1, 2009. OPPD is
responsible for the purchase and transportation of fuel for NC2. Pursuant to the NC2 Agreement, the District agreed to
purchase 23.67 percent of the power and associated energy from NC2 which, based on SPP 2017 summer accreditation of
664 MW, amounts to 157.2 MW. The District’s share of NC2 generation was 917,504 MWh in 2015 and 1,240,682 MWh
in 2016. For additional information with respect to the NC2 Agreement, see “POWER, TRANSMISSION, AND
CERTAIN OTHER AGREEMENTS—Nebraska City Station Unit 2 Agreement.”

The Combustion Turbines
In 1973, the District completed construction and placed into commercial operation three Combustion Turbines.
The Combustion Turbines are standard aircraft derivative-type combustion turbine peaking units designed to burn No. 2
fuel oil. Based on SPP accreditation criteria, the Combustion Turbines has a summer 2017 combined accredited net
capability of 125.3 MW. The units are located near Hebron, Nebraska, near McCook, Nebraska, and at the District’s
Sheldon Station. The unit at the District’s Sheldon Station has been converted to dual fuel capability (both No. 2 fuel oil
and natural gas). Each unit is interconnected with the District’s high-voltage transmission system at its site so as to permit
full output operations. All units are remotely controlled from the District’s system control center and are capable of
producing full power from a cold start in less than seven minutes. The District’s policy is to schedule deliveries of fuel oil
to the Combustion Turbines to meet operating requirements and to enable operation at full power for approximately
30 hours.

The Kingsley Project
Description
The Kingsley Project consists of a hydroelectric generating unit and related facilities to harness the energy from
water flowing through the outlet structure at the Kingsley Dam in Keith County, Nebraska.
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The Kingsley Project is owned and operated by Central except that the Keystone Diversion Dam and the
downstream portion of Lake Ogallala is owned by the District. Central also owns and operates Kingsley Dam, which
forms Lake McConaughy, a 1.8 million acre feet storage reservoir. Releases from Kingsley Dam pass through the
Kingsley Project. Central sells to the District all the output of the Kingsley Project.
Kingsley Project Agreement with Central
The District and Central entered into the Kingsley Project Construction, Operation, and Power Purchase
Agreement (the “Kingsley Agreement”) which is to remain in effect until the Kingsley Project is retired and removed from
commercial operation; however, the District has the right to terminate said Agreement upon notice and payment to Central
of all of its costs attributable to the acquisition, construction, and operation of the Kingsley Project.
The Kingsley Agreement requires Central to operate the Kingsley Project and make available to the District the
entire output of the Kingsley Project. The District is required to pay all costs of Central attributable to the maintenance and
operation of the Kingsley Project including reserves. The District also pays to Central an amount determined by
multiplying the energy delivered to the District, less station service provided by the District, by a factor which was
three mills per kWh in 1984, the first year of operation, and is increased by one-tenth of one mill per kWh each year
thereafter.
Operation
The Kingsley Project has a maximum power capability of 50 MW, but under the SPP accreditation criteria for
hydroelectric generating units, the Kingsley Project has a summer 2017 accredited net capability of 37 MW.
The Kingsley Project has been in commercial operation since November 1984. The Kingsley Project generated
96,895 MWh net in 2015 and 152,220 MWh net in 2016. For information relating to certain FERC issues and
environmental issues relating to the Kingsley Project, see “Environmental and Other Permits and Approvals.”

Canaday Station
Canaday Station is located south of Lexington, Nebraska and was placed in service by Central in May 1958.
Canaday Station is a single-unit steam-electric generating plant having a nominal rating of 100 MW and uses natural gas.
The District purchased Canaday Station from Central in 1995. Based on SPP accreditation criteria, Canaday Station has a
summer 2017 accredited net capability of 99 MW. Canaday Station generated 4,124 MWh net in 2015 and 2,619 MWh net
in 2016.

Beatrice Power Station
Description
Beatrice Power Station is located approximately 7 miles north of Beatrice, Nebraska. Beatrice Power Station is a
natural gas-fired combined cycle power plant having a nominal rating of 229 MW. Based on SPP accreditation criteria,
Beatrice Power Station has a total summer 2017 accredited net capability of 220 MW.
Operation
Beatrice Power Station began commercial operation in January 2005. Beatrice Power Station generated
183,724 MWh net in 2015 and 259,009 MWh net in 2016 resulting in annual plant capacity factors of 8.4 percent and
11.8 percent, respectively.
Fuel Supply
The District has executed separate natural gas pipeline interconnection agreements with Trailblazer Pipeline
Company and Northern Natural Gas Company that are effective for as long as Beatrice Power Station is in commercial
operation. Either gas pipeline is capable of supplying the entire requirements of the Beatrice Power Station as presently
configured. A natural gas supply, balancing, fuel management, and transportation strategy agreement has been executed
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with Tenaska Marketing Ventures, a Nebraska partnership and joint venture of Tenaska Energy, Inc. and Tenaska Energy
Holdings, Inc., which is effective through October 31, 2021.

Ainsworth Wind Energy Facility
Description
Ainsworth Wind Energy Facility is a nominally rated 60 MW wind energy facility located near Ainsworth,
Nebraska. The District has agreements with four utilities for the purchase by such utilities of 28 MW of the 60 MW from
the Ainsworth Wind Energy Facility.
Operation
Ainsworth Wind Energy Facility began supplying power and energy to the System in October 2005. Ainsworth
Wind Energy Facility generated 192,619 MWh net in 2015 and 176,314 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant
capacity factors of 37.0 percent and 33.8 percent, respectively.

Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility
Description
Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility is a nominally rated 80 MW wind energy facility located near Bloomfield,
Nebraska, that is owned and operated by Elkhorn Ridge Wind LLC. The District has agreements with four utilities for the
purchase by such utilities of 50 percent of the electric output from Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility.
Operation
Elkhorn Ridge Wind Facility began supplying power and energy to the System in March 2009. Elkhorn Ridge
Wind Facility generated 257,512 MWh net in 2015 and 260,004 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant capacity
factors of 36.8 percent and 37.0 percent, respectively.

Laredo Ridge Wind Facility
Description
Laredo Ridge Wind Facility is a nominally rated 80 MW wind energy facility located near Petersburg, Nebraska.
The District has agreements with other utilities for the purchase by such utilities of 19 MW of the 80 MW from
Laredo Ridge Wind Facility.
Operation
Laredo Ridge Wind Facility began supplying power and energy to the System in February 2011. Laredo Ridge
Wind Facility generated 325,666 MWh net in 2015 and 326,428 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant capacity
factors of 46.4 percent and 46.4 percent, respectively.

Springview II Wind Facility
Description
Springview II Wind Facility is a nominally rated 3 MW direct drive wind facility located near Springview,
Nebraska.
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Operation
Springview II Wind Facility began supplying power and energy to the System in October 2011. Springview II
Wind Facility generated 9,445 MWh net in 2015 and 10,694 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant capacity factors
of 35.6 percent and 40.6 percent, respectively.

Crofton Bluffs Wind Facility
Description
Crofton Bluffs Wind Facility is a nominally rated 42 MW wind energy facility located near Crofton, Nebraska.
The District has agreements with other utilities for the purchase by such utilities of 21 MW of the 42 MW from
Crofton Bluffs Wind Facility.
Operation
Crofton Wind Facility began supplying power and energy to the System in November 2012. Crofton Bluffs Wind
Facility generated 174,206 MWh net in 2015 and 177,442 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant capacity factors of
47.0 percent and 48.1 percent, respectively.

Broken Bow I Wind Facility
Description
Broken Bow I Wind Facility is a nominally rated 80 MW wind energy facility located in Custer County,
Nebraska. The District has agreements with other utilities for the purchase by such utilities of 29 MW of the 80 MW from
Broken Bow I Wind Facility.
Operation
Broken Bow I Wind Facility began supplying power and energy to the System in December 2012. Broken Bow I
Wind Facility generated 302,129 MWh net in 2015 and 312,275 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant capacity
factors of 43.1 percent and 44.4 percent, respectively.

Steele Flats Wind Facility
Description
Steele Flats Wind Facility is a nominally rated 75 MW wind energy facility located in Gage County and
Jefferson County, Nebraska. The District will take all the capacity and energy for the first 20 years of operation and
one percent of the capacity and energy for the remaining five years.
Operation
Steele Flats Wind Facility began supplying power and energy to the System in November 2013. Steele Flats
Wind Facility generated 315,358 MWh net in 2015 and 318,106 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant capacity
factors of 48.9 percent and 48.4 percent, respectively.

Broken Bow II Wind Facility
Description
Broken Bow II Wind Facility is a nominally rated 75 MW wind energy facility located in Custer County,
Nebraska. The District has a 25-year power purchase agreement with Broken Bow Wind II LLC for all of the output from
Broken Bow II Wind Facility. The District has an agreement with OPPD to sell it 45 MW of the output.
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Operation
Broken Bow II Wind Facility began supplying power and energy to the System in October 2014. Broken Bow II
Wind Facility generated 324,040 MWh net in 2015 and 333,042 MWh net in 2016, resulting in annual plant capacity
factors of 50.2 percent and 50.6 percent, respectively.

Cooper Nuclear Station
Cooper Nuclear Station is located approximately 65 miles south of Omaha, Nebraska, on the west bank of the
Missouri River. The nuclear plant contains a General Electric boiling water reactor with a Mark 1 containment system
which is designed to supply steam to a Westinghouse Electric Corporation turbine-generator. Based on SPP accreditation
criteria, the summer 2017 accredited net capability of Cooper Nuclear Station is 765 MW. The plant began commercial
operation in July 1974. Cooper Nuclear Station generated 6,800,771 MWh net in 2015 and 5,925,356 MWh net in 2016,
resulting in annual plant capacity factors of 101.0 percent and 87.7 percent based on the then current maximum
dependable capacity.
Licensing and Operation of Cooper Nuclear Station
In early 1974, the District received from the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC”) an Operating License to
operate Cooper Nuclear Station at 100 percent reactor core power. The Operating License, as amended, authorizes
operation of Cooper Nuclear Station at reactor core power levels not in excess of 2,419 MW (thermal), which is sufficient
to produce approximately 835.5 MW of gross electrical output. The Operating License was renewed in November 2010
and is valid through January 18, 2034. Cooper Nuclear Station entered the 20-year period of extended operation on
January 18, 2014. The renewed license incorporates radiological and environmental technical specifications defining the
operating parameters and the monitoring, surveillance, and reporting requirements that must be adhered to during the
license term for Cooper Nuclear Station. The Operating License contains a finding by the NRC that there is reasonable
assurance that operations authorized by the Operating License can be conducted without endangering the health and safety
of the public.
In October 2003, the District entered into an agreement (the “Entergy Agreement”) for support services at
Cooper Nuclear Station with Entergy, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of Entergy Corporation. In 2010, the Entergy
Agreement was amended and extended by the parties until January 18, 2029, subject to either party’s right to terminate
without cause by providing notice and paying a $20 million termination charge. The District has retained, pursuant to the
Entergy Agreement, the Operating License for Cooper Nuclear Station and the majority of the full-time employees have
remained employees of the District. Entergy is required to provide specified management personnel to Cooper Nuclear
Station, including the Chief Nuclear Officer, who reports directly to the District’s Chief Executive Officer. Entergy
provides a complement of approximately eight to ten employees at Cooper Nuclear Station. The Entergy Agreement
requires the District to reimburse Entergy’s costs of providing services, and to pay Entergy annual management fees.
Under the terms of the amended Entergy Agreement, Entergy earned a management fee of $18.5 million in 2016. This
amount will increase by an additional $1.0 million in 2019, and by an additional $3.0 million in 2024. Under the amended
Entergy Agreement, Entergy could also earn an additional annual incentive fee of up to $4.0 million per year, if Cooper
Nuclear Station achieves identified safety and regulatory performance targets. Entergy has achieved certain safety and
regulatory performance targets during the term of the Entergy Agreement and has been eligible for at least a portion of this
annual incentive fee.
Since the effective date of the Entergy Agreement, Entergy has provided a number of managers for various
functions at Cooper Nuclear Station. Entergy has also provided additional resources in the form of temporary employees
to respond to various plant needs in the areas of operations, maintenance, training, quality assurance, and other areas as
necessary. Management and staff at Cooper Nuclear Station also use Entergy’s nuclear programs and procedures as
District management determines is appropriate.
Impacts to the U.S. Nuclear Industry from Tsunami at Fukushima Dai-ichi Plants in Japan
Since the earthquake and tsunami of March 11, 2011, that impacted the Fukushima Dai-ichi Plants in Japan, the
District, as well as the rest of the nuclear industry, has been working to first understand the events that damaged the
reactors and associated fuel storage pools and then look to any changes that might be necessary at the United States
nuclear plants. Of particular interest is the performance of the General Electric boiling water reactor with Mark 1

40

containment systems in Japan and their on-site used fuel storage facilities. Cooper Nuclear Station utilizes this same
containment system; however, significant enhancements to the design have been made over the life of the plant.
Examples of improvements at Cooper Nuclear Station include strengthening the suppression pool (torus) from
1976 through 1982, increasing the capacity of the Station batteries in 1988 and 1989, installing a containment vent in 1992
that allows for the controlled venting of hydrogen in the event of its formation, adding a portable diesel powered water
pump in 2005 and two backup diesel generators, one in 2008 and a second larger unit in 2011. These improvements help
mitigate challenges envisioned in accident scenarios that are beyond the design basis of the plant. All of the emergency
diesel generators and their respective fuel supplies are housed in protective enclosures. These improvements are typical of
the many improvements made to the U.S. reactors and their containment systems over the last 30 years.
The NRC has determined that the U.S. fleet of all reactor types is considered safe for continued operations;
however, they have formed a task force to perform a systematic and methodical review to see if there are any near-term or
long-term changes that should be made to programs and regulations to further ensure protection of public health and
safety. After the events at the Japanese plants are fully investigated and understood, there may be additional requirements
promulgated for the current fleet of United States nuclear reactors.
A NRC Near-Term Task Force Review of Insights from the Fukushima Dai-ichi Accident was published on
July 12, 2011 that included 12 recommendations for improvements for U.S. reactors. Subsequent to that report, on
October 18, 2011, the NRC approved seven of the Task Force recommendations for implementation.
On March 12, 2012, the NRC issued three orders to the U.S. nuclear industry as a result of the Fukushima
Dai-ichi event in Japan. The first order requires all domestic nuclear plants to better protect supplemental safety equipment
and obtain additional equipment as necessary to protect the reactor in the event of beyond design basis external events.
The second order requires nuclear plant operators of boiling water reactors like Cooper Nuclear Station to modify reactor
licenses with regard to reliable hardened containment wetwell vents. The third order requires nuclear plant operators to
add reliable used fuel pool water level instrumentation. On that same date, the NRC requested information regarding
seismic and flood hazard reevaluations to include plant specific seismic and flood hazard facility inspections. In that same
letter, the NRC asked for information regarding the status of power supplies for emergency-related communications
systems to determine if any additional regulatory action was warranted.
Phase one and phase three of said order have been completed. Phase two of said order, which requires a drywell
vent or a basis and strategy for why venting the drywell would not be required, will be completed by the conclusion of the
fall 2018 refueling and maintenance outage.
Since the initial site-specific seismic reevaluation analysis for Cooper Nuclear Station that resulted in no
identified seismic-related modifications to Cooper Nuclear Station, the District has performed an additional seismic
analysis and has worked to answer additional questions from the NRC on this topic. The NRC has determined that Cooper
Nuclear Station will have to perform the High Frequency Evaluation and a Spent Fuel Pool Evaluation, but will not have
to complete a Seismic Probabilistic Risk Assessment. Unknown to the District at this time is the extent of modifications
that may be required as a result of these additional seismic reevaluations.
The District continues to work with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (the “Corps”) and the NRC to validate the
data necessary to complete the Cooper Nuclear Station flood hazard reevaluation. The District submitted its updated
flooding analysis to the NRC in February 2015. The NRC subsequently submitted questions to which the District has
responded and submittal of the updated flood hazard reevaluation was completed in September 2016. Based on current
interim, and long-term strategies for flooding mitigation, it is not expected that any modifications will be required as a
result of the flood hazard reevaluations. All equipment and materials required to mitigate the identified impacts associated
with the flood hazard reevaluation have been purchased and the equipment required has been installed. Additional
equipment purchased, but not required to be installed unless an issue occurs, is stored on-site in dedicated storage
facilities.
The District’s cost estimate for plant modifications associated with the NRC’s Fukushima Dai-ichi-related orders
is currently estimated to cost $25.6 million, which is expected to be funded primarily from the revenues of the District and
from the proceeds of General Bonds. As of December 31, 2016, $19.4 million has been spent on plant modifications with
an additional $6.2 million expected to be spent to establish compliance with the Fukushima Dai-ichi orders.
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Nuclear Fuel
The nuclear fuel cycle requirements for Cooper Nuclear Station’s 24-month operating cycles are satisfied
through the procurement of raw material in the form of natural uranium, conversion services of such material to uranium
hexafluoride, uranium hexafluoride that has already been converted from uranium, enrichment services, and fuel
fabrication and related services. The District purchases uranium and uranium hexafluoride on the spot market and carries
inventory in advance of the refueling requirements and schedule. The District has a full requirements contract with
Louisiana Energy Services for enrichment services for five reloads which started in 2016 and ends in 2024. The District
has contracted with Converdyn through 2021 for conversion services of uranium to uranium hexafluoride for a portion of
fuel requirements on a flexible schedule. In a portfolio procurement manner and in combination enough uranium,
conversion services, and uranium hexafluoride has been procured and is held in inventory for future delivery commitments
for reload batches through 2022 and partial requirements for 2024. The District terminated its contract with General
Electric Company that was assigned to Global Nuclear Fuels—Americas for fuel bundle fabrication and related services
through the 2018 reload and entered into a new contract with Global Nuclear Fuels—Americas with a General Electric
Company parental guaranty, for fuel bundle fabrication and related services through the end of the current Operating
License life of Cooper Nuclear Station on January 18, 2034.
Cooper Nuclear Station substantially completed the construction of a dry cask used fuel storage project in
December 2009 to support plant operations until 2034, which is the end of the Operating License. The first loading
campaign was completed in January 2011 and encompassed the loading of 488 used fuel assemblies from the Cooper
Nuclear Station used fuel pool into eight dry used fuel storage casks for on-site storage. A second loading campaign,
encompassing the loading of 610 used fuel assemblies into ten dry used fuel storage casks, began in April 2014 and was
completed in June 2014. The third loading campaign, encompassing the loading of 732 used fuel assemblies into 12 dry
used fuel storage casks, is scheduled to begin in June 2017.
As part of a settlement of various disputed matters between General Electric and the District, General Electric
has agreed to store at its storage facility in Morris, Illinois (the “Morris Facility”) the used nuclear fuel assemblies from
the first two full core loadings at Cooper Nuclear Station at no cost to the District until the expiration of the current license
for the Morris Facility. The license expires in May 2022. After the May 2022 date, storage will be at no cost to the District
so long as General Electric can maintain the NRC license for the Morris Facility on essentially the existing design and
operating configuration.
In the event General Electric is unsuccessful in its attempt to relicense the Morris Facility in its current
configurations, and storage of the bundles results in certain additional costs (“Incremental Costs”) to General Electric, then
the District shall be responsible for such Incremental Costs so long as General Electric stores the fuel at the Morris
Facility. In the event that General Electric removes the fuel from the Morris Facility, the District shall be entitled to
two years’ free storage following such removal, after which time the District must pay one-half of the costs for the storage
of the bundles at another temporary storage facility.
The Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 provides, among other things, the framework for the disposal of used
nuclear fuel and high-level radioactive waste generated by electric utilities. Such act authorizes the Department of
Energy (“DOE”), among other things, to enter into contracts with generators and owners of used fuel and high-level
radioactive waste for the acceptance of title, transportation, and disposal of such fuel or waste. Such contracts are to
provide for the payment of fees to the DOE to cover, among other things, expenditures associated with the development
and operation of a permanent repository or monitored retrievable storage facility. The act requires that the DOE establish
fees to cover all costs associated with the program. Pursuant to such act, the District has entered into two contracts with
the DOE. One contract applies to nuclear fuel assemblies from the first two full core loadings at Cooper Nuclear Station.
The second contract applies to all other nuclear fuel from Cooper Nuclear Station. The District can give no assurances that
a permanent or any interim facility to be developed by the DOE will be completed on a timely basis to provide the District
with capacity to store discharged used nuclear fuel.
Under the terms of the DOE contracts, the District was subject to a one mill per kWh fee on all energy generated
and sold by Cooper Nuclear Station which was paid on a quarterly basis to DOE. The District includes a component in its
wholesale and retail rates for the purpose of funding the costs associated with nuclear fuel disposal. While the District
expects that the revenues developed therefrom will be sufficient to cover the District’s responsibility for costs currently
outlined in the Nuclear Waste Policy Act, the District can give no assurance that such revenues will be sufficient to cover
all costs associated with the disposal of used nuclear fuel. On May 9, 2014, the DOE provided notice that they would
adjust the spent fuel disposal fee to zero mills per kWh effective May 16, 2014. Correspondingly, no additional payments
have been made to the DOE for fuel disposal since that date. The District, recognizing that there will be a future cost of
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disposal for spent nuclear fuel that is utilized post May 16, 2014, has continued to collect funds for fuel disposal at the
prior DOE rate of one mill per kWh. Such funds are being retained by the District for the purpose of future fuel storage or
disposal.
In the case of Northern States Power Co. v. United States Department of Energy, 128 F.3rd 754 (D.C. Cir. 1997),
the Court held that DOE has an unconditional obligation to dispose of contract holders’ used nuclear fuel beginning no
later than January 31, 1998. DOE failed to perform that obligation. The District and a number of other utilities commenced
litigation against DOE in the U.S. Court of Federal Claims for breach of its contractual obligations. In accordance with a
settlement agreement between the District and the DOE that was executed on May 18, 2011, the District has received
$106.8 million from the DOE for used nuclear fuel storage costs from 2009 through 2013. The settlement agreement
addressed future claims through 2013. On October 31, 2013, the District received an offer from the DOE to extend the
term of the settlement agreement through 2016. In 2015 and 2016, respectively, the District recovered an additional
$8.2 million and $3.2 million for 2014 and 2015 for used nuclear fuel storage costs. This brings the total amount recovered
to $118.2 million. On March 2, 2017, the District and the DOE agreed to extend the settlement agreement through 2019.
The District also reserves the right to pursue future costs through the contract claims process.
Nuclear Liability and Property Insurance
Liability insurance, applicable to claims for injuries and damages which could result from a nuclear incident at
Cooper Nuclear Station, is provided by American Nuclear Insurers (“ANI”), in the total amount of $450 million as
required by the NRC. Under the provisions of the Federal Price-Anderson Act, each licensee of a nuclear generating plant
within the United States may, in the event of a nuclear incident at any nuclear generating plant in the United States, be
assessed retrospective premiums for the purpose of providing a fund for paying claims made by the public in excess of the
primary $450 million coverage provided by ANI. Each licensee is required to provide a payment guarantee for any
retrospective premium obligation within the limits established by the Price-Anderson Act. If such a nuclear incident
should occur, the District could be assessed up to $127.3 million per incident, subject to a $19.0 million per reactor per
incident maximum assessment in any one calendar year. To satisfy the obligation regarding such payment guarantee, the
District maintains $19.0 million of available liquid assets for the payment guarantee. Under the Price-Anderson Act the
liability limit is $13.4 billion which will be indexed for inflation every five years. The NRC may, on a case-by-case basis,
assess a reduced annual deferred premium if more than one incident occurs or if there would be undue financial hardship
to the licensee or ratepayers of the licensee. If an annual deferred premium is reduced by the NRC, the amount of any such
reduction must be paid within a reasonable period of time with interest.
Effective January 1, 1998, the Master Worker Policy was issued by ANI. The Policy has an aggregate limit of
$450 million for the nuclear industry as a whole and will cover tort claims of workers who claim bodily injury, sickness,
or disease as a result of initial radiation exposure. The policy has a continuous term and no retrospective premium
assessment provision.
Property insurance for Cooper Nuclear Station is provided by Nuclear Electric Insurance Limited (“NEIL”). This
coverage is composed of a $1.5 billion primary property and decontamination liability insurance policy; a $600 million
excess decontamination liability, decommissioning liability, and excess property insurance policy for nuclear events and a
$600 million excess decontamination liability, decommissioning liability, and excess property insurance policy for
non-nuclear events. The excess policies are excess of the primary nuclear property insurance and provides a combined
limit of coverage equal to $2.1 billion. This property insurance is subject to a $5 million per occurrence deductible, and a
special natural hazards (windstorm, flood, earthquake, and volcanic eruption losses) deductible of $10 million and a
ten percent coinsurance factor for losses greater than $10 million.
Accidental Outage Insurance for Cooper Nuclear Station is provided by NEIL and provides insurance coverage
for an outage resulting from accidental property damage occurring to Cooper Nuclear Station, subject to policy terms and
conditions, which exceeds the 12-week policy deductible period. The policy provides a $3.0 million specified weekly
indemnity, with 100 percent of the specified weekly indemnity for the first 52 weeks and 80 percent of the specified
weekly indemnity thereafter, subject to a $420 million policy limit of liability for nuclear events and a $280.8 million
policy limit for non-nuclear events.
Decommissioning Costs
The District’s decommissioning funding plan is based upon a site-specific cost estimate for decommissioning of
Cooper Nuclear Station. Such plan assumes that (i) Cooper Nuclear Station’s plant operations end upon the expiration of
the current Operating License on January 18, 2034, (ii) the District will use the safe storage with delayed dismantlement
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decommissioning methodology, which is allowed under NRC regulations and in the District’s analysis will result in the
least cost to the District’s ratepayers, rather than immediate dismantlement, (iii) decommissioning costs will escalate at a
rate of 3 percent annually and that the District will realize a nominal rate of return of 5.5 percent on monies in the
decommissioning fund, and (iv) that the District’s requirements for decommissioning will include the cost of interim
storage of used fuel, dismantlement of nonradioactive structures and materials, and other post-shutdown contingency
costs, all of which are costs beyond that necessary to meet the NRC requirements for the District to terminate all
applicable NRC licenses. The present value in 2016 dollars of such estimated future costs of decommissioning pursuant to
the District’s site-specific plan, utilizing a discount rate of 3.0 percent, is $626.7 million, and includes $377.1 million to
meet NRC requirements for decommissioning under the safe store methodology and $249.6 million for those non-NRC
required decommissioning-related costs.
Pursuant to regulations promulgated by the NRC, the District established in 1990, an external trust fund
segregated from the District’s assets to accumulate amounts to pay the future decommissioning costs of Cooper Nuclear
Station. Investment earnings of the external trust fund stay in the fund. Until such time that the District provides written
certification to the NRC that plant operations have permanently ceased, the District is restricted from withdrawing any
monies from the fund except trustee and investment management fees. The NRC requires funding sufficient for the
dismantlement and disposal of radioactive structures and materials as necessary to terminate the District’s Operating
License. Utilizing the NRC’s generic formula, which assumes prompt dismantlement and disposal of radioactive structures
and materials, the cost for decommissioning Cooper Nuclear Station is estimated to be $607.9 million in 2016 dollars. The
District expects that sufficient funds will be available in accordance with the NRC decommissioning rules to
decommission Cooper Nuclear Station at the end of its current Operating License on January 18, 2034, and to pay the
expected future costs of removal and disposal of nonradioactive structures and materials beyond that necessary to
terminate the District’s license with the NRC, and other costs following shutdown of Cooper Nuclear Station, including
the cost of management and disposal of used fuel. It is expected that the costs of decommissioning, to include the
non-NRC required decommissioning-related costs, will be funded from monies accumulated in the decommissioning
accounts and investment earnings thereon, revenues, and other funds derived from the ownership and operations of Cooper
Nuclear Station.
As of December 31, 2016, the District has accumulated $581.8 million7 in the external trust for future
decommissioning costs. Because the District plans to decommission Cooper Nuclear Station using the safe storage with
delayed dismantlement decommissioning method rather than immediate dismantlement, the funds accumulated in the
external decommissioning fund are expected to be in excess of those needed to meet the NRC decommissioning
requirements and will be transferred during the period of decommissioning to an internal decommissioning fund as
permitted by the NRC.
With the Cooper Nuclear Station Operating License extended to January 18, 2034, given the current assumptions
for escalation and nominal rate of return, the currently available funds should be sufficient for decommissioning Cooper
Nuclear Station at that later date. The District intends to periodically review the costs and methods of funding as a result of
changing conditions and requirements for decommissioning.
The District has recorded an obligation for the fair value of its liability for asset retirement obligations associated
with Cooper Nuclear Station in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC”) 410. Amounts recorded as liabilities under ASC 410 are subject to numerous assumptions and
determinations, including the fair value of the costs of removal, estimating when final removal will occur, the rates to be
utilized to discount such future liabilities, etc. Changes may arise over time with regard to these assumptions and
determinations of decommissioning plans, resulting in changes in the present value estimates of such future liabilities. For
additional information with respect to the District’s asset retirement obligation for various of the District’s assets,
including Cooper Nuclear Station, see Footnote 13 of Notes to Financial Statements in Appendix A.
Low-Level Radioactive Waste Disposal
Cooper Nuclear Station produces low-level radioactive waste on a routine basis as a result of normal operations.
Low-level radioactive waste is classified from least radioactive which is Class A, to most radioactive which is Class C. In
2007, the District entered into a 15-year agreement with Energy Solutions, LLC to dispose of Class A low-level
radioactive waste produced at Cooper Nuclear Station. The disposal facility is located near Clive, Utah. In 2012 the Texas
Compact Waste Disposal Facility located near Andrews, Texas became operational to receive Class B and Class C
low-level radioactive waste. Cooper Nuclear Station continues to store Class B and Class C waste on-site.
7

Preliminary, subject to change. Based on unaudited financial information.
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NRC Reactor Oversight Process
The NRC currently evaluates nuclear plant performance with its Reactor Oversight Process (“ROP”). The
ROP monitors licensee performance in three broad strategic performance areas: (i) reactor safety—avoiding accidents and
reducing the consequences of accidents if they occur; (ii) radiation safety—protecting plant employees and the public
during routine operations; and (iii) safeguards—protecting the plant against sabotage or other security threats. The process
focuses on licensee performance within each of the seven cornerstones of safety included in the three strategic areas. The
seven cornerstones of safety include Initiating Events, Mitigating Systems, Barrier Integrity and Emergency
Preparedness (included under the Reactor Safety Strategic Area), Occupational Radiation Safety and Public Radiation
Safety (under the Radiation Safety Strategic Area), and Physical Protection (under the Safeguards Strategic Area).
To monitor these seven cornerstones, the NRC assigned colors of Green, White, Yellow, or Red to specific
performance indicators and inspection findings. For performance indicators, a Green coding indicates performance within
an expected performance level in which the related cornerstone objectives are met; White coding indicates performance
outside an expected range of nominal utility performance, but related cornerstone objectives are still being met; Yellow
coding indicates related cornerstone objectives are being met, but with a minimal reduction in safety margin; and Red
coding indicates a significant reduction in safety margin in the area measured by that performance indicator. For
inspection findings, Green findings are indicative of issues that, while they may not be desirable, represent very low safety
significance. White findings indicate issues that are of low to moderate significance. Yellow findings are issues that are of
substantial safety significance. Red findings represent issues that are of high safety significance with a significant
reduction in safety margin.
Results from the monitored cornerstones are compiled and published quarterly in the NRC’s ROP Action Matrix
Summary. The Action Matrix Summary reflects overall plant performance which is based on defined performance
indicators and inspection findings. Individual plant performance is segregated into one of five performance columns as
described below.
Best performing plants are included in the Licensee Response Column where routine inspector and staff
interaction is the norm. The Regulatory Response Column includes plants that have one or two White inputs in any
Cornerstone and no more than two White inputs in any strategic performance area. Plants in this column are subject to
NRC inspection follow-up of utility corrective actions. Plants in this column are expected to perform an evaluation of the
root and contributing causes for the collective issues.
The Degraded Performance Cornerstone Column includes plants that have three or more White inputs or
one Yellow input in any Cornerstone, or three White inputs in any Strategic Area. Plants in this column are required to
conduct a cumulative root cause evaluation with NRC oversight. Additional NRC inspections focused on the cause of
degraded performance are conducted.
The Multiple/Repetitive Degraded Cornerstone Column includes plants with a repetitive degraded cornerstone,
multiple degraded cornerstones, multiple Yellow inputs, or one Red input. Plants in this column are required to develop a
performance improvement plan with NRC oversight. An NRC team inspection, focused on the cause of the degraded
performance, will also be performed.
The Unacceptable Performance Column includes plants that have an unacceptable reduction in safety margin.
Plants in this column are not permitted to operate. An NRC meeting with senior utility management is mandated. An order
to modify, suspend, or revoke the license is also prescribed in regulation.
The NRC’s Fourth Quarter 2016 Regulatory Oversight Process Summary lists 91 nuclear units in the Licensee
Response Column, 6 units in the Regulatory Response Column, no units in the Degraded Performance Cornerstone
Column and three units in the Multiple/Repetitive Degraded Cornerstone Column. There are currently no units included in
the Unacceptable Performance Column. Cooper Nuclear Station is currently included with units in the Licensee Response
Column. Plants in the Licensee Response Column are subject to NRC baseline inspections.
On February 5, 2017, operators at the plant discovered that the minimum flow isolation valve for two pumps on
the Residual Heat Removal System were found closed and sealed. The required configuration for these valves is open and
sealed. The issue had existed for approximately four months, since early October during the 2016 fall refueling and
maintenance outage. The cause evaluation to determine how the issue occurred and actions to prevent recurrence is
ongoing at this time. During the week of March 13, 2017, the NRC Region IV conducted a special inspection, comprised
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of two inspectors, to investigate the recent Residual Heat Removal System Minimum Flow Valve issue to determine the
safety significance. If the issue is determined to be greater than a very low safety significance (a finding greater than
Green), Cooper Nuclear Station would move from the Licensee Response Column to the Regulatory Response Column of
the NRC’s Action Matrix for a period of one year. Plants in the Regulatory Response Column of the NRC’s Action Matrix
are subject to additional NRC inspections. Cooper Nuclear Station has been in the Licensee Response column since
January 1, 2012.
Refueling and Maintenance Outages
The most recent refueling and maintenance outage began on September 25, 2016 and was completed on
November 8, 2016. During this outage, in addition to replacing 184 fuel assemblies and conducting routine maintenance,
one of the two reactor water recirculation pump impellers and motor was replaced as well as the replacement of the startup
station transformer and the high pressure turbine.
The next refueling and maintenance outage is currently planned for the fall of 2018.

Transmission Facilities
The District currently owns and operates 5,267 miles of transmission and subtransmission lines encompassing
nearly the entire state of Nebraska. These facilities include the following:
Transmission

Miles

Subtransmission

Miles

345 kV
230 kV
115 kV

1,106
665
2,783

69.0 kV
34.5 kV

174
539

The District’s transmission network includes facilities energized at 115 kV or higher and operated as an
interconnected or networked electrical system. The District’s system is operated in coordination with the eastern
interconnected electrical network and is located on the far west end of the Eastern Interconnection. The Eastern
Interconnection spans a large portion of the Midwest, the entire eastern portions of the United States, portions of eastern
Canada, and is the largest interconnected grid in North America.
The District’s high-voltage transmission system provides direct interconnections to the following regional
utilities: OPPD, Lincoln, MidAmerican, Western, Tri-State, Basin Electric Power Cooperative (“Basin Electric”), KCPL,
Associated Electric Cooperative, Inc., Sunflower Electric Power Corporation, Midwest Energy, Inc., and Westar Energy.
The installed thermal capacity of these direct interconnections is nearly 15,000 MW. In addition, the District’s
transmission system has two direct current (“DC”) tie connections to the Western Electricity Coordinating Council
transmission grid. The DC tie connections, which are owned by Tri-State and Western, provide for limited transfer
capability between the Eastern and Western Interconnections.
The District’s subtransmission facilities are operated at 34.5 kV and 69 kV and function as a radial power
delivery system to provide for power deliveries primarily to the District’s firm network load customers, which include
rural public power districts, municipal systems, retail cities and towns, and large industrial customers.
The District has accepted an SPP Notice to Construct a major 345 kV transmission line addition to its system.
The project specifies the construction of approximately 225 miles of 345 kV transmission line from the District’s
Gerald Gentleman Station, north to a new substation to be sited adjacent to an existing substation east of Thedford, then
eastward to a new substation in Holt County interconnected to an existing 345 kV line owned by Western. This project is
preliminarily estimated to cost $364 million. Construction is expected to begin in 2017 and is expected to be in service in
2019. This project will strengthen the reliability of the District’s transmission system, reduce transmission congestion, and
allow for the integration of future renewable generation in an area of the state that lacks transmission access.
The District has accepted a Notice to Construct from SPP for a new 345/115 kV transmission project in the
Scottsbluff area. This project includes a new 345/115 kV substation and transformer adjacent to the existing Stegall
345 kV substation owned by Basin Electric and approximately 22 miles of new 115 kV transmission line from Stegall to
the existing Scottsbluff substation owned by the District. This project is preliminarily estimated to cost $35.0 million.
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Construction commenced in September 2016 and is expected to be in service in June 2017. This project will enhance the
reliability of the transmission system in western Nebraska.
The District has accepted a Notice to Construct from SPP for a new 115 kV transmission project from
Broken Bow to Ord. This project includes approximately 40 miles of new 115 kV transmission line, one new substation,
and one substation expansion. This project is estimated to cost $30 million and is expected to be in service in March 2018.
This project will enhance the reliability of the transmission system in central Nebraska.
The SPP Notice to Construct projects have been or are expected to be funded from General Bonds with a
substantial amount of the debt service to be reimbursed by SPP based on SPP’s load sharing cost methodologies. For
additional information relating to SPP and its cost allocation methodologies, see “POWER, TRANSMISSION, AND
CERTAIN OTHER AGREEMENTS—SPP Membership.”
Excluding the Notices to Construct, the District currently estimates it will be investing approximately
$40 million per year from 2017 through 2022 in the District’s transmission network. A portion of these costs will be
funded from General Bonds.

Environmental and Other Permits and Approvals
Water Discharge Permits
The Federal Clean Water Act contains requirements with respect to effluent limitations relating to the discharge
of any pollutant and to the environmental impact of cooling water intake structures. These requirements include, among
other things, that with certain exceptions, new and existing sources shall not, after certain specified dates, discharge heated
water into the waters of the United States in excess of state water quality standards. Pursuant to Section 316(a) of this act,
less stringent limitations on thermal discharges may be imposed by the Nebraska Department of Environmental
Quality (“NDEQ”) if there is adequate demonstration that the requirements proposed for the control of thermal discharge
are more stringent than necessary to assure protection and propagation of fish and wildlife. The NDEQ establishes the
requirements for the District’s compliance with the Clean Water Act through issuance of National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (“NPDES”) permits. NDEQ issued the District seven NPDES permits for the following
facilities: Gerald Gentleman Station, Sheldon Station, Cooper Nuclear Station, Beatrice Power Station, Canaday Station,
Kearney Hydro and the North Platte Office Building. Five of these facilities have storm water management plans. Cooper
Nuclear Station and Gerald Gentleman Station have received Section 316(a) waivers.
Section 316(b) of the Clean Water Act requires that NPDES permits for facilities with cooling water intake
structures ensure that the location, design, construction, and capacity of the structures reflect the Best Technology
Available (“BTA”) to minimize harmful impacts on fish and other aquatic life as the result of impingement or entrainment.
The Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) issued the final rule under Section 316(b) on August 15, 2014. Under the
final rule Gerald Gentleman Station, Cooper Nuclear Station, and Canaday Station must identify the chosen compliance
method for each facility. Canaday Station has been identified in the July 11, 2016 draft NPDES permit as a de minimis
plant for impingement, and no additional controls will be required for the facility. An entrainment biological study is
required for Cooper Nuclear Station. Gerald Gentleman Station has been exempted from the entrainment study in the
October 1, 2016 NPDES permit. After the entrainment technology determination is made by the NDEQ, the District will
select the impingement compliance option for Cooper Nuclear Station and Gerald Gentleman Station. An impingement
technology performance optimization study will be required for Cooper Nuclear Station and Gerald Gentleman Station.
The study will take two years to complete after the control technology is installed. The District anticipates some level of
fish protection equipment technology installation, both for impingement and entrainment, may be necessary for Cooper
Nuclear Station and only for impingement at Gerald Gentleman Station. Until the final compliance options are determined,
the District does not know the financial impact of this regulation.
On January 2, 2016, the final Steam Electric Power Plant Effluent Guidelines rule (the “Effluent Rule”) became
effective. The Effluent Rule revises the technology-based effluent limitation guidelines and standards that would
strengthen the existing controls on discharges from steam-electric power plants and sets the first federal limits on the
levels of toxic metals in wastewater that can be discharged from power plants, based on technology improvements in the
steam-electric power industry over the last three decades. Generally, the Effluent Rule establishes new or additional
requirements for wastewater streams from the following processes and byproducts associated with steam-electric power
generation: flue gas desulfurization, fly ash, bottom ash, flue gas mercury control, and gasification of fuels such as coal
and petroleum coke.
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The Effluent Rule establishes effluent guidelines for arsenic, mercury, selenium, and nitrogen for wastewater
discharged from wet scrubber systems (flue gas desulfurization waste stream) and zero discharge of pollutants in ash
transport water that must be incorporated into the plants’ NPDES permits. The Effluent Rule also establishes
zero discharge pollutant limits for flue gas mercury control wastewater, and stringent limits on arsenic, mercury, selenium,
and total dissolved solids in coal gasification wastewater based on evaporation technology.
While the District facilities subject to the Effluent Rule are Cooper Nuclear Station, Gerald Gentleman Station,
Sheldon Station, and Canaday Station, the Effluent Rule has no impact on Cooper Nuclear Station, Gerald Gentleman
Station, or Canaday Station. Sheldon Station will be required to be a zero discharge facility for bottom ash transport water
by December 31, 2023. The District is currently analyzing the options for compliance, which is estimated to cost
$2.4 million.
Operating Permits
The Clean Air Act Amendments Title V Operating Permit Program established the requirements for an affected
facility having to obtain a Title V Operating Permit. The NDEQ has issued Title V Operating Permits for the following
facilities: Gerald Gentleman Station, Beatrice Power Station, Canaday Station, Hebron Peaking Unit and McCook Peaking
Unit. The Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department (“LLCHD”) has issued a Title V Operating Permit for Sheldon
Station, which also includes the Hallam Peaking Unit. The operating permits require each facility to operate and maintain
all air pollution control equipment pursuant to Nebraska Air Pollution Control Rules and Regulations and to comply with
any new or amended applicable Rules and Regulations.
Acid Rain Permits
The Clean Air Act Amendments Title IV established a regulatory program, known as the Acid Rain Program, to
address the effects of acid rain and impose restrictions on SO2 emissions and nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) emissions. Acid
Rain Permits have been issued by the NDEQ for the following facilities: Gerald Gentleman Station, Canaday Station and
Beatrice Power Station. The LLCHD issued an Acid Rain Permit for Sheldon Station. The Acid Rain Permits allow for the
discharge of SO2 at each facility pursuant to an allowance system. An allowance is an authorization to emit one ton of SO2
during or after a specified year. The EPA allocates a set of allowances to each affected unit based on its historic emissions.
The District expects to have sufficient allowances for its generating facilities through 2020, but may be required to
purchase additional allowances in the future.
CSAPR Program
The EPA issued a rule in 2012 which is referred to as the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (“CSAPR”) that would
require significant reductions in SO2 and NOx emissions in a number of states, including Nebraska. CSAPR was litigated
for a number of years, including a U.S. Supreme Court decision which in effect upheld CSAPR.
CSAPR compliance periods went into effect on January 1, 2015. Gerald Gentleman Station and Sheldon Station
burn low sulfur Powder River Basin coal. The District installed low NOx burners on Gerald Gentleman Station Unit No. 1
in 2006 and Unit No. 2 in 2012. The low NOx burners have reduced the NOx emissions from Gerald Gentleman Station by
more than 50 percent. The District installed an over-fire air system on Sheldon Station Unit No. 1 and Unit No. 2. Based
on the current CSAPR allocation methodology and current generation projections through 2021, the District expects to
have sufficient CSAPR allowances to cover affected facilities emission requirements over that timeframe, but may be
required to purchase additional allowances in the future.
Mercury and Air Toxics Standards
On February 16, 2012, the EPA issued a final rule intended to reduce emissions of toxic air pollutants from
power plants. The Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (“MATS”) Rule will reduce emissions from new and existing
coal- and oil-fired steam utility electric generating units of heavy metals, including mercury, arsenic, chromium, nickel,
dioxins, furans, and acid gases, including hydrogen chloride and hydrogen fluoride. These toxic air pollutants are also
known as hazardous air pollutants.
For all existing and new coal-fired electric generating units, the MATS Rule establishes numerical emission
limits for mercury, particulate matter, a surrogate for toxic non-mercury metals, and hydrogen chloride, a surrogate for
acid gases. Sheldon Station and Gerald Gentleman Station are currently in compliance with the MATS Rule.
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For all existing and new oil-fired electric generating units, the MATS Rule establishes numerical emission limits
for total metals, hydrogen chloride, and hydrogen fluoride. The District’s Canaday Station was a natural gas and oil-fired
facility. The District decided to remove all fuel oil from the site. Canaday Station will no longer consume fuel oil, but
instead will only combust natural gas. As a result, additional emission controls will not need to be installed at Canaday
Station as a result of the MATS Rule.
Regional Haze
The EPA issued final regulations for a Regional Haze Program in June 1999. The purpose of the regulations is to
improve visibility in the form of reducing regional haze in 156 national parks and wilderness areas (“Class I areas”) across
the country. Haze is formed, in part, from emissions of SO2 and NOx. Because these pollutants can be transported over
long distances, all 50 states, including those that do not have Class I areas, will have to participate in planning, analysis,
and in many cases, emission control programs under the regional haze rule. The District’s Sheldon Station Unit No. 1 and
Gerald Gentleman Station Units No. 1 and No. 2 are subject to the first phase of Regional Haze evaluation. Sheldon
Station Unit No. 2 is not subject to the first phase evaluation due to its initial start-up date. Canaday Station and Beatrice
Power Station will also not be affected in the first phase of the Regional Haze Program. In 2006, the District completed
computer modeling showing that the emissions from Gerald Gentleman Station Units No. 1 and No. 2 contribute to
visibility impairment in Class I areas, but the emissions from Sheldon Station Unit No. 1 do not. The NDEQ confirmed
these results. An analysis was conducted to determine what additional emission control technology would be appropriate
to install at Gerald Gentleman Station Units No. 1 and No. 2 to reduce emissions of SO2 and NOx. The Best Available
Retrofit Technology (“BART”) Report was submitted to the NDEQ in August 2007 and a revised report was submitted in
February 2008. The BART Report proposed that the Best Available Retrofit Technology to meet regional haze
requirements at Gerald Gentleman Station would be low NOx burners on Units No. 1 and No. 2 and no additional controls
for SO2. Low NOx burners have now been installed on both units at Gerald Gentleman Station. The NDEQ State
Implementation Plan (“SIP”) agreed with the BART Report. The NDEQ submitted the SIP to the EPA for approval on
June 30, 2011.
On May 30, 2012, the EPA issued a rule pertaining to the Regional Haze Program that would approve the trading
program in CSAPR as an alternative to determining BART for power plants. As a result, states in the CSAPR region may
substitute the trading program in CSAPR for source-specific BART for SO2 and/or NOx emissions as specified by CSAPR.
On July 6, 2012, the EPA issued the final rule on the Nebraska Regional Haze SIP. The final rule approved the
Gerald Gentleman Station NOx portion of the SIP but disapproved the SO2 portion of the SIP for Gerald Gentleman
Station. The EPA issued a Federal Implementation Plan (“FIP”) for Gerald Gentleman Station which stated that BART for
SO2 control at Gerald Gentleman Station is compliance with CSAPR. In a letter dated March 21, 2016, the EPA issued a
request for information and documents relating to Gerald Gentleman Station under Section 114(a) of the Clean Air Act.
The information and documents have been provided.
On January 10, 2017, the EPA issued final changes to the Regional Haze regulations for the upcoming
second planning phase of the rule. The District is evaluating the proposed changes but will not know the full impact to the
District until the State and the EPA begin implementing the second phase of the Regional Haze rule. The State of
Nebraska is required to submit their SIP for the second phase of the Regional Haze rule by July 31, 2021.
On January 19, 2017, EPA Region 7 issued a proposed modification to the July 6, 2012 Regional Haze FIP. The
proposed changes would require the District to install SO2 controls on both units at Gerald Gentleman Station within
five years of the proposed FIP being finalized. The SO2 controls are intended to assist neighboring states to meet their
Regional Haze reasonable progress goals. The District is currently evaluating the proposed changes. The proposed changes
have not yet been published in the Federal Register and due to the hold issued by the Trump administration on all
proposed regulations yet to be published in the Federal Register, it may be at least 60 days before the proposed changes
will appear in the Federal Register or it is possible the proposed FIP could be withdrawn.
National Ambient Air Quality Standards
On June 14, 2012, the EPA proposed new particulate matter 2.5 (“PM2.5”) National Ambient Air Quality
Standard (“NAAQS”) and issued a final rule on December 14, 2012. The EPA lowered the annual PM2.5 standard to
12 micrograms per cubic meter (µg/m3) and retained the 24-hour standard of 35 µg/m3. The EPA is currently in the
process of implementing the new standard. The District will identify and evaluate any potential impacts to the District
once the EPA is further along in implementing the new standard. The impact to District facilities is unknown at this time.
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On January 22, 2010, the EPA added a 1-hour nitrogen dioxide (“NO2”) NAAQS of 100 ppb. The District does
not anticipate that this standard will impact the District’s major generating facilities.
On June 2, 2010, EPA replaced the annual and 24-hour primary SO2 NAAQS with a new 1-hour SO2 NAAQS
set at 75 ppb. On September 4, 2015, the District submitted SO2 modeling data for Gerald Gentleman Station showing the
facility in compliance with the new 1-hour SO2 NAAQS. On September 11, 2015, the District submitted SO2 modeling
data for Sheldon Station along with a consent decree between the District and the NDEQ. The modeling data showed the
facility in compliance with the new 1-hour standard based on the compliance requirements described in the consent decree.
The consent decree required the District to increase the stack heights at Sheldon Station Unit No. 1 and Sheldon Station
Unit No. 2. On July 31, 2016, the EPA issued its designations for Gerald Gentleman Station and Sheldon Station. The
EPA designated Gerald Gentleman Station as attainment/unclassifiable. The EPA classified Sheldon Station as
unclassifiable and must follow the Data Requirements Rule in order to show attainment with the 1-hour SO2 NAAQS. The
District is currently working with the NDEQ and LLCHD to site and begin operating a ground level SO2 monitor near
Sheldon Station. The monitor will measure ground level SO2 concentrations from January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2019.
The EPA will then issue a final designation based on the three years of measured concentrations. Based on air dispersion
modeling with the increased stack heights, the District expects that the monitor will show attainment with the standard.
On October 26, 2015, EPA lowered the ozone NAAQS to 70 ppb. States are currently in the process of
determining the areas in non-attainment with the new standard. Based on current monitoring data there does not appear
there will be any non-attainment areas within Nebraska.
New Source Review
As part of EPA’s nationwide investigation and enforcement program for coal-fired power plants’ compliance
with the Clean Air Act including new source review requirements, on December 4, 2002, the Region 7 office of the EPA
sent a letter to the District and three other electric utilities pursuant to Section 114(a) of the Federal Clean Air Act
requesting documents and information pertaining to Gerald Gentleman Station and Sheldon Station. On April 10, 2003,
Region 7 of the EPA sent a supplemental request for documents and information to the District and the other three electric
utilities. These EPA requests for information are part of an EPA investigation to determine the Clean Air Act compliance
status of Gerald Gentleman Station and Sheldon Station, including the potential application of new source review
requirements. The District provided the documents and information requested to the EPA within the time allowed. As a
supplement to the 2002 and 2003 requests, EPA Region 7 sent another letter to the District on November 8, 2007,
requesting additional documents and information pertaining to Gerald Gentleman Station and Sheldon Station. The
District provided a response to the new request within the time allowed and provided supplemental information to EPA in
February and April 2011 in response to an EPA email inquiry. By letter dated December 8, 2008, EPA Region 7 sent a
Notice of Violation (“NOV”) to the District which alleges that the District violated the Clean Air Act by undertaking
five projects at Gerald Gentleman Station from 1991 through 2001 without obtaining the necessary permits. In February
and August 2009, District representatives met with federal government representatives to discuss the NOV and no
additional meetings have been scheduled. In general, enforcement action by EPA against the District for alleged
noncompliance with Clean Air Act requirements, if upheld after court review, can result in the requirement to install
expensive air pollution control equipment that is the BART and the imposition of monetary penalties ranging from
$25,000 to $32,500 per day for each violation. The District cannot determine at this time whether it will have any future
financial obligation with respect to the NOV.
On July 22, 2016, EPA Region 7 sent a new 114(a) request for documents and information regarding the
compliance status of Gerald Gentleman Station. On December 27, 2016, EPA Region 7 sent a 114(a) follow-up request for
additional information on certain projects that were identified in the July 22, 2016 114(a) request. The EPA is reviewing
whether there have been physical or operational changes since November 8, 2007 which resulted in, or could result in,
increased emissions including projects underway or planned for the next two years. The District is in the process of
gathering responsive documents and information. Failure to comply with the Clean Air Act can result in fines as described
above and/or requirements to install additional emission control equipment. The District believes Gerald Gentleman
Station has been operated and maintained in compliance with the requirements of the Clean Air Act.
Global Climate Change
On March 29, 2010, EPA declared its position that air pollutants that are regulated under the Clean Air Act under
any program must be taken into account when considering permits issued under other programs, such as the Prevention of
Significant Deterioration (“PSD”) permit program. A PSD permit is required before commencement of construction of
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new major stationary sources or major modifications of such sources. As a result of this determination, the effect of the
new motor vehicle rule will be to require the analysis of emissions and control options with respect to Green House
Gas (“GHG”) emissions from new and modified major stationary sources as of January 2, 2011, which is the date the new
motor vehicle rule took effect. Permitting requirements for GHGs will include, but are not limited to, the application of
Best Available Control Technology (“BACT”) for GHG emissions and monitoring, reporting, and record keeping for
GHGs.
On May 13, 2010, EPA issued a final rule for determining the applicability of the PSD program to
GHG emissions from major sources. The rule, known as the “Tailoring Rule,” establishes criteria for identifying facilities
required to obtain PSD permits and the emissions thresholds at which permitting and other regulatory requirements apply.
Sources that are subject to PSD or Title V permits due to their non-GHG emissions (such as fossil-fuel based
electric generating facilities for their NOx, SO2, and other emissions) must address GHG emissions in new permit
applications or renewals. Construction or modification of major sources are also subject to PSD requirements for their
GHG emissions if the construction or modification results in a net increase in the overall mass of GHG emissions
exceeding 75,000 tons per year on a CO2 equivalent basis. New and modified major sources required to obtain a
PSD permit are required to conduct a BACT review for their GHG emissions. The EPA issued guidance in
November 2010 on the technologies or operations that would constitute BACT for GHGs. A PSD permit would require the
installation of BACT for GHGs. At this time, since there does not exist any commercially available CO2 capture and
sequester technology, BACT would be some kind of facility efficiency requirements. These would have to be negotiated
with the NDEQ and EPA and placed in the PSD permit. Currently, with respect to Title V requirements, the final Tailoring
Rule does not amend or reinterpret existing Title V regulations on transitions to new pollution control requirements.
On October 30, 2009, the EPA published the final rule for mandatory monitoring and annual reporting of
GHG emissions from various categories of facilities including fossil-fuel suppliers, industrial gas suppliers, direct
GHG emitters (such as electric generating facilities and industrial processes), and manufacturers of heavy-duty and
off-road vehicles and engines. This rule does not require controls or limits on emissions, but requires data collection which
began on January 1, 2010. Annual reports are due by March 31 each year.
The EPA reached a legal settlement to establish New Source Performance Standards (“NSPS”) for new and
modified power plants and emission guidelines for existing power plants. In addition to the NSPS requirements established
for new and modified sources, EPA must establish emission guidelines that states use to develop plans for reducing
emissions from existing sources. On April 13, 2012, the EPA proposed a NSPS for new fossil-fuel-fired electric utility
generating units (“EGUs”). The proposed rule would limit CO2 emissions from new EGUs to less than 1,000 pounds of
CO2 per MWh (lbs/MWh). In the proposed rule, the EPA stated that the rule would affect only new EGUs and not existing
or modified units. Although new natural gas combined cycle plants could meet such standards, coal-fired plants could only
meet them with carbon capture and sequestration, which at the present time is not commercially available. On June 25,
2013, President Obama directed the EPA to issue a new proposed GHG NSPS for new power plants by September 20,
2013. On February 8, 2014, the EPA issued a revised GHG NSPS proposed rule for new power plants. The revised
NSPS rule sets CO2 limits of 1,000 lbs/MWh for large natural gas combined cycle facilities, 1,100 lbs/MWh for small
natural gas combined cycle facilities and 1,100 lbs/MWh for coal-fired power plants. On October 23, 2015, the EPA
published the final NSPS rule for new EGUs. The final rule set a limit of 1,400 lbs CO2/MWh for coal-fired power plants
and 1,000 lbs CO2/MWh for all natural gas combined cycle facilities.
On October 23, 2015, the EPA published the final Clean Power Plan (“CPP”) rule addressing CO2 reductions
from existing fossil-fueled power plants in the Federal Register. The final rule gives states significant responsibility for
determining how to achieve the reduction targets through the development of a State Plan. Each state has been given a
reduction target to be achieved by 2030 with interim reductions required between 2022 and 2029. The Nebraska reduction
target for 2030 is 40 percent below 2012 emissions.
On February 9, 2016, the Supreme Court issued a stay for the CPP until all legal challenges have been decided.
The D.C. Circuit Court of Appeals heard oral arguments on September 27, 2016, with a decision expected in early 2017.
An initial State Plan was due September 6, 2016 providing a general outline of potential compliance options the State is
considering. States can also request a two-year extension when submitting their initial plan making the final State Plan due
September 6, 2018. If the CPP is upheld, the rule deadlines will likely be extended by the length of the stay. Due to the
stay, the NDEQ has halted work on the State Plan. The District expects that its generation from coal-fired units will
decrease and its generation from natural gas may increase under the final rule but it is not possible to determine the impact
of the final rule on the District until the legal issues are ultimately decided and the NDEQ develops the State Plan and it
receives EPA approval.
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Solid Waste Disposal
The NDEQ has issued permits to the District to establish and operate disposal areas for solid waste and ash at
Sheldon Station and Gerald Gentleman Station. Additionally, the District’s ash landfills are regulated under the new Coal
Combustion Residual (“CCR”) regulation.
The CCR rule was published in the Federal Register on April 17, 2015. The compliance requirements of the rule
became effective on October 19, 2015. The final rule does not regulate CCR as a hazardous waste, instead it is regulated
under Subtitle D. This resulted in relatively minor impacts on District operations to dispose of CCR due to the stringency
of the current Nebraska solid waste landfill requirements. In 2015, the District completed a lateral expansion of the
Gerald Gentleman Station ash landfill. The District is in full compliance with the applicable requirements of the new
CCR regulations and the State of Nebraska Title 132 landfill requirements.
Federal Legislation
As necessary, the District will make application to the appropriate federal, state and local authorities for any
permits, certifications, and renewals required by federal and state law and regulations for the operations of District
facilities, and the construction of capital additions and improvements thereto.
Any changes in the environmental regulatory requirements imposed by federal or state law which are applicable
to the District’s generating facilities could result in increased capital and operating costs being incurred by the District.
The District is unable to predict whether any changes will be made to current environmental regulatory requirements, if
such changes will be applicable to the District and the costs thereof to the District.
Missouri River Water Control Manual
The Corps controls the flows in the Missouri River through its Missouri River Master Water Control
Manual (“Master Manual”), as revised in 2004, issued by the Corps under the federal Flood Control Act of 1944 and its
operation of the Missouri River main stem reservoir system. Implementation of the revised Master Manual by the Corps
has not resulted in any negative effects to the operation of Cooper Nuclear Station.
FERC Hydroelectric Project Licenses
On July 29, 1998, the FERC issued a new 40-year license for the District’s hydroelectric Project No. 1835, which
includes diversion dams on the North and South Platte Rivers, Sutherland Reservoir, Lake Maloney, certain canals and
adjacent lands, and the North Platte hydro-generating station consisting of two units with a combined maximum power
capability of 26 MW. The North Platte hydro-generating station is part of the System. Also, on July 29, 1998, the FERC
issued a new 40-year license for Central’s Kingsley Dam Project No. 1417. The Kingsley Project has an accredited
capacity rating of 37 MW.
In issuing the new licenses, the FERC approved a settlement agreement which included environmental conditions
in the new licenses. In general, the conditions required Central to dedicate a block of water in Lake McConaughy for
wildlife species and habitat enhancement purposes and required both the District and Central to acquire and develop
certain lands for wildlife management purposes.

CERTAIN FACTORS AFFECTING THE ELECTRIC UTILITY INDUSTRY
The Electric Utility Industry Generally
The electric utility industry has been, and in the future may be, affected by a number of factors which could
impact the financial condition and competitiveness of electric utilities, such as the District. Such factors include, among
others, (i) effects of compliance with changing environmental, safety, licensing, regulatory, and legislative requirements,
(ii) changes resulting from energy efficiency and demand-side management programs on the timing and use of electric
energy, (iii) other federal and state legislative and regulatory changes, (iv) increased wholesale competition from
independent power producers and marketers and brokers, (v) “self-generation” by certain industrial and commercial
customers, (vi) issues relating to the ability to issue tax-exempt obligations, (vii) severe restrictions on the ability to sell to
nongovernmental entities electricity from generation projects financed with outstanding tax-exempt obligations,

52

(viii) changes from projected future load requirements, (ix) increases in costs, (x) shifts in the availability and relative
costs of different fuels, (xi) inadequate risk management procedures and practices with respect to, among other things, the
purchase and sale of energy, fuel, and transmission capacity, (xii) effects of financial instability of various participants in
the power market, (xiii) climate change and the potential contributions made to climate change by coal-fired and other
fossil-fueled generating units, (xiv) increased regulation of nuclear power plants in the United States resulting from the
earthquake and tsunami damage to certain nuclear power plants in Japan, and (xv) issues relating to cyber and physical
security. Any of these general factors and the factors discussed below (as well as other factors) could have an effect on the
financial condition of the District. For additional information, see “THE SYSTEM” and “SYSTEM GENERATION,
TRANSMISSION, AND OTHER FACILITIES.”

Federal Power Act Requirements
Energy Policy Act of 2005
The Energy Policy Act of 2005 established a new Section 211A in the FPA which gives FERC new jurisdiction
over unregulated transmitting utilities. The District is defined as an unregulated transmitting utility under Section 211A. In
its Order 890 issued in February 2007 and 890-A Order on Rehearing issued in December 2007, FERC stated that it does
not intend to propose a generic rule at this time to implement Section 211A. Rather, FERC will apply Section 211A on a
case-by-case basis in response to complaints brought to FERC. FERC stated it will maintain the same reciprocity
provisions for nonpublic utility transmission providers, like the District, that it first established in Order 888.
Section 211A gives FERC the authority to order an unregulated transmitting utility to provide transmission
services at rates and on terms and conditions that are comparable to those under which the unregulated transmitting utility
provides service to itself and that are not unduly discriminatory and preferential. Section 211A makes the rate changing
procedures applicable to public utilities under subsections (c) and (d) of Section 205 of the FPA applicable to the
unregulated transmitting utilities. FERC can remand transmission rates to the unregulated transmitting utility for review
and revisions if necessary to meet the requirements described above. FERC cannot require the District to take action under
Section 211A that would violate a private activity bond rule application to the District’s indebtedness. Further, nothing in
the Energy Policy Act of 2005 authorizes FERC to require the District to transfer control or operational control of its
transmission facilities to a regional transmission organization or independent transmission system operator.
FERC Order No. 890 implements revisions to FERC’s Open Access Transmission Tariff (“OATT”) and
regulations first adopted in its Order Nos. 888 and 889 in 1996 for jurisdictional public utilities. FERC stated in Order
No. 890 that it expects unregulated transmission providers like the District to participate in the open and transparent
regional transmission planning processes described in Order No. 890. The District, as a member of SPP, is included in
SPP’s transmission expansion plan which satisfies FERC’s Order 890 regional transmission planning requirements.
The District is subject to FPA Section 221 which prohibits filing or reporting of false information to a federal
agency related to the price of wholesale electricity or transmission capacity. The District is also subject to
FPA Section 222 which prohibits fraud and market manipulation in the purchase or sale of electric energy or transmission
service that is subject to FERC jurisdiction.
FERC certified NERC as the nation’s electric reliability organization to develop mandatory reliability standards
for all users, owners, and operators of the transmission grid subject to FERC approval. FERC issued a final rule in Order
No. 693 which approved certain mandatory electric reliability standards. The standards are mandatory and under
FERC’s jurisdiction. The District can be subject to a monetary penalty for noncompliance with such standards.
The Energy Policy Act of 2005 also (a) authorizes FERC to order refunds for certain wholesale sales of 31 days
or less which may include certain District sales if such sales violate FERC-approved tariffs or FERC rules; (b) allows load
serving entities holding certain firm transmission rights to continue to use those rights to meet service obligations for
native loads; and (c) authorizes FERC to issue construction permits for transmission projects located in “national interest
electric transmission corridors” (to be designated by the DOE in circumstances where the applicable state or regional
siting agency does not timely authorize a project or imposes unreasonable conditions). The District is not currently
included within any such designated transmission corridor. For additional information, see “POWER, TRANSMISSION,
AND CERTAIN OTHER AGREEMENTS—SPP Membership.”
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Competitive Environment in Nebraska
While wholesale competition is expected to increase in the future, there is a Nebraska statute that prohibits
competition for retail customers. Pursuant to state statutes, retail suppliers of electricity have exclusive rights to serve
customers at retail in their respective service territories. Any transfer of retail customers or service territories between
retail electric suppliers may be done only upon agreement of the respective retail electric suppliers and/or pursuant to an
order of the Nebraska Power Review Board. While state statutes do not provide for wholesale suppliers of electricity to
have exclusive rights to serve a particular area or customer at wholesale, wholesale power suppliers are permitted to
voluntarily enter into agreements with other wholesale power suppliers limiting the areas or customers to whom they may
sell energy at wholesale. The District has entered into several such agreements. For additional information, see “RECENT
DEVELOPMENTS—Nebraska Legislature.”

NEBRASKA POWER REVIEW BOARD
The Nebraska Power Review Board was created in 1963 and consists of five members appointed by the
Governor subject to approval by the Legislature. The statutes creating the Nebraska Power Review Board declare that in
order to provide the citizens of Nebraska with adequate electric service at as low an overall cost as possible it is the policy
of the state to avoid and eliminate conflict and competition between retail suppliers of electricity, to avoid and eliminate
duplication of facilities and resources, and to facilitate the settlement of rate disputes. Pursuant to these statutes, suppliers
of electricity in adjoining areas, including the District, have entered into agreements with each other specifying the areas
or customers which they may serve at retail. Modifications of, and disputes between suppliers involving these agreements
and service areas are subject to Nebraska Power Review Board jurisdiction and disposition. The statutes provide that in the
event of any dispute between suppliers concerning rates for service, the Nebraska Power Review Board is given
jurisdiction to hold hearings and to make recommendations which shall be advisory only.
Under the Act, it is declared state policy that District transmission and interconnection facilities at 34.5 kV and
higher will be provided and made available to Nebraska power agencies, and further that the District shall make available
to other Nebraska power agencies surplus capacity in transmission lines and facilities, and interconnections therewith, for
transmitting and delivering electric energy to any Nebraska power agency under a contract and at rates and charges set by
the District. Any disputes regarding such access and use of transmission lines, facilities and interconnections, and the
contracts for such wheeling services, are subject to Nebraska Power Review Board jurisdiction and disposition, except for
the setting of rates and charges for such services, which authority remains with the District.
The Nebraska Power Review Board has the jurisdiction to order the transfer of customers, distribution facilities,
and retail service area from one power supplier to another power supplier, provided that no transfer of such customers and
facilities may be made by the Nebraska Power Review Board if the transfer would impair the obligations of the power
supplier to holders of its bonds.
Existing statutes allow wholesale power suppliers to enter into agreements limiting the areas in which, or the
customers to whom, a party to the agreement may sell electric energy at wholesale. Such agreements require approval of
the Nebraska Power Review Board. Pursuant to this legislation, the District has entered into several such agreements.
The Nebraska Power Review Board must approve the construction of any electric generation facilities or any
transmission lines or related facilities carrying more than 700 volts. Such approval is not required in certain cases
including the construction of certain generation facilities of not more than 25 MW being constructed to replace a plant
owned by a municipality, or transmission line extensions or related facilities within the supplier’s own service area or for
construction of a line not exceeding one-half mile outside its own service area when all owners of electric lines located
within one-half mile of the extension consent thereto.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING FOR THE 2017 SERIES A/B BONDS
Pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the SEC under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
District and the Trustee will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement to be dated the date of the issuance and
delivery of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. The Continuing Disclosure Agreement requires the District to provide certain
financial information and operating data relating to the District not later than 180 days after the end of the District’s fiscal
year which is presently the calendar year (the “Annual Information”), and to provide notice of the occurrence of certain
enumerated events. The specific nature of the information to be contained in the Annual Information and the notice of
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events is set forth in the form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement which is included in its entirety in Appendix D hereto.
The Annual Information and notices of such material events is required to be filed by or on behalf of the District with the
MSRB through EMMA. To its knowledge, in the last five years, the District has not failed to comply in any material
respect with its undertakings pursuant to a continuing disclosure agreement executed by the District in connection with the
sale of any other Bonds except the District discovered in 2013 that it inadvertently did not file notices of certain bond
insurer rating changes, both downgrades and upgrades, which changes caused the ratings on the Bonds of the District
insured by such bond insurers to be downgraded or withdrawn or upgraded, as applicable. Additionally, in connection with
the issuance of its General Revenue Bonds, 2016 Series A and 2016 Series B on February 9, 2016, the District
inadvertently did not file notice on EMMA of the upgrade by S&P Global Ratings, a division of Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services of the ratings on the Bonds of the District within ten business days of such rating change. On April 22,
2016, the District filed its 2015 Annual Report reflecting the current rating status on such Bonds. To its knowledge, the
District has filed all such notices reflecting the current rating status on such Bonds.

VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS
Chris D. Berens, CPA, P.C., a firm of independent public accountants, will deliver to the District on or before the
settlement date of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, its attestation report indicating that it has examined, in accordance with
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the information provided by the District
and its representatives. Included in the scope of its examination will be a verification of the mathematical accuracy of
(i) the mathematical computations of the adequacy of the cash and the maturing principal of and interest on, the investment
securities deposited pursuant to the 2017 Series A/B Escrow Deposit Agreement to pay, when due, the maturing principal
of, interest on and related call premium requirements of the 2007 Series B Bonds and (ii) the mathematical computations
supporting the conclusion of Bond Counsel that the interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds is excluded from gross income
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).
The examinations performed by Chris D. Berens, CPA, P.C. will be solely based upon data, information, and
documents provided to Chris D. Berens, CPA, P.C. by the District and its representatives. The Chris D. Berens, CPA, P.C.
report of its examination will state that Chris D. Berens, CPA, P.C. has no obligation to update the report because of
events occurring, or data or information coming to their attention, subsequent to the date of the report.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR
Ramirez & Co., Inc., New York, New York, is the District’s financial advisor for the 2017 Series A/B Bonds.
The financial advisor has provided the District advice on the plan of financing and reviewed the pricing of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds. The financial advisor has not independently verified the information contained in this Official
Statement and does not assume responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or fairness of such information. The financial
advisor’s fees for serving as financial advisor are not contingent upon the issuance of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds.

UNDERWRITING
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and the other Underwriters have jointly and severally agreed, subject to
certain conditions, to purchase the 2017 Series A/B Bonds from the District and to make a bona fide public offering of
such 2017 Series A/B Bonds at not in excess of the public offering prices (or yields corresponding to such prices) set forth
on the inside cover page of this Official Statement. Aggregate underwriters’ compensation under the contract of purchase
for the 2017 Series A Bonds is $65,024.19, and for the 2017 Series B Bonds is $214,893.19. The 2017 Series A/B Bonds
may be offered and sold to certain dealers, banks and others (including underwriters and other dealers depositing such
2017 Series A/B Bonds into investment trusts) at prices lower than such initial offering prices and such initial offering
prices may be changed from time to time by the Underwriters of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds.
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association and the other Underwriters have provided the following information to
the District for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service
financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include sales and trading, commercial and investment
banking, advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, market making,
brokerage and other financial and non-financial activities and services. Certain of the Underwriters and their respective
affiliates have provided, and may in the future provide, a variety of these services to the District and to persons and entities
with relationships with the District, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses.
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Wells Fargo Securities is the trade name for certain securities-related capital markets and investment banking
services of Wells Fargo & Company and its subsidiaries, including Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, which
conducts its municipal securities sales, trading and underwriting operations through the Wells Fargo Bank, NA Municipal
Products Group, a separately identifiable department of Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission as a municipal securities dealer pursuant to Section 15B(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, acting through its Municipal Products Group (“WFBNA”) the senior
underwriter of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, has entered into an agreement (the “WFA Distribution Agreement”) with its
affiliate, Wells Fargo Clearing Services, LLC (which uses the trade name “Wells Fargo Advisors”) (“WFA”), for the
distribution of certain municipal securities offerings, including the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. Pursuant to the
WFA Distribution Agreement, WFBNA will share a portion of its underwriting compensation with respect to the
2017 Series A/B Bonds with WFA. WFBNA has also entered into an agreement (the “WFSLLC Distribution Agreement”)
with its affiliate Wells Fargo Securities, LLC (“WFSLLC”), for the distribution of municipal securities offerings,
including the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. Pursuant to the WFSLLC Distribution Agreement, WFBNA pays a portion of
WFSLLC’s expenses based on its municipal securities transactions. WFBNA, WFSLLC, and WFA are each whollyowned subsidiaries of Wells Fargo & Company.
WFBNA has extended credit to the District in unrelated transactions.
In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the Underwriters and their respective affiliates,
officers, directors and employees may purchase, sell or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade securities,
derivatives, loans, commodities, currencies, credit default swaps and other financial instruments for their own account and
for the accounts of their customers, and such investment and trading activities may involve or relate to assets, securities
and/or instruments of the District (directly, as collateral securing other obligations or otherwise) and/or persons and
entities with relationships with the District. The Underwriters and their respective affiliates may also communicate
independent investment recommendations, market color or trading ideas and/or publish or express independent research
views in respect of such assets, securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they
should acquire, long and/or short positions in such assets, securities and instruments. Such investment and securities
activities may involve securities and instruments of the District.
Morgan Stanley, parent company of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC., one of the Underwriters of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds, has entered into a retail distribution arrangement with its affiliate Morgan Stanley Smith Barney
LLC. As part of the distribution arrangement, Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC may distribute municipal securities to retail
investors through the financial advisor network of Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC. As part of this arrangement,
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC may compensate Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC for its selling efforts with respect to the
2017 Series A/B Bonds.
US Bancorp is the marketing name of U.S. Bancorp and its subsidiaries, including U.S. Bancorp Investments,
Inc., which is serving as an Underwriter of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. U.S. Bancorp is the parent company of U.S. Bank
National Association, which has extended credit to the District in unrelated transactions.
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, an Underwriter of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, is an affiliate
of Bank of America, N.A., which has extended credit to the District in unrelated transactions.

FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES
The Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”) imposes certain requirements that must be met subsequent to
the issuance and delivery of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain excluded pursuant to
Section 103(a) of the Code from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal and State of Nebraska income tax
purposes. Noncompliance with such requirements could cause the interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds to be included in
the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds. The District has covenanted in the General Resolution to comply with each applicable
requirement of the Code necessary to maintain the exclusion of the interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds from the gross
income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes.
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In the opinion of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance
with the aforementioned covenant, interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds is excluded pursuant to Section 103(a) of the
Code from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal and State of Nebraska income tax purposes. Bond Counsel is
also of the opinion that the interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds will not be treated as an item of tax preference for
purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Code.
Interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds owned by a corporation will be included in such corporation’s adjusted
current earnings for purposes of calculating the alternative minimum taxable income of such corporation, other than an
“S” corporation, a qualified mutual fund, a real estate investment trust, a real estate mortgage investment conduit, or a
financial asset securitization investment trust. A corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income is the basis on which
the alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Code will be computed.
Existing law may change to reduce or eliminate the benefit to bondholders of the exclusion of interest on the
2017 Series A/B Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Any proposed legislation or administrative
action, whether or not taken, could also affect the value and marketability of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. Prospective
purchasers of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to any proposed or future
changes in tax law.
Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of issuance of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds or the tax consequences of the
ownership of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. No assurance can be given that pending or future legislation, or amendments to
the Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed legislation or amendments to the Code, will not contain provisions that
could directly or indirectly reduce the benefit of the exclusion of the interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds from the gross
income of the owners thereof for federal or State of Nebraska income tax purposes. Furthermore, Bond Counsel will
express no opinion as to any federal, state, or local tax law consequences with respect to the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, or the
interest thereon, if any action is taken with respect to the 2017 Series A/B Bonds or the proceeds thereof upon the advice
or approval of other counsel.
Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds is excluded from the gross
income of the owners thereof for federal and State of Nebraska income tax purposes, an owner’s federal, state, or local tax
liability may otherwise be affected by the ownership or disposition of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. The nature and extent of
these other tax consequences will depend upon the owner’s other items of income or deduction. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, prospective purchasers of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds should be aware that (i) Section 265 of
the Code denies a deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry the 2017 Series A/B
Bonds and the Code contains additional limits on interest deductions applicable to financial institutions that own
tax-exempt obligations (such as the 2017 Series A/B Bonds), (ii) with respect to insurance companies subject to the tax
imposed by Section 831 of the Code, Section 832(b)(5)(B)(i) reduces the deduction for loss reserves by 15 percent of the
sum of certain items, including interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, (iii) interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds earned
by certain foreign corporations doing business in the United States could be subject to a branch profits tax imposed by
Section 884 of the Code, (iv) passive investment income, including interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, may be subject
to federal income taxation under Section 1375 of the Code for Subchapter S corporations that have Subchapter C earnings
and profits at the close of the taxable year if greater than 25 percent of the gross receipts of such Subchapter S corporation
is passive investment income, (v) Section 86 of the Code requires recipients of certain Social Security and certain Railroad
Retirement benefits to take into account, in determining the taxability of such benefits, receipts or accruals of interest on
the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, and (vi) under Section 32(i) of the Code, receipt of investment income, including interest on
the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, may disqualify the recipient thereof from obtaining the earned income credit. Bond Counsel
has expressed no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences.
Bond Counsel’s opinion is not a guarantee of a result, but represents its legal judgment based upon its review of
existing statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions, and the covenants of the District described above. No
ruling has been sought from the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS” or the “Service”) with respect to the matters
addressed in the opinion of Bond Counsel, and Bond Counsel’s opinion is not binding on the Service. The Service has an
ongoing program of auditing the tax-exempt status of the interest on municipal obligations. If an audit of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds is commenced, under current procedures, the Service is likely to treat the District as the
“taxpayer,” and the owners would have no right to participate in the audit process. In responding to or defending an audit
of the tax-exempt status of the interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, the District may have different or conflicting
interests from the owners of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. Public awareness of any future audit of the 2017 Series A/B
Bonds could adversely affect the value and liquidity of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds during the pendency of the audit,
regardless of the ultimate outcome.
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The purchase price of certain 2017 Series A/B Bonds (the “Premium Bonds”) paid by an owner may be greater
than the amount payable on such Bonds at maturity. An amount equal to the excess of a purchaser’s tax basis in a
Premium Bond over the amount payable at maturity constitutes premium to such purchaser. The basis for federal income
tax purposes of a Premium Bond in the hands of such purchaser must be reduced each year by the amortizable bond
premium, although no federal income tax deduction is allowed as a result of such reduction in basis for amortizable bond
premium. Such reduction in basis will increase the amount of any gain (or decrease the amount of any loss) to be
recognized for federal income tax purposes upon a sale or other taxable disposition of a Premium Bond. The amount of
premium which is amortizable each year by a purchaser is determined by using such purchaser’s yield to maturity.
Purchasers of the Premium Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the determination of
amortizable bond premium on Premium Bonds for federal income tax purposes and with respect to the state and local tax
consequences of owning and disposing of Premium Bonds.

APPROVAL OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
All legal matters incident to the authorization and issuance of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds are subject to the
approval of Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP, New York, New York, Bond Counsel, whose final approving opinion will be
delivered at the closing of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds, and John C. McClure, Esq., Columbus, Nebraska, General Counsel
to the District. Certain legal matters with respect to the Underwriters shall be passed upon by Nixon Peabody LLP,
New York, New York.

RATINGS
Moody’s Investors Service, S&P Global Ratings, a division of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC, and
Fitch Ratings have given the ratings of A1, A+ and A+, respectively, to the 2017 Series A/B Bonds. Such ratings reflect
only the view of such organizations, and an explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained only from the
respective rating agency. There is no assurance that such ratings will be maintained for any given period of time or that
they will not be revised downward or be withdrawn entirely by the respective rating agency if, in its judgment,
circumstances so warrant. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of such ratings may have an adverse effect on the
market price of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds.

MISCELLANEOUS
Periodic public reports relating to the financial condition of the District, its operations and the balances,
revenues, and disbursements of the various funds of the District are prepared by the District from time to time. Copies of
such reports and additional information concerning the District’s financial affairs may be obtained upon request from
Nebraska Public Power District, 1414 15th Street, Columbus, Nebraska 68601, Attention: Treasurer; provided, however,
that for the avoidance of doubt, such reports and additional information are not deemed incorporated by reference herein
or part of this Official Statement.
The delivery of this Official Statement has been duly authorized by the District.

NEBRASKA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT

/s/ Traci L. Bender
Treasurer
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APPENDIX A
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of the
Nebraska Public Power District:
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nebraska Public Power District (the “District”) which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of revenues, expenses,
and changes in net position, and statements of cash flows for the years then ended.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the District as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
The accompanying supplemental schedules on pages A-28 and A-29 are required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

St. Louis, Missouri
April 14, 2016
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Nebraska Public Power District

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Nebraska Public Power District
Balance Sheets as of December 31, (in 000’s)

2015

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .....................................................................
Investments ...........................................................................................
Receivables, less allowance for doubtful accounts
of $515 and $497, respectively ..............................................................
Fossil fuels, at average cost ...................................................................
Materials and supplies, at average cost ...................................................
Prepayments and other current assets ....................................................
Special Purpose Funds:
Construction funds .................................................................................
Debt reserve funds .................................................................................
Employee benefit funds ..........................................................................
Decommissioning funds .........................................................................
Utility Plant, at Cost:
Utility plant in service .............................................................................
Less reserve for depreciation ...................................................................
Construction work in progress .................................................................
Nuclear fuel, at amortized cost ................................................................
Other Long‑Term Assets:
Regulatory asset for asset retirement obligation ........................................
Regulatory asset for other postemployment benefit obligation ....................
Long‑term capacity contracts .................................................................
Unamortized financing costs ...................................................................
Investment in The Energy Authority .........................................................
Other ....................................................................................................
Total Assets .................................................................................
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Unamortized cost of refunded debt ..........................................................
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS ...........................................

$

85,060
400,426
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A-2

$

90,079
336,753

110,089
39,335
117,430
11,938
764,278

122,686
36,574
121,764
12,131
719,987

76,503
91,772
3,344
567,348
738,967

143,490
95,463
4,055
565,544
808,552

4,751,016
2,620,091
2,130,925
209,626
168,420
2,508,971

4,674,500
2,533,100
2,141,400
151,712
202,094
2,495,206

32,323
121,595
172,966
8,654
7,018
11,083
353,639
4,365,855

459,991
125,747
179,938
10,278
7,895
16,557
800,406
4,824,151

40,775
$ 4,406,630

26,794
$ 4,850,945

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION
Current Liabilities:
Revenue bonds, current ..........................................................................
$
114,860
Notes and credit agreements, current ......................................................
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..................................................
63,614
Accrued in lieu of tax payments ..............................................................
9,948
Accrued payments to retail communities .................................................
6,087
Accrued compensated absences ............................................................
16,857
Other ....................................................................................................
7,492
218,858
Long‑Term Debt:
Revenue bonds, net of current .................................................................
1,596,972
Notes and credit agreements, net of current .............................................
241,700
1,838,672
Other Long‑Term Liabilities:
Asset retirement obligation .....................................................................
600,311
Other postemployment benefit obligation ..................................................
121,595
Other ....................................................................................................
5,164
727,070
Total Liabilities .............................................................................
2,784,600
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unearned revenues ................................................................................
176,118
Other deferred inflows .............................................................................
113,728
289,846
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets ..............................................................
866,699
Restricted .............................................................................................
40,492
Unrestricted ..........................................................................................
424,993
1,332,184
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET POSITION .................
$ 4,406,630
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

2014

$

109,835
185,503
58,073
10,040
6,148
16,569
9,508
395,676
1,710,850
92,000
1,802,850
1,026,357
127,247
6,043
1,159,647
3,358,173
177,143
74,505
251,648

770,514
43,889
426,721
1,241,124
$ 4,850,945

Nebraska Public Power District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the years ended December 31, (in 000’s)
Operating Revenues ...................................................................................
Operating Expenses:
Power purchased ...................................................................................
Production:
Fuel .................................................................................................
Operation and maintenance ................................................................
Transmission and distribution operation and maintenance ..........................
Customer service and information ............................................................
Administrative and general ......................................................................
Payments to retail communities ..............................................................
Decommissioning ..................................................................................
Depreciation and amortization .................................................................
Payments in lieu of taxes .......................................................................
Operating Income .......................................................................................
Investment and Other Income:
Investment income .................................................................................
Other income ........................................................................................
Increase in Net Position Before Debt and Other Expenses .............................
Debt and Other Expenses:
Interest on long‑term debt ......................................................................
Allowance for funds used during construction ...........................................
Bond premium amortization net of debt issuance expense .........................
Other expenses .....................................................................................
Increase in Net Position ..............................................................................
Net Position:
Beginning balance .................................................................................
Ending balance ......................................................................................

2015

2014

$ 1,097,216

$ 1,122,454

166,587

174,348

198,557
242,787
87,259
17,213
66,291
26,552
14,720
130,247
10,046
960,259
136,957

211,984
281,671
83,839
17,502
59,372
26,874
18,522
126,440
10,141
1,010,693
111,761

18,952
3,403
22,355
159,312

22,634
3,405
26,039
137,800

80,485
(3,414)
(10,392)
1,573
68,252
91,060
1,241,124
$ 1,332,184

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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85,777
(2,857)
(9,295)
1,813
75,438
62,362
1,178,762
$ 1,241,124

Nebraska Public Power District
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, (in 000’s)

2015

2014

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from customers and others .......................................................
Other receipts .......................................................................................
Payments to suppliers and vendors .........................................................
Payments to employees .........................................................................
Net cash provided by operating activities .............................................

$ 1,101,150
8,082
(498,959)
(237,770)
372,503

$ 1,158,887
2,279
(563,034)
(235,767)
362,365

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments ...................................
Purchases of investments .......................................................................
Income received on investments ..............................................................
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .................................

597,190
(591,330)
5,101
10,961

879,579
(1,082,215)
3,535
(199,101)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of bonds ............................................................
Proceeds from notes and credit agreements .............................................
Capital expenditures for utility plant .........................................................
Contributions in aid of construction and other reimbursements ...................
Principal payments on long‑term debt .....................................................
Interest payments on long‑term debt .......................................................
Interest paid on defeasance debt .............................................................
Principal payments on notes and credit agreements .................................
Interest payments on notes and credit agreements ...................................
Other non‑operating revenues .................................................................
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities ........................
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents .........................................
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ...............................................
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ........................................................

$

261,189
10,363
(175,744)
12,575
(349,425)
(81,800)
(21,268)
(46,166)
(1,611)
3,404
(388,483)
(5,019)
90,079
85,060

$

424,358
65,006
(211,966)
29,423
(400,790)
(88,766)
(21,536)
(39,220)
(1,786)
3,403
(241,874)
(78,610)
168,689
90,079

$

136,957

$

111,761

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Cash Provided By Operating Activities:
Operating income ..................................................................................
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization ............................................................
Undistributed net revenue ‑ The Energy Authority .................................
Decommissioning, net of customer contributions ..................................
Amortization of nuclear fuel ................................................................
Changes in assets and liabilities which (used) provided cash:
Receivables, net ...........................................................................
Fossil fuels ..................................................................................
Materials and supplies ..................................................................
Prepayments and other current assets ...........................................
Other long‑term assets .................................................................
Accounts payable and accrued payments to retail communities ........
Unearned revenues .......................................................................
Other deferred inflows ....................................................................
Other liabilities .............................................................................
Net cash provided by operating activities .............................................
Supplementary Non‑Cash Capital Activities:
Change in utility plant additions in accounts payable .................................
The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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$

$

130,247
(956)
14,720
47,626

126,440
(1,200)
18,522
44,169

5,973
(2,761)
4,334
(40)
850
(2,443)
(1,025)
36,715
2,306
372,503

$

(10,943)
(623)
1,320
(690)
809
(57)
75,282
(1,763)
(662)
362,365

$

(27,016)

7,924

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
A. Organization Nebraska Public Power District (“District”), a public corporation and a political subdivision of the State of
Nebraska, operates an integrated electric utility system which includes facilities for the generation, transmission,
and distribution of electric power and energy to its Retail and Wholesale customers. The control of the District and
its operations is vested in a Board of Directors (“Board”) consisting of 11 members popularly elected from districts
comprising subdivisions of the District’s chartered territory. The Board is authorized to establish rates.
B. Basis of Accounting The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”) for
accounting guidance provided by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) for proprietary funds
of governmental entities. In the absence of established GASB pronouncements, other accounting literature is
followed including guidance provided in the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”).
The District applies the accounting policies established in the GASB codification Section Re10, Regulated
Operations. This guidance permits an entity with cost-based rates and Board authorization to include revenues or
costs in a period other than the period in which the revenues or costs would be reported by an unregulated entity.
C. Revenue Retail and wholesale revenues are recorded in the period in which services are rendered. Revenues and
expenses related to providing energy services in connection with the District’s principal ongoing operations are
classified as operating. All other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating and reported as
investment and other income or debt and other expenses on the Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes
in Net Position.
D. Cash and Cash Equivalents The District considers highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents in the Special Purpose Funds are reported as investments.
E. Fossil Fuel and Materials and Supplies The District maintains inventories for fossil fuels, and materials and supplies which are valued at average cost.
Obsolete inventory is expensed and removed from inventory.
F. Utility Plant, Depreciation, Amortization, and Maintenance Utility plant is stated at cost, which includes property additions, replacements of units of property and betterments.
The District charges maintenance and repairs, including the cost of renewals and replacements of minor items of
property, to maintenance expense accounts when incurred. Upon retirement of property subject to depreciation,
the cost of property is removed from the plant accounts and charged to the reserve for depreciation, net of
salvage.
The District records depreciation over the estimated useful life of the property primarily on a straight-line basis.
Depreciation on utility plant was approximately 2.6% for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. The
District had fully depreciated utility plant, primarily related to CNS, which was still in service of $867.5 million and
$802.0 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The District owns and operates the electric distribution system in one of the 80 municipalities that it serves at
retail. In addition, the District has long-term Professional Retail Operations (“PRO”) Agreements with
79 municipalities for certain retail electric distribution systems. These PRO Agreements obligate the District to
make payments based on gross revenues from the municipalities and pay for normal property additions during the
term of the agreements. The District recorded provisions, net of retirements, for amortization of these plant
additions of $6.3 million and $6.5 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively, which was included in depreciation and
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amortization expense. These plant additions, which were fully depreciated, totaled $180.9 million and $176.1
million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
G. Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC”) This allowance, which represents the cost of funds used to finance construction, is capitalized as a component of
the cost of the utility plant. The capitalization rate depends on the source of financing. The rate for construction
financed with revenue bonds is based upon the interest cost of each bond issue less interest income.
Construction financed on a short-term basis with tax-exempt commercial paper (“TECP”), or taxable revolving
credit agreement (“TRCA”) is charged a rate based upon the projected average interest cost of TECP or TRCA
outstanding. For the periods presented herein, the AFUDC rates for construction funded by revenue bonds varied
from 2.2% to 4.9%. For construction financed on a short-term basis with TECP, the rates ranged from 1.0% to
1.25%.
H. Nuclear Fuel Nuclear fuel inventories are included in utility plant. The nuclear fuel cycle requirements are satisfied through the
procurement of raw material in the form of natural uranium, conversion services of such material to uranium
hexafluoride, uranium hexafluoride that has already been converted from uranium, enrichment services, and fuel
fabrication and related services. The District purchases uranium and uranium hexafluoride on the spot market and
carries inventory in advance of the refueling requirements and schedule. Nuclear fuel in the reactor is being
amortized on the basis of energy produced as a percentage of total energy expected to be produced. Fees for
disposal of fuel in the reactor are being expensed as part of the fuel cost.
I. Unamortized Financing Costs These costs include issuance expenses for bonds which are being amortized over the life of the respective bonds
using the bonds outstanding method. Deferred unamortized financing costs associated with bonds refunded are
amortized using the bonds outstanding method over the shorter of the original or refunded life of the respective
bonds. Regulatory accounting, GASB codification section Re10, Regulated Operations, is used to amortize these
costs over their respective periods.
J. Asset Retirement Obligations –
Asset retirement obligations (“ARO”) represent the fair value of the District’s legal liability associated with the
retirement of CNS, various ash landfills at its two coal-fired power stations, and the removal of asbestos at its
various generating facilities.
K. Auction Revenue Rights and Transmission Congestion Rights –
The District uses Auction Revenue Rights (“ARR”) and Transmission Congestion Rights (“TCR”) in the Southwest
Power Pool (“SPP”) Integrated Market to hedge against transmission congestion charges. These financial
instruments were primarily designed to allow firm transmission customers the opportunity to offset price
differences due to transmission congestion costs between resources and loads. Awarded ARR provide a fixed
revenue stream to offset congestion costs. TCR can be acquired through the conversion of ARR or purchases
from SPP auctions or secondary market trades.
L. Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources are consumptions of assets that are applicable to future reporting periods and
consist of unamortized cost of refunded debt. The cost of refunded debt is the difference in the reacquisition price
and the net carrying amount of the refunded debt in an advance refunding. Unamortized costs of refunded debt
were $40.8 million and $26.8 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Deferred inflows of resources are acquired assets that are applicable to future reporting periods and consist of
regulatory liabilities for unearned revenues and other deferred inflows. Other deferred inflows include Cooper
Nuclear Station (“CNS”) outage collections, Department of Energy (“DOE”) settlement, and nuclear fuel disposal
collections.
The District is required under the General Revenue Bond Resolution (“Resolution”) to charge rates for electric
power and energy so that revenues will be at least sufficient to pay operating expenses, aggregate debt service
on the General Revenue Bonds, amounts to be paid into the Debt reserve fund and all other charges or liens
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payable out of revenues. In the event the District’s rates for wholesale service result in a surplus or deficit in
revenues during a rate period, such surplus or deficit, within certain limits, may be retained in a rate stabilization
account. Any amounts in excess of the limits will be taken into account in projecting revenue requirements and
establishing rates in future rate periods. Such treatment of wholesale revenues is stipulated by the District’s
long-term wholesale power supply contracts. The District accounts for any surplus or deficit in revenues for retail
service in a similar manner.
The following table summarizes the balance of Unearned revenues as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and
activity for the years then ended (in 000’s):
2015
Unearned revenues, beginning of year .............................................................. $
Surpluses .....................................................................................................
Use of prior period rate stabilization funds in rates ............................................
Direct refund to customers ..............................................................................
Unearned revenues, end of year ...................................................................... $

177,143
10,975
(12,000)
176,118

2014
$

$

101,861
91,401
(14,300)
(1,819)
177,143

The DOE settlement regulatory liability was established for the reimbursement from the DOE for costs incurred by
the District in conjunction with the disposal of spent nuclear fuel from CNS. Details of the District’s DOE
settlement are included in Note 12 in the Notes to Financial Statements.
Beginning in 2015, the District began collecting revenues for the costs of the 2016 CNS refueling and
maintenance outage. This regulatory liability is included in Other deferred inflows on the Balance Sheets and will
be eliminated through revenue recognition during the 2016 outage year.
The District includes in rates the costs associated with nuclear fuel disposal. Such collections were remitted to the
DOE under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act until the DOE adjusted the spent fuel disposal fee to zero, effective
May 16, 2014. The Board authorized the use of regulatory accounting for the continued collection of these costs.
This approach ensures costs are recognized in the appropriate period with customers receiving the benefits from
CNS paying the appropriate costs. The expense for spent nuclear fuel disposal is recorded at the previous DOE
rate based on net electricity generated and sold and the regulatory liability will be eliminated when payments are
made for spent nuclear fuel disposal. Additional details of the District’s DOE spent nuclear fuel collections are
included in Note 12 in the Notes to Financial Statements.
The following table summarizes the balance of Other deferred inflows of resources as of December 31, 2014 and
2015 and activity for 2015 (in 000’s):
DOE settlement ............................................. $
CNS outage collections ...................................
Nuclear fuel disposal collections ......................
$

2014
71,324
3,181
74,505

Additions
8,177
24,688
6,358
$
39,223

$

Reductions
$
$
-

$

$

2015
79,501
24,688
9,539
113,728

M. Net Position Net position is made up of three components: Net investment in capital assets, Restricted, and Unrestricted.
Net investment in capital assets consisted of utility plant assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by
the outstanding balances of any bonds or notes that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of these assets. This component also included long-term capacity contracts net of the outstanding
balances of any bonds or notes attributable to these assets.
Restricted net position consisted of the Primary account in the Debt reserve funds that are required deposits
under the Resolution, and the Decommissioning funds net of any related liabilities.

22
A-7

Unrestricted net position consisted of any remaining net position that does not meet the definition of Net
investment in capital assets or Restricted, and are used to provide for working capital to fund non-nuclear fuel and
inventory requirements, as well as other operating needs of the District.
N. Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.
O. Recent Accounting Pronouncements –
GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local
Governments, was issued in June 2015. This Statement establishes the hierarchy of GAAP for state and local
governments. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2015, and was adopted by
the District in 2015. The implementation of this Statement did not have a material impact on the District’s financial
statements.
GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,
was issued in June 2015. The requirements of this Statement will improve accounting and financial reporting for
other postemployment benefits (“OPEB”). This Statement requires the liability for defined benefit OPEB (net
OPEB liability) to be measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be provided to
current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employees’ past periods of service (total OPEB
liability), less the amount of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position. Enhanced disclosures and additional required
supplementary information are also required under the Statement. This Statement is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2017. The District will early adopt this Statement in 2016 and apply regulatory
accounting to match the recording of OPEB costs to the period in which they are recovered in rates.
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, was issued in February 2015. The
requirements of this Statement will enhance comparability of financial statements by requiring measurement of
certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a consistent and more detailed definition of fair value and accepted
valuation techniques. This Statement also will enhance fair value application guidance and related disclosures to
provide information to financial statement users about the impact of fair value measurements on financial position.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15,
2015, and were adopted by the District in 2015. The implementation of this Statement did not have a significant
impact on the District as FASB guidance was previously applied and was similar to the GASB guidance.
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, provides guidance for the accounting
and financial reporting of pensions. This Statement includes significant changes for defined benefit plans. The
District’s pension plan is a defined contribution plan. The changes for defined contribution plans primarily relate to
note disclosures. The provisions in this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, and
were adopted by the District in 2015.
P. Reclassifications –
Certain amounts in the prior year’s financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2015
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on Increase in Net Position or Net Position.
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2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS:
Investments are recorded at fair value with the changes in the fair value of investments reported as Investment
income in the accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. The District had
an unrealized net loss of $1.2 million as of December 31, 2015 and an unrealized net gain of $0.2 million as of
December 31, 2014.
The fair value of all cash and investments, regardless of classification on the Balance Sheets, were as follows at
December 31 (in 000’s):
2015

Fair Value
U.S. Treasury and government agency securities . $ 909,449
Corporate bonds ................................................
196,766
Municipal bonds ................................................
10,184
Money markets .................................................
6,888
Cash and cash equivalents .................................
101,166
Total cash and investments ........................... $ 1,224,453
Portfolio weighted average maturity ....................................

2014

Weighted
Average
Maturity (Years)
3.7
11.8
15.6
-

Fair Value

Weighted
Average
Maturity (Years)

$ 892,475
196,960
9,913
13,303
122,733
$ 1,235,384

2.8
12.4
14.8
-

4.8

4.1

Interest Rate Risk- The investment strategy for all investments, except for the decommissioning funds, is to buy
and hold securities until maturity, which minimizes interest rate risk. The investment strategy for decommissioning
funds is to actively manage the diversification of multiple asset classes to achieve a rate of return equal to or
exceeding the rate used in the decommissioning funding plan model assumptions. Accordingly, securities are
bought and sold prior to maturity to increase opportunities for higher investment returns.
Credit Risk- The District follows a Board-approved Investment Policy. This policy complies with state and federal
laws, and the Resolution’s provisions governing the investment of all funds. The majority of investments are direct
obligations of, or obligations guaranteed by, the United States of America. Other investments are limited to
investment-grade fixed income obligations.
Custodial Credit Risk- Cash deposits, primarily interest bearing, are covered by federal depository insurance,
pledged collateral consisting of U.S. Government Securities held by various depositories, or an irrevocable,
nontransferable, unconditional letter of credit issued by a Federal Home Loan Bank.
The fair values of the District’s Special Purpose Funds as of December 31 were as follows (in 000’s):
The Construction funds are used for capital improvements, additions, and betterments to and extensions of the
District’s system. The sources of monies for deposits to the construction funds are from revenue bond proceeds
and issuance of short-term debt.
2015
2014
Construction funds ‑ Cash and cash equivalents ............................................. $
Construction funds ‑ Investments ..................................................................
$

76,503
76,503

$
$

64
143,426
143,490

The Debt reserve funds, as established under the Resolution, consist of a Primary account and a Secondary
account. The District is required by the Resolution to maintain an amount equal to 50% of the maximum amount
of interest accrued in the current or any future year in the Primary account. Such amount totaled
$40.5 million and $43.9 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The Secondary account can be
established at such amounts and can be utilized for any lawful purpose as determined by the District’s Board.
Such account totaled $51.3 million and $51.6 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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2015
Debt reserve funds ‑ Cash and cash equivalents .............................................
Debt reserve funds ‑ Investments ..................................................................

$
$

50
91,722
91,772

2014
$
$

3
95,460
95,463

The Employee benefit funds consist of a self-funded hospital-medical benefit plan and a retired employee life
insurance benefit plan. The District pays 80% of the hospital-medical premiums with the employees paying the
remaining 20% of the cost of such coverage. The plan had funds of $2.3 million and $2.8 million at December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively. The retired employee life insurance benefit plan was funded prior to the
implementation of GASB codification Section P50, Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions – Employer
Reporting, and the creation of an irrevocable grantor trust for postretirement health and life insurance benefits.
For additional information on postemployment benefits see Note 11. The District pays the total cost of the
employee life insurance benefit once the employee retires. The plan had funds of $1.1 million and $1.2 million at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Both funds are held by outside trustees in compliance with the
funding plans approved by the Board.
2015
2014
Employee benefit funds ‑ Cash and cash equivalents ...................................... $
Employee benefit funds ‑ Investments ...........................................................
$

1,349
1,995
3,344

$
$

1,904
2,151
4,055

The Decommissioning funds are utilized to account for the investments held to fund the estimated cost of
decommissioning CNS when its operating license expires. The Decommissioning funds are held by outside
trustees or custodians in compliance with the decommissioning funding plans approved by the Board which are
invested primarily in fixed income governmental securities. The sales and purchases of nuclear decommissioning
trust investments are netted in the Statements of Cash Flows as this activity occurs in large volumes and on
average such investments are held in the trust for less than 90 days.
2015
2014
Decommissioning funds - Cash and cash equivalents ...................................... $
Decommissioning funds - Investments ...........................................................
$

14,707
552,641
567,348

$
$

30,683
534,861
565,544

3. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:
Fair value is the exchange price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price)
in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, establishes a fair value hierarchy that
prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted
prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. Financial
assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair
value measurement. The three levels of fair value hierarchy defined in GASB Statement No. 72 are as follows:
Level 1 - Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.
Active markets are those in which transactions for the asset or liability occur in sufficient frequency and volume to
provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The District’s investment in cash and cash equivalents are
included as Level 1 assets.
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Level 2 - Pricing inputs are other than quoted market prices in the active markets included in Level 1, which are
either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability as of the reporting date. Level 2 inputs include the
following:
• quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
• quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
• inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; or
• inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other
means.
Level 2 assets and liabilities primarily include U.S. treasury and other federal agency securities and corporate
bonds held in the District’s Decommissioning funds, other Special Purpose Funds, and certain Investments in
Current Assets.
Level 3 - Pricing inputs include significant inputs that are unobservable and cannot be corroborated by market
data. Level 3 assets and liabilities are valued based on internally developed models and assumptions or
methodologies using significant unobservable inputs. The District currently does not have Level 3 assets or
liabilities included in the Decommissioning funds, other Special Purpose Funds, or Investments in Current Assets.
The District performs an analysis annually to determine the appropriate hierarchy level classification of the assets
and liabilities that are included within the scope of ASC 820. Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
The following table sets forth the District’s financial assets and liabilities that are accounted for and reported at fair
value on a recurring basis by level within the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, (in 000’s):
2015
Level 1
Assets:
Available‑for‑sale securities:
U.S. Treasury and government agency securities ... $
Money markets ...................................................
6,888
Cash and cash equivalents ...................................
86,459
Decommissioning funds:
U.S. Treasury and government agency securities ...
Corporate bonds ..................................................
Municipal bonds ..................................................
Cash and cash equivalents ...................................
14,707
$ 108,054

Level 2

Level 3

$ 563,758
345,691
196,766
10,184
$ 1,116,399

$

$

Total

-

$ 563,758
6,888
86,459

-

345,691
196,766
10,184
14,707
$ 1,224,453

2014
Level 1

Assets:
Available‑for‑sale securities:
U.S. Treasury and government agency securities ... $
Money markets ...................................................
13,303
Cash and cash equivalents ...................................
92,050
Decommissioning funds:
U.S. Treasury and government agency securities ...
Corporate bonds ..................................................
Municipal bonds ..................................................
Cash and cash equivalents ...................................
30,683
$ 136,036
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Level 2

$ 564,488
327,987
196,960
9,913
$ 1,099,348

Level 3

$

$

Total

-

$ 564,488
13,303
92,050

-

327,987
196,960
9,913
30,683
$ 1,235,384

4. UTILITY PLANT:
Utility plant activity for the year ended December 31, 2015, was as follows (in 000’s):
December 31,
2014

Increases

December 31,
2015

Decreases

Nondepreciable utility plant:
Land and improvements .............................. $

63,336

$

1,036

$

(2)

$

64,370

Construction in progress .............................

151,712

180,117

(122,203)

209,626

Total nondepreciable utility plant .............

215,048

181,153

(122,205)

273,996

Nuclear fuel* ..................................................

202,094

13,952

(47,626)

168,420

Generation ‑ Fossil ....................................

1,550,786

31,495

(8,401)

1,573,880

Generation ‑ Nuclear ..................................

1,353,374

31,240

(583)

1,384,031

Transmission .............................................

1,153,704

26,147

(7,743)

1,172,108

Distribution ................................................

217,893

6,877

(2,979)

221,791

General .....................................................

335,407

14,487

(15,058)

334,836

4,611,164

110,246

(34,764)

4,686,646

(2,533,100)

(121,755)

34,764

(2,620,091)

2,078,064

(11,509)

-

Depreciable utility plant:

Total depreciable utility plant
Less reserve for depreciation ...........................
Depreciable utility plant, net ...................

Utility plant activity, net ................................... $ 2,495,206

$

183,596

$

(169,831)

2,066,555
$ 2,508,971

* Nuclear fuel decreases represented amortization of $47.6 million.

5. LONG-TERM CAPACITY CONTRACTS:
Long-term capacity contracts include the District’s share of the construction costs of Omaha Public Power
District’s (“OPPD”) 663 megawatt (“MW”) Nebraska City Station Unit 2 (“NC2”) coal-fired power plant. The District
has a participation power agreement with OPPD for a 23.7% share of the power from this plant. NC2 began
commercial operation on May 1, 2009, at which time the District began amortizing the amount of the capacity
contract associated with the plant on a straight-line basis over the 40-year estimated useful life of the plant.
Accumulated amortization was $30.8 million and $26.1 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively. The unamortized
amount of the plant capacity contract was $154.8 million and $159.5 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, of which $4.6 million was included in Prepayments and other current assets as of December 31,
2015 and 2014.
Long-term capacity contracts also include the District’s purchase of the capacity of a 50 MW hydroelectric
generating facility owned and operated by The Central Nebraska Public Power and Irrigation District (“Central”).
The District is amortizing the contract on a straight-line basis over the 40-year estimated useful life of the facility.
Accumulated amortization was $62.0 million and $59.7 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
unamortized amount of the Central capacity contract was $24.7 million and $27.0 million at December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively, of which $2.3 million was included in Prepayments and other current assets as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014.
The District has an agreement whereby Central makes available all the production of the facility and the District
pays all costs of operating and maintaining the facility plus a charge based on the amount of energy delivered to
the District. Costs of $2.3 million and $1.5 million in 2015 and 2014, respectively, are included in Power
purchased in the accompanying Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.
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6. INVESTMENT IN THE ENERGY AUTHORITY:
The District is an equity member of The Energy Authority (“TEA”), a nonprofit corporation headquartered in
Jacksonville, Florida, and incorporated in Georgia. TEA provides public power utilities access to dedicated
resources and advanced technology systems. The District’s interest in TEA was 16.67% as of December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively. In addition to the District, the following utilities have equity interests of 16.67% each
as of December 31, 2015 and 2014: American Municipal Power, Inc.; the City of Jacksonville, Florida; Municipal
Energy Authority of Georgia; and South Carolina Public Service Authority (a.k.a. Santee Cooper). The following
utilities have equity interests in TEA of 5.56% each as of December 31, 2015 and 2014: City Utilities of
Springfield, Missouri; Cowlitz County Public Utility District (Washington) and Gainesville Regional Utilities
(Florida).
The District uses the equity method of accounting for its investment in TEA. Such investment was $7.0 million and
$7.9 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. TEA’s revenues and costs are allocated to
members pursuant to Settlement Procedures under the Operating Agreement. TEA provides the District gas
contract management services and is the District’s market participant in SPP’s Integrated Market.
The District is obligated to guaranty, directly or indirectly, TEA’s electric trading activities in an amount up to
$28.9 million plus attorney’s fees which any party claiming and prevailing under the guaranty might incur and be
entitled to recover under its contract with TEA. Generally, the District’s guaranty obligations for electric trading
would arise if TEA did not make the contractually required payment for energy, capacity, or transmission which
was delivered or made available or if TEA failed to deliver or provide energy, capacity, or transmission as required
under a contract.
The District’s exposure relating to TEA is limited to the District’s equity investment in TEA, any accounts
receivable from TEA, and trade guarantees provided to TEA by the District. Upon the District making any
payments under its electric guaranty, it has certain contribution rights with the other members of TEA in order that
payments made under the TEA member guaranties would be equalized ratably, based upon each member’s
equity ownership interest in TEA. After such contributions have been effected, the District would only have
recourse against TEA to recover amounts paid under the guaranty. The term of this guaranty is generally
indefinite, but the District has the ability to terminate its guaranty obligations by causing to be provided advance
notice to the beneficiaries thereof. Such termination of its guaranty obligations only applies to TEA transactions
not yet entered into at the time the termination takes effect. The District has no liabilities for these guarantees as
of December 31, 2015 and 2014.
Financial statements for TEA may be obtained at The Energy Authority, 301 W. Bay Street, Suite 2600,
Jacksonville, Florida, 32202.
7. DEBT:
The following table summarizes the debt balances, net of current maturities, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
and activity for 2015 (in 000’s):
Principal
December
December
Amounts Due
Increases
Decreases
31, 2014
31, 2015
Within One Year
Revenue bonds ......................... $ 1,710,850
$ 261,189
$ (375,067)
$ 1,596,972
$
114,860
Commercial paper notes ............
92,000
(9,000)
83,000
Revolving credit agreements .......
185,503
10,364
(37,167)
158,700
Total long‑term debt activity .. $ 1,988,353
$ 271,553
$ (421,234)
$ 1,838,672
$
114,860
Revenue Bonds
In February 2015, the District issued General Revenue Bonds, 2015 Series A in the amount of $223.0 million to
advance refund $239.2 million of bonds. The refunding reduced total debt service payments over the life of the
bonds by $42.0 million, which resulted in present value savings of $26.1 million.
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Also in February 2015, the District entered into an escrow deposit agreement in
refunding of certain of the:
• General Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series C, having maturity dates ranging
January 1, 2041
• General Revenue Bonds, 2006 Series A, having maturity dates ranging
January 1, 2041
• General Revenue Bonds, 2007 Series B, having maturity dates ranging
January 1, 2037
• General Revenue Bonds, 2008 Series B, having maturity dates ranging
January 1, 2038, and
• General Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series C, maturing on January 1, 2024

conjunction with the advanced
from January 1, 2026 through
from January 1, 2036 through
from January 1, 2023 through
from January 1, 2024 through

In December 2014, the District issued General Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series C in the amount of $162.9 million to
advance refund $170.6 million of bonds. The refunding reduced total debt service payments over the life of the
bonds by $16.5 million, which resulted in present value savings of $12.4 million.
Also in December 2014, the District entered into an escrow deposit agreement in conjunction with
refunding of certain of the:
• General Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series A, maturing on January 1, 2026,
• General Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series B-2, maturing on January 1, 2017,
• General Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series C, having maturity dates ranging from January 1,
January 1, 2030,
• General Revenue Bonds, 2006 Series A, having maturity dates ranging from January 1,
January 1, 2036,
• General Revenue Bonds, 2007 Series B, having maturity dates ranging from January 1,
January 1, 2022,
• General Revenue Bonds, 2008 Series B, having maturity dates ranging from January 1,
January 1, 2023, and
• General Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series C, having maturity dates ranging from January 1,
January 1, 2023.

the advanced

2017 through
2017 through
2018 through
2019 through
2019 through

In July 2014, the District issued General Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A in the amount of $195.2 million to
finance $114.0 million of the costs of transmission capital additions and to advance refund $81.2 million of bonds.
Additionally, the District issued General Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series B (Taxable) in the amount of $24.4 million
to advance refund $24.2 million of bonds. The refundings reduced total debt service payments over the life of the
bonds by $11.4 million, which resulted in present value savings of $6.9 million.
Also in July 2014, the District entered into an escrow deposit agreement in conjunction with the advanced
refunding of certain of the:
• General Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series A, having maturity dates ranging from January 1, 2016 through
January 1, 2025,
• General Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series B-1, maturing on January 1, 2016,
• General Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series B-2, maturing on January 1, 2016,
• General Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series C, having maturity dates ranging from January 1, 2019 through
January 1, 2030, and
• General Revenue Bonds, 2006 Series A, having maturity dates ranging from January 1, 2020 through
January 1, 2031.
Certain of the General Revenue Bonds, from the following series, with outstanding principal amounts that
aggregate $472.2 million as of December 31, 2015, were legally defeased and are no longer outstanding: 2005
Series C, 2006 Series A, 2007 Series B, 2008 Series B, and 2012 Series C.
Certain of the General Revenue Bonds, from the following series, with outstanding principal amounts that
aggregate $337.3 million as of December 31, 2014, were legally defeased and are no longer outstanding: 2005
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Series A, 2005 Series B-1, 2005 Series B-2, 2005 Series C, 2006 Series A, 2007 Series B, 2008 Series B, and
2012 Series C. Said defeased bonds are payable solely from United States Treasury Obligations in irrevocable
escrow accounts. Accordingly, the bonds and the related escrow accounts are not included in the Balance
Sheets.
Debt service payments and principal payments of the General Revenue Bonds as of December 31, 2015, are as
follows (in 000’s):
Debt Service
Payments

Year
2016 ............................................
2017 ............................................
2018 ............................................
2019 ............................................
2020 ............................................
2021-2025 ....................................
2026-2030 ....................................
2031-2035 ....................................
2036-2040 ....................................
2041-2043 ....................................
Total Payments ............................

$

191,325
163,208
163,211
138,727
138,620
631,132
470,980
333,616
138,918
35,035
$ 2,404,772

Principal
Payments
$

114,860
91,795
96,310
76,435
79,930
393,840
323,790
261,345
117,110
32,435
$ 1,587,850

The fair value of outstanding revenue bonds was determined using currently published rates. The fair value was
estimated to be $1,765.4 million and $1,891.5 million at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Commercial Paper Notes
The District is authorized to issue up to $150.0 million of TECP notes. A $150.0 million line of credit expiring
July 1, 2017, is maintained with two commercial banks to support the sale of the TECP notes. The District had
$83.0 million and $92.0 million of TECP notes outstanding at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The
proceeds of the TECP notes have been used to provide short-term financing for certain capital additions and for
other lawful purposes of the District. The effective interest rate on outstanding TECP notes was 0.06% and 0.08%
for 2015 and 2014, respectively. The notes outstanding are anticipated to be retired by future collections through
electric rates and the issuance of revenue bonds. The carrying value of the commercial paper notes approximates
market value due to the short-term nature of the notes.
Line of Credit Agreement
The District has a line of credit of $150.0 million expiring July 1, 2017, that supports the payment of the principal
outstanding of the TECP notes. No amounts were drawn on the line of credit as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.
Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement
The District has entered into a Taxable Revolving Credit Agreement (“TRCA”) with two commercial banks to
provide for loan commitments to the District up to an aggregate amount not to exceed $200.0 million. The TRCA
allows the District to increase the loan commitments to $300.0 million. The District had outstanding balances
under the TRCA of $158.7 million and $185.5 million, at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The TRCA
was renewed on July 31, 2015 and terminates on July 30, 2018. The outstanding amount is anticipated to be
retired by future collections through electric rates and the issuance of revenue bonds. The carrying value of the
revolving credit agreements approximates market value due to the short-term nature of the agreements.
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Revenue bonds consist of the following (in 000’s except interest rates):
Interest Rate
December 31,
2015
General Revenue Bonds:
2005 Series A Serial Bonds 2015 ............................
5.25%
$
2005 Series C:
Serial Bonds: 2015–2025, 2040 .....................
3.875% - 5.00%
44,230
2030–2034 ..............................
4.75%
2035–2040 ..............................
5.00%
2006 Series A:
Serial Bonds: 2015–2025 ..............................
4.00% - 5.00%
2031–2035 ..............................
5.00%
2036–2040 ..............................
4.375%
400
2036–2040 ..............................
5.00%
2007 Series B:
Serial Bonds: 2015–2026 ..............................
4.375% - 5.00%
111,825
Term Bonds: 2027–2031 ..............................
4.65%
31,190
2032–2036 ..............................
5.00%
7,120
2008 Series B:
Serial Bonds: 2015–2029 ..............................
4.00% - 5.00%
38,785
Term Bonds: 2030–2032 ..............................
5.00%
22,860
2033–2037 ..............................
5.00%
40,375
2038–2040 ..............................
5.00%
7,180
2009 Series A Taxable Build America Bonds:
Term Bonds: 2019–2025 ..............................
6.606%
17,465
2026–2034 ..............................
7.399%
32,890
2009 Series C Serial Bonds 2014–2019 ...................
3.50% - 4.25%
6,595
2010 Series A Taxable Build America Bonds:
Serial Bonds: 2019–2024 ..............................
3.98% - 4.73%
31,875
Term Bonds: 2025–2029 ..............................
5.323%
27,985
2030–2042 ..............................
5.423%
54,190
2010 Series B Taxable Serial Bonds 2015–2020 .......
2.858% - 4.18%
4,415
2010 Series C:
Serial Bonds: 2015–2025 ..............................
3.00% - 5.00%
64,520
Term Bonds: 2026–2030 ..............................
4.00%
6,165
2026–2030 ..............................
5.00%
14,180
2011 Series A Serial Bonds 2015–2016 ...................
2.50% - 5.00%
7,115
2012 Series A Serial Bonds 2015–2034 ...................
3.00% - 5.00%
198,310
2012 Series B:
Serial Bonds: 2015–2032 ..............................
2.00% - 5.00%
95,875
Term Bonds: 2033–2036 ..............................
3.625%
2,320
2037–2042 ..............................
3.625%
4,155
2012 Series C Serial Bonds 2015–2028 ...................
3.00% - 5.00%
37,340
2013 Series A Serial Bonds 2015–2033 ...................
3.00% - 5.00%
103,815
2014 Series A:
Serial Bonds: 2015–2038 ..............................
2.00% - 5.00%
156,145
Term Bonds: 2039–2043 ..............................
4.00%
31,650
2039–2043 ..............................
4.125%
1,945
2014 Series B Taxable Serial Bonds 2015 ................
0.48%
2014 Series C Serial Bonds 2015 - 2033 ..................
2.00% - 5.00%
162,415
2015 Series A-1 Serial Bonds 2022–2034 ................
3.00% - 5.00%
119,400
2015 Series A-2: ....................................................
Serial Bonds: 2015–2034 ..............................
3.00% - 5.00%
56,915
Term Bonds: 2035–2039 ..............................
5.00%
46,205
Total par amount of revenue bonds ...................................................................
1,587,850
Unamortized premium net of discount ..........................................................
123,982
1,711,832
Less ‑ current maturities of revenue bonds ...................................................
(114,860)
Total revenue bonds ............................................................................... $ 1,596,972
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2014
$

15
45,985
18,240
27,500
5,145
10,240
400
30,020
142,565
36,140
19,270
136,245
32,390
50,880
7,180
17,465
32,890
8,515
31,875
27,985
54,190
5,210
79,615
6,165
14,180
15,815
205,905
99,325
2,320
4,155
52,735
111,480
161,385
31,650
1,945
24,415
162,890
-

1,714,325
106,360
1,820,685
(109,835)
$ 1,710,850

8. PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES:
The District is required to make payments in lieu of taxes, aggregating 5% of the gross revenue derived from
electric retail sales within the city limits of incorporated cities and towns served directly by the District. Such
payments totaled $10.0 million and $10.1 million for each of the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively.
9. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS:
Asset retirement obligations (“ARO”) are calculated at the present value of a long-lived asset’s applicable disposal
costs and are recorded in the period in which the liability is incurred. This liability is accreted during the remaining
life of the associated assets and adjusted periodically based upon updated estimates. The District has recorded
an obligation for the fair value of its legal liability for the ARO associated with CNS, various ash landfills at its two
coal-fired power stations, removal of asbestos at the District’s various coal, gas, and hydro generating facilities,
polychlorinated biphenyls from substation and distribution equipment, and underground storage tanks as well as
abandonment of water wells. A study was completed to update the costs for the ARO for CNS in 2015 because
the last study was completed in 2008 and changes were expected due to the recent decommissioning of plants by
other industry participants. Based on the results of the 2015 study and refreshed assumptions, the ARO was
reduced by $477.8 million with a corresponding reduction in the related regulatory asset.
ASC 410, Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations, requires capitalization of the costs to the related
asset and depreciation of these costs over the same period as the related asset. The District does not use
depreciation as a cost component for rates. Accordingly, the District has established a regulatory asset, under
accounting guidance in Re10, for the costs that will be recovered in future rates. A significant amount of the ARO
was funded by decommissioning funds of $567.3 million and $565.5 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. See Note 2 for additional information.
The following table shows changes to the ARO that occurred during the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, and are included in Other long-term liabilities section of the accompanying Balance Sheets as of
December 31, (in 000’s):
2015
Balance, beginning of year .............................................................................. $ 1,026,357
Accretion ......................................................................................................
51,764
ARO adjustment ............................................................................................
(477,810)
Balance, end of year ...................................................................................... $
600,311

2014
$

977,083
49,274
$ 1,026,357

10. RETIREMENT PLAN:
The District’s Employees’ Retirement Plan (the “Plan”) is a defined contribution pension plan established and
administered by the District to provide benefits at retirement to regular full-time and part-time employees. There
were 1,955 active plan members at December 31, 2015. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are
established and may be amended by the Board.
Plan members are eligible to begin participation in the Plan immediately upon hire. Contributions ranging from 2%
to 5% of base pay are eligible for District matching dollars after six months of employment. The District
contributes two times the Plan member’s contribution based on covered salary up to $40,000. On covered salary
greater than $40,000, the District contributes one times the Plan member’s contribution. The Participants’
contributions were $12.8 million and $11.9 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively. The District’s matching
contributions were $12.1 million and $11.8 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively. Total contributions of $1.4
million and $1.3 million were accrued in Accounts payable and accrued liabilities for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Plan members are immediately vested in their own contributions and earnings and become vested in the District’s
contributions and earnings based on the following vesting schedule:
Years of Vesting Participation
5 years or more ....................................
4 years ................................................
3 years ................................................
2 years ................................................
Less than 2 years ................................

Percent
100%
75%
50%
25%
0%

Nonvested District contributions are forfeited upon termination of employment. Such forfeitures are first used to
cover Plan administrative expenses and any remaining forfeitures are used to reduce District matching
contributions.
11. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS:
A. Plan Description and Funding Policy The District’s Post-Employment Medical and Life Benefits Plan (“Plan”) provides postemployment hospitalmedical and life insurance benefits to qualifying retirees, surviving spouses, and employees on long-term
disability and their dependents. Benefits and related eligibility, funding and other Plan provisions, for this singleemployer, defined benefit Plan, are authorized by the Board.
Contributions from Plan members are the required premium share, which is based on date of hire and/or age. The
District pays all or part of the cost (determined by age) for employees hired before 1993. Qualifying employees
hired after 1992 are subject to a contribution cap that limits the District’s portion of the cost of such coverage to
the full premium the year the employee retired or the amount at the time the employee reaches age 65, or the
year in which the employee retires if older than age 65. Any increases in the cost of such coverage in subsequent
years are paid by Plan members. Qualifying employees hired after 1998 are not eligible for postemployment
hospital-medical benefits once they reach age 65 or Medicare eligibility. Employees hired after 2003 are not
eligible for postemployment hospital–medical benefits. The District amended the plan effective July 1, 2007, to
provide that any former employee who is rehired will receive credit for prior years of service. The District further
amended the plan effective September 1, 2007, to provide that employees hired or rehired on or after that date
must work five consecutive years immediately prior to retirement to be eligible for postemployment hospitalmedical benefits.
In May 2015, the Board approved a change for Medicare-eligible retirees for prescription drugs from the District’s
self-insured employee prescription plan to a group insured Medicare Part D supplement effective
January 1, 2016. The District also changed its funding plan to contribute, at a minimum, the actuariallydetermined annual required contribution (“ARC”) to achieve full funding status on or before December 31, 2033,
and to pay benefits/expenses from the OPEB Trusts.
Contributions in the form of premium payments by OPEB Plan members were $0.6 million, $0.5 million and $0.4
million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Members do not contribute to the
cost of the life insurance benefits.
B. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation The annual OPEB costs are determined by actuaries and equal (a) the ARC, (b) one year’s interest on the net
OPEB obligation, and (c) an adjustment to the ARC to offset the effect of actuarial amortization of past under- or
over-collected contributions. Commencing in 2016, the OPEB Trusts will be funded with the entire ARC and
benefits/expenses will be paid directly from the Trusts. Prior to 2016, the District included in expenses and rates
the OPEB benefits/expenses expected in the current period and the amount authorized for funding in the Trust for
OPEB benefit payments for future periods. The difference between the annual OPEB cost and the District’s
contributions are included in the net OPEB obligation. As the District uses regulatory accounting to ensure costs
are consistent with those included in the rates, the offset to the net OPEB obligation is a regulatory asset.
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The following table shows the components of the District’s OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation as of December 31, (in 000’s):
2015
Annual required contribution ................................................... $
Interest on net OPEB obligation ..............................................
Adjustment to annual required contribution ..............................
Annual OPEB cost ................................................................
Contributions made ...............................................................
(Decrease) Increase in net OPEB obligation ............................
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year ...................................
Net OPEB obligation, end of year ........................................... $

2014

28,223
7,859
(11,832)
24,250
(28,402)
(4,152)
125,747
121,595

$

$

32,026
5,865
(5,803)
32,088
(29,816)
2,272
123,475
125,747

2013
$

$

35,030
5,583
(5,191)
35,422
(23,603)
11,819
111,656
123,475

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed, and the net OPEB obligation
for 2015, 2014, and 2013 were as follows (in 000’s):
Year
2015
2014
2013

Annual OPEB
Cost
$
$
$

Percentage of
Annual OPEB
Cost Contributed

24,250
32,088
35,422

117.1%
92.9%
66.6%

Net OPEB
Obligation
$
$
$

121,595
125,747
123,475

C. Funded Status and Funding Progress At December 31, 2015, there were two Trusts for OPEB, the “Nebraska Public Power District Post-Employment
Medical and Life Benefits Trust” and the “Nebraska Public Power District Retired Employee Life Benefit Trust”. In
2016, the OPEB Trust for Medical and Life Benefits was amended as the “Amended and Restated Nebraska
Public Power District Medical and Life Benefits Trust for Employees in Retirement Status” and a separate, OPEB
Trust was established for employees in disability status as the, ”Nebraska Public Power District Hospital-Medical
and Employee Life Insurance Benefit Trust for Employees in Disability Status.” Retiree Life Benefits will continue
to be paid from the Nebraska Public Power District Retired Employee Life Benefit Trust until funds are exhausted.
This Trust will then be terminated and these benefits will be paid from the OPEB Trust for employees in retirement
status. Stand-alone financial reports will be prepared for OPEB commencing in 2016.
Total OPEB contributions in 2015 were $28.4 million, which included $11.5 million deposited in the Trust and
$16.9 million paid for the cost of benefits/expenses. Total contributions in 2014 were $29.8 million, which included
$11.9 million deposited in the trust and $17.9 million paid for the cost of benefits. Total contributions in 2013 were
$23.6 million, which included $10.0 million deposited in the trust and $13.6 million paid for the cost of benefits.
Actuarial valuations were completed as of January 1, 2015 and 2014. The information as of January 1, 2013, was
based on information from the actuary’s model. The Actuarial Value of Assets was based on the market values of
the Plan’s assets. The Actuarial Accrued Liability (“AAL”) was the present value of benefits attributable to past
accounting periods and decreased by $196.3 million in the 2015 valuation. The decrease was due primarily to the
plan change for prescription drugs for Medicare-eligible retirees and the commitment to fund the entire ARC and
pay benefits/expenses from the OPEB Trusts which accounted for $132.8 and $65.5 million of the decrease,
respectively.
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The Actuarial Value of Assets, AAL, and other information, are presented in the table below as of January 1, (in
000’s):

2015
2014
2013

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability (AAL)

Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability (UAAL)

Funded
Ratio

Covered
Payroll

UAAL to
Covered
Payroll

(a)

(b)

(b‑a)

(a/b)

(c)

((b‑a)/c)

$64,487
$48,274
$30,781

$309,908
$506,200
$520,705

$245,421
$457,926
$489,924

20.8%
9.5%
5.9%

$186,952
$186,637
$187,378

131%
245%
261%

The above schedule presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Actuarial valuations of an
ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and
the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
D. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.
The actuarial assumptions and methods used for the valuations on January 1, 2015, 2014 and 2013, were as
follows:
• The Pre-Medicare healthcare cost trend rates ranged from 8.0% initial to 6.2% ultimate for 2015, from
5.9% initial to 4.4% ultimate for 2014, and from 8.5% initial to 4.6% ultimate for 2013.
• The Post-Medicare healthcare cost trend rates ranged from 6.8% initial to 6.2% ultimate for 2015, from
6.2% initial to 4.5% ultimate for 2014, and from 8.5% initial to 4.6% ultimate for 2013.
• The discount rate used was 6.25%, 4.75%, and 5.0% for 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively, which was
based on the expected return on investments used to fund benefit payments. The higher rate for 2015
was due to the commitment to fund at least 100% of the ARC and to pay all benefits/expenses directly
from the Trusts commencing in 2016.
• An inflation rate of 2.1% was assumed for 2015 and 3.5% was assumed for 2014 and 2013.
• Commencing in 2015, the unfunded AAL will be amortized over a period of time such that the plan will be
fully funded by 2033. For 2015, the amortization period was 18 years. For 2014 and 2013, amortization
for the initial unfunded AAL was determined using a closed period of 30 years and the level percentage of
projected payroll method.
• The Unit Credit Actuarial Cost method was used for all three years.
• The mortality table used for participants was the RP2014 Aggregate/Scale MP2014 for 2015 and the
RP2000HA/Scale BB for 2014 and 2013.
E. Market Value of Plan Investments The investments in the OPEB plan include corporate and government debt, foreign and domestic stocks, mutual
funds and cash. Plan assets included funds in the Employee Benefit Funds for retiree life insurance of $1.1
million, $1.2 million, and $1.4 million at December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively. The market value of
plan assets, including the funds in the Employee Benefit Funds, was $75.2 million, $64.5 million, and $48.3 million
at December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
A. Fuel Commitments The District has various coal supply contracts and a coal transportation contract with minimum future payments of
$273.0 million at December 31, 2015. These contracts expire at various times through the end of 2018. The coal
transportation contract in place is sufficient to deliver coal to the generation facilities through the expiration date of
the aforementioned contracts and is subject to price escalation adjustments.
The District has a contract for conversion services of uranium to uranium hexafluoride which is in effect through
2018, a contract for enrichment services through 2024, and a contract for fabrication services through January 18,
2034, the end of the current operating license of CNS. These commitments for nuclear fuel material and services
have combined estimated future payments of $265.0 million.
B. Power Purchase and Sales Agreements The District has entered into a participation power agreement (the “NC2 Agreement”) with OPPD to purchase
23.7% of the power of the NC2, estimated to be 161 MW of the power from the 663 MW coal-fired power plant
constructed by OPPD. The NC2 Agreement contains a step-up provision obligating the District to pay a share of
the cost of any deficit in funds for operating expenses, debt service, other costs, and reserves related to NC2 as a
result of a defaulting power purchaser. The District’s obligation pursuant to such step-up provision is limited to
160% of its original participation share (23.7%). No such default has occurred to date.
The District has entered into a participation power sales agreement with Municipal Energy Agency of
Nebraska (“MEAN”) for the sale to MEAN of the power and energy from Gerald Gentleman Station (“GGS”) and
CNS of 50 MW which began January 1, 2011 and continues through December 31, 2023.
The District has entered into power sales agreements with Lincoln Electric System (“LES”) for the sale to LES of
30% of the net power and energy of Sheldon Station (“Sheldon”) and 8% of the net power and energy of GGS. In
return, LES agrees to pay 30% and 8% of all costs attributable to Sheldon and GGS, respectively. Each
agreement is to terminate upon the later of the last maturity of the debt attributable to the respective station or the
date on which the District retires such station from commercial operation.
The District has wholesale power purchase commitments with the Western Area Power Administration through
2020 with annual minimum future payments of approximately $36.3 million. These purchases are subject to rate
changes.
The District owns and operates the 60 MW Ainsworth Wind Energy Facility and has 20-year participation power
agreements to sell 28 MW to four other utilities. In addition, the District has power purchase agreements with
seven wind facilities having a total capacity of 435 MW. These agreements are for terms ranging from 20 to
25 years and require the District to purchase all the electric power output of these wind facilities. The District has
entered into power sales agreements to sell 154 MW of this capacity to four other utilities in Nebraska over similar
terms.
The District has entered into a power purchase agreement with Central for the purchase of the net power and
energy produced by the Kingsley Project during its operating life. The Kingsley Project is a hydroelectric
generating unit at the Kingsley Dam in Keith County, Nebraska with an accredited net capacity of 37 MW.
The District has entered into long-term PRO Agreements having initial terms of 15, 20, or 25 years with
79 municipalities for the operation of certain retail electric distribution systems. These PRO Agreements expire on
various dates between March 1, 2023 and May 1, 2033. These PRO Agreements obligate the District to make
payments based on gross revenues from the municipalities and pay for normal property additions during the term
of the agreement.
C. Wholesale Power Contracts
The District serves its wholesale customers under total requirements contracts that require them to purchase total
demand and energy requirements from the District. The District entered into new 20-year Wholesale Power
Contracts (“2016 Contracts”) with 23 public power districts, which includes one cooperative, and 39 municipalities,
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effective January 1, 2016. Two public power districts and 11 municipalities are served under 2002 Wholesale
Power Contracts (“2002 Contracts”), which expire on December 31, 2021.
The 2016 Contracts allow a wholesale customer to give notice to reduce its purchase of demand and energy
requirements from the District based on a comparison of the District’s average annual wholesale power costs in a
given year compared to power costs of U.S. utilities for such year listed in the National Rural Utilities Cooperative
Finance Corporation Key Ratio Trend Analysis (Ratio 88) (the “CFC Data”). The CFC Data places a utility’s power
costs in percentiles so that any given utility can compare its power costs on a percentile basis to the CFC
published quartile information. The 2016 Contracts allow a wholesale customer to reduce its demand and energy
purchases from the District if the District’s average annual wholesale power costs percentile level for a given year
th
is higher than the 45 percentile level (the “Performance Standard Percentile”) of the power costs of U.S. utilities
for such year as listed in the CFC Data. The 2016 Contracts would not allow any reductions in demand and
energy purchases by a wholesale customer as long as the District’s average annual wholesale power costs
percentile remained below the Performance Standard Percentile. The following table lists the District’s wholesale
power costs percentile for the calendar years 2010 to 2014 set forth in the CFC Data:
CFC Data
Year

Percentile

2010

18.3%

2011

24.4%

2012

29.1%

2013

31.0%

2014

27.6%

The 2002 Contracts allow a wholesale customer to reduce its purchases of demand and energy upon giving
appropriate notice. Reductions could amount to as much as 90% of their demand and energy requirements under
certain circumstances. All wholesale customers under the 2002 wholesale contracts are required to purchase at
least 10% of their demand and energy from the District through December 31, 2021.
The District has received notices from nine wholesale customers as to their intent to level off, reduce, or terminate
the requirements under their 2002 wholesale contracts for various amounts from 2017 through 2021. The nine
customers include one municipality which has a short-term wholesale contract terminating in May 2016. These
wholesale customers represented 4.5% of the District’s 2015 operating revenues. The District expects that no
requirements of said nine wholesale customers will be served by the District in 2022, and such wholesale
customers will purchase all of their electric requirements from other suppliers. The District expects to sell the
energy not sold to such wholesale customers into the SPP Integrated Market and continues to explore additional
firm requirement and/or fixed price agreements. Four wholesale customers have not given notice to reduce and
continue under the 2002 wholesale contracts. These customers represented 1.2% of the District’s 2015 operating
revenues.
Five wholesale customers under the 2002 Contracts have filed a lawsuit in state court challenging the 2016
wholesale rates. The 2016 wholesale rates result in a 0.6% increase for wholesale customers who sign the new
2016 Contracts and a 3.8% increase for those wholesale customers who remain under the 2002 Contracts. The
rate increase was higher for the 2002 Contracts as these customers will pay their share of previously incurred
OPEB costs through 2021. Customers under the 2016 Contracts are paying their share of OPEB costs over a
longer period. The five wholesale customers filing the lawsuit have notified the District that they will not remain
wholesale customers of the District after 2021. Said wholesale customers allege the 2016 rates are unreasonable,
discriminatory and unfair. Said wholesale customers seek injunctive relief and damages. In December 2015, the
District filed a motion to dismiss, alleging that Nebraska law requires wholesale rate disputes to be submitted to
binding arbitration. A hearing on the motion to dismiss occurred in February 2016. The parties submitted briefs
and are awaiting a ruling on the motion. If these wholesale customers would be successful on the merits of their
claim, the District’s Board may need to reconsider the 2016 wholesale rate change.
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The Northeast Nebraska Public Power District filed a lawsuit in the District Court of Wayne County, Nebraska
regarding the demand and energy reduction provisions under the 2002 Contract. The court issued an order dated
February 26, 2016, in favor of the Northeast Nebraska Public Power District which allows them to reduce their
demand and energy purchases from the District by 30% in 2018, 60% in 2019 and 90% in 2020. The court
decision will apply to certain other customers who have given notice for demand and energy reductions under the
2002 Contract. On March 23, 2016, the District filed a notice of appeal.
D. SPP Membership and Transmission Agreements –
The District is a member of SPP, a regional transmission organization based in Little Rock, Arkansas.
Membership in SPP provides the District reliability coordination service, generation reserve sharing, regional tariff
administration, including generation interconnection service, network, and point-to-point transmission service, and
regional transmission expansion planning. The District was able to participate in SPP’s energy imbalance market,
a real-time balancing market that provides members the opportunity to have SPP dispatch resources based on
marginal cost, through February 2014. On March 1, 2014, SPP commenced a Day-Ahead, Ancillary Services, and
Real-Time Balancing Market Integrated Market. The Integrated Market also provides a financial market to hedge
unplanned transmission congestion, or financial virtual products to hedge uncertainties, such as unplanned
outages.
The District entered into a Transmission Facilities Construction Agreement effective June 15, 2009, with
TransCanada Keystone Pipeline, LP (“Keystone”). This agreement addresses the transmission facilities,
construction, cost allocation, payment, and applicable cost recovery for the interconnection and delivery facilities
required for the interconnection of Keystone to the District’s transmission system. Cost of the project was
$8.4 million and repayment by Keystone, over a 10-year period, began in June 2010 with a remaining balance
due the District of $4.4 million and $5.2 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
The District entered into a second Transmission Facilities Construction Agreement effective July 17, 2009, with
TransCanada Keystone XL Pipeline, LP (“Keystone XL”). This agreement addresses the transmission facilities,
construction, cost allocation, payment, and applicable cost recovery for the interconnection and delivery facilities
required for the interconnection of Keystone XL to the District’s transmission system. Construction of these
facilities for Keystone XL has been cancelled. TransCanada Corporation and TransCanada Pipeline USA Ltd.
have jointly and severally guaranteed the payment obligations of Keystone under its agreements with the District.
As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, actual project costs totaled $13.2 million and $12.8 million, respectively, and
the District has received payment of $10.3 million.
E. Cooper Nuclear Station On November 29, 2010, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC”) formally issued a certificate to the District to
commemorate the renewal of the operating license for CNS for an additional 20 years until January 18, 2034.
CNS entered the 20-year period of extended operation on January 18, 2014.
In October 2003, the District entered into an agreement (the “Entergy Agreement”) for support services at CNS
with Entergy Nuclear Nebraska, LLC (“Entergy”), a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of Entergy Corporation. In
2010, the Entergy Agreement was amended and extended by the parties until January 18, 2029, subject to either
party’s right to terminate without cause by providing notice and paying a $20 million termination charge. The
Entergy Agreement requires the District to reimburse Entergy’s cost of providing services, and to pay Entergy
annual management fees. These annual management fees were $18.4 million for 2015 and 2014. In 2016, the
annual management fee is $18.5 million. This amount will increase by an additional $1.0 million in 2019, and by
an additional $3.0 million in 2024. Entergy is eligible to earn additional incentive fees in an amount not to exceed
$4.0 million annually if CNS achieves identified safety and regulatory performance targets. Entergy may earn
additional incentive fees estimated to be $2.5 million for 2015 and earned $3.8 million in 2014.
Since the earthquake and tsunami of March 11, 2011, that impacted the Fukushima Dai-ichi Plants in Japan, the
District, as well as the rest of the nuclear industry, has been working to first understand the events that damaged
the reactors and associated fuel storage pools and then look to any changes that might be necessary at the
United States nuclear plants. Of particular interest is the performance of the GE boiling water reactor with Mark 1
containment systems in Japan and their on-site used fuel storage facilities. CNS utilizes this same containment
system; however, significant enhancements to the design have been made over the life of the plant.
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An NRC Near-Term Task Force Review of Insights from the Fukushima Dai-ichi Accident was published on
July 12, 2011 that included 12 recommendations for improvements for U.S. reactors. Subsequent to that report,
on October 18, 2011, the NRC approved seven of the Task Force recommendations for implementation.
On March 12, 2012, the NRC issued three orders to the U.S. nuclear industry as a result of the Fukushima
Dai-ichi event in Japan. The first order requires all domestic nuclear plants to better protect supplemental safety
equipment and obtain additional equipment as necessary to protect the reactor in the event of beyond design
basis external events. The second order requires nuclear plant operators of boiling water reactors like CNS to
modify reactor licenses with regard to reliable hardened containment wetwell vents. The third order requires
nuclear plant operators to add reliable spent fuel pool water level instrumentation. The NRC has also issued a
request for information pertaining to re-evaluation of seismic and flooding hazards, and a communications and
staffing assessment for emergency preparedness.
Plant modifications resulting from the orders for modifications to the wetwell vent and fuel pool instrumentation
are currently planned for the fall 2016 refueling and maintenance outage which is consistent with the
requirements of the NRC’s orders that require compliance no later than two refueling cycles following submittal of
the Licensee’s overall integrated plan or December 31, 2016, whichever comes first. Additional NRC orders and
regulations resultant from the Fukushima Dai-ichi event may be forthcoming. The specific impacts of any
additional orders and regulations on CNS have not yet been evaluated.
On June 6, 2013, the NRC issued an order to require the addition of a drywell vent to supplement the capabilities
of this existing wetwell vent. This work is required to be completed in two phases, with phase one to be completed
not later than the startup from the second refueling outage that begins after June 30, 2014 or June 30, 2018,
whichever comes first and phase two to be completed no later than the startup from the first refueling outage that
begins after June 30, 2017 or June 30, 2019, whichever comes first. Phase one of this order will be completed by
the conclusion of the fall 2016 refueling and maintenance outage at CNS. Phase two will be completed by the
conclusion of the fall 2018 refueling and maintenance outage. Also, after extensive analysis by the industry and
the NRC, it was determined that U.S. reactors would not be required to add a filter on the hardened drywell vent.
After completion of the initial site-specific seismic reevaluation analysis for CNS, the District believed that no
seismic-related modifications to CNS were required. Since that time, the District has performed an additional
seismic analysis and has worked to answer additional questions from the NRC on this topic. The NRC has
determined that CNS will have to perform the High Frequency Evaluation and a Spent Fuel Pool Evaluation, but
will not have to complete a Seismic Probabilistic Risk Assessment. Unknown to the District at this time is the
extent of modifications that will be required as a result of these additional seismic reevaluations.
The District continues to work with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (the “Corps”) and the NRC to validate the
data necessary to perform the flood hazard reevaluation. The District submitted its updated flooding analysis to
the NRC in February 2015. Unknown to the District at this time is the extent of modifications that will be required
as a result of the flood hazard reevaluations.
The District’s cost estimate for plant modifications associated with the NRC’s Fukushima Dai-ichi-related orders is
currently estimated to cost $46.7 million, which is expected to be funded primarily from the revenues of the District
and from the proceeds of General Revenue Bonds.
After the events at Fukushima Dai-ichi, several individuals and antinuclear groups petitioned the NRC’s Office of
Reactor Regulation pursuant to 10 CFR 2.206 to take various actions in relation to General Electric boiling water
reactors with Mark 1 and Mark 2 containment systems. The petitions range from requests for information to
suspension of the operating licenses for all Mark 1 and Mark 2 reactors. Petitions were also filed regarding
concerns relating to the consequences of nuclear plants being located near earthquake fault lines or flood zones.
As of November 2015, all the petitions potentially affecting CNS have been closed, either through denial or NRC
Director’s Decisions. There have been no additional impacts to CNS as a result of these petitions.
CNS substantially completed the construction of a dry cask used fuel storage project in December 2009 to
support plant operations until 2034, which is the end of the Operating License. The first loading campaign was
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completed in January 2011 and encompassed the loading of 488 used fuel assemblies from the CNS used fuel
pool into eight dry used fuel storage casks for on-site storage. A second loading campaign, encompassing the
loading of 610 used fuel assemblies into 10 dry used fuel storage casks, began in April 2014 and was completed
in June 2014.
As part of various disputed matters between GE and the District, GE has agreed to continue to store at the Morris
Facility the spent nuclear fuel assemblies from the first two full core loadings at CNS at no additional cost to the
District until the expiration of the current NRC license in May 2022 for the Morris Facility. After that date, storage
would continue to be at no cost to the District as long as GE can maintain the NRC license for the Morris Facility
on essentially the existing design and operating configuration.
As a result of the failure of the DOE to dispose of spent nuclear fuel from CNS as required by contract, the District
commenced legal action against the DOE on March 2, 2001. The initial settlement agreement addressed future
claims through 2013. On January 13, 2014, the DOE extended the settlement agreement through 2016. In
accordance with a settlement agreement between the District and the DOE that was executed on May 18, 2011,
the District has received $115.0 million from the DOE for damages from 2009 through 2015. The District also
reserves the right to pursue future damages through the contract claims process. A corresponding regulatory
liability for these DOE receipts has been established in Other deferred liabilities line of the Deferred Inflows of
Resources section of the accompanying Balance Sheets. The District plans to use the funds to pay for costs
related to CNS. The balance in the regulatory liability was $79.5 million and $71.3 million at December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively.
Under the terms of the DOE contracts, the District was also subject to a one mill per kilowatt-hour (“kWh”) fee on
all energy generated and sold by CNS which was paid on a quarterly basis to DOE. The District includes a
component in its Retail and Wholesale rates for the purpose of funding the costs associated with nuclear fuel
disposal. While the District expects that the revenues developed therefrom will be sufficient to cover the District’s
responsibility for costs currently outlined in the Nuclear Waste Policy Act, the District can give no assurance that
such revenues will be sufficient to cover all costs associated with the disposal of used nuclear fuel. On May 9,
2014, the DOE provided notice that they would adjust the spent fuel disposal fee to zero mills per kWh effective
May 16, 2014. Correspondingly, no additional payments have been made to the DOE for fuel disposal since that
date. The Board authorized the continued collection of this fee at the same rate. This approach ensures costs are
recognized in the appropriate period with current customers receiving the benefits from CNS paying the
appropriate costs. The expense for spent nuclear fuel disposal is recorded based on net electricity generated and
sold and the regulatory liability will be eliminated when payments are made for spent nuclear fuel disposal.
Under the provisions of the Federal Price-Anderson Act, the District and all other licensed nuclear power plant
operators could each be assessed for claims in amounts up to $127.3 million per unit owned in the event of any
nuclear incident involving any licensed facility in the nation, with a maximum assessment of $19.0 million per year
per incident per unit owned.
The NRC evaluates nuclear plant performance as part of its reactor oversight process (“ROP”). The NRC has five
performance categories included in the ROP Action Matrix Summary that is part of this process. As of
December 31, 2015, CNS was in the Licensee Response Column, which is the first or best of the five NRC
defined performance categories and has been in this column since the first quarter of 2012.
Refueling and maintenance outages are required to be performed at CNS approximately every two years.
Significant operations and maintenance expenses are incurred in the outage year. The Board authorized the
collection of these costs over a multi-year period to levelize revenue requirements for expenses and help ensure
the customers receiving the benefits from CNS are paying the costs, commencing in 2015. The regulatory liability
for the pre-collection of outage costs was $24.7 million at December 31, 2015 and will be eliminated through
revenue recognition during the 2016 outage year.
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F. Environmental On November 3, 2015, EPA published the final Steam Electric Power Plant Effluent Guidelines (40 CFR 423). The
rule would strengthen the existing controls on discharges from steam electric power plants. The rule sets the first
federal limits on the levels of toxic metals in wastewater that can be discharged from power plants. District
facilities subject to the rule are CNS, GGS, Sheldon, and Canaday Station. The rule has no impact on CNS or
GGS. Sheldon will be required to be a zero discharge facility for bottom ash transport water. Compliance is
required between November 1, 2018 and December 31, 2023. The District is currently analyzing the options for
compliance.
On February 16, 2012, the EPA issued a final rule intended to reduce emissions of toxic air pollutants from power
plants. Specifically, the Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (“MATS”) Rule will require reductions in emissions from
new and existing coal- and oil-fired steam utility electric generating units of toxic air pollutants. Sheldon began
complying with the MATS rule on April 16, 2015. GGS was granted an additional year to achieve compliance.
GGS will be in compliance with the MATS rule on or before April 16, 2016.
As part of EPA’s nationwide investigation and enforcement program for coal-fired power plants’ compliance with
the Clean Air Act including new source review requirements, on December 4, 2002, the Region 7 office of the
EPA sent a letter to the District and three other electric utilities pursuant to Section 114(a) of the Federal Clean Air
Act requesting documents and information pertaining to GGS and Sheldon. On April 10, 2003, Region 7 of the
EPA sent a supplemental request for documents and information to the District and the other three electric
utilities. These EPA requests for information are part of an EPA investigation to determine the Clean Air Act
compliance status of GGS and Sheldon, including the potential application of new source review requirements.
The District provided the documents and information requested to the EPA within the time allowed. As a
supplement to the 2002 and 2003 requests, EPA Region 7 sent another letter to the District on November 8,
2007, requesting additional documents and information pertaining to GGS and Sheldon. The District provided a
response to the new request within the time allowed and provided supplemental information to EPA in February
and April 2011 in response to an EPA email inquiry. By letter dated December 8, 2008, EPA Region 7 sent a
Notice of Violation (“NOV”) to the District which alleges that the District violated the Clean Air Act by undertaking
five projects at GGS from 1991 through 2001 without obtaining the necessary permits. In February and August
2009, District representatives met with federal government representatives to discuss the NOV and no additional
meetings have been scheduled. In general, enforcement action by EPA against the District for alleged
noncompliance with Clean Air Act requirements, if upheld after court review, can result in the requirement to
install expensive air pollution control equipment that is the BART and the imposition of monetary penalties ranging
from $25,000 to $32,500 per day for each violation. The District cannot determine at this time whether it will have
any future financial obligation with respect to the NOV.
On October 23, 2015, the EPA published the final Clean Power Plan (“CPP”) rule addressing carbon
dioxide reductions from existing fossil-fueled power plants. The final rule gave states significant responsibility for
determining how to achieve the reduction targets through the development of a State Plan. Each state was given
a reduction target to be achieved by 2030 with interim reductions required between 2022 and 2029. The
Nebraska reduction target for 2030 was 40% below 2012 emissions. On February 9, 2016, the U.S. Supreme
Court granted a stay, halting implementation of the CPP pending the resolution of legal challenges to the
program. That challenge is currently before the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit. An initial State Plan
providing a general outline of potential compliance options was due September 6, 2016. These deadlines are no
longer in effect and state actions have been placed on hold pending the outcome of litigation. It is not possible to
determine the impact to the District until the resolution of the legal challenges.
Any changes in the environmental regulatory requirements imposed by federal or state law which are applicable
to the District’s generating stations could result in increased capital and operating costs being incurred by the
District. The District is unable to predict whether any changes will be made to current environmental regulatory
requirements, if such changes will be applicable to the District and the costs thereof to the District.
G. Sale of Spencer Hydro Facility In September 2015, a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) was signed for the sale of the District’s Spencer
Hydro (“Spencer”) facility, including dam, structures, land, water appropriations and perpetual easements for the
reservoir, to the Niobrara River Basin Alliance (Five Natural Resource Districts) and the Nebraska Game and
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Parks Commission. The MOU provides that the parties will work for passage of legislation by the State of
Nebraska for a permanent transfer of existing hydro water appropriation to a new multi-purpose use, and it
identifies potential sources of funding for the sale. The District will continue to operate Spencer until transfer of
ownership, including water appropriations, is completed. The transfer is expected to take approximately two years
to complete.
H. Other In October 2015, the Internal Revenue Service affirmed, pursuant to the requirements of the Balanced Budget
and Emergency Deficit Control Act of 1985, as amended, that the 35% interest subsidy provided by the United
States Treasury on the District’s General Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series A (Taxable Build America Bonds) and
2010 Series A (Taxable Build America Bonds), will be reduced by 6.8% for fiscal year ending
September 30, 2016. Previous reductions were 7.3% for fiscal year ending September 30, 2015, and 7.2% for
fiscal year ended September 30, 2014. The reduction rate is subject to change by Congressional action. This loss
of subsidy totals approximately $0.2 million annually.
13. LITIGATION:
A number of claims and suits are pending against the District for alleged damages to persons and property and
for other alleged liabilities arising out of matters usually incidental to the operation of a utility, such as the District.
In the opinion of management, based upon the advice of its General Counsel, the aggregate amounts recoverable
from the District, taking into account estimated amounts provided in the financial statements and insurance
coverage, are not material as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. Information on litigation with wholesale customers
is included in Note 12.
14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:
In February 2016, the District issued General Revenue Bonds, 2016 Series A and 2016 Series B in the amount of
$139.2 million to advance refund $138.9 million of bonds and refund $16.5 million of TECP. The refunding
reduced total debt service payments over the life of the bonds by $29.8 million, which resulted in present value
savings of $20.8 million.
Also in February 2016, the District entered into an escrow deposit agreement in conjunction with the advanced
refunding of certain of the:
• General Revenue Bonds, 2007 Series B, having maturity dates ranging from January 1, 2026 through
January 1, 2037
• General Revenue Bonds, 2008 Series B, having maturity dates ranging from January 1, 2026 through
January 1, 2041, and
• General Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series C, maturing on January 1, 2025 and January 1, 2026
In January 2016, the District issued TECP in the amount of $43.6 million to refund a portion of the 2005 Series C
and 2006 Series A General Revenue Bonds. In February 2016, $16.5 million of TECP was refunded by General
Revenue Bonds, 2016 Series A and B.
Effective January 1, 2016, the District entered into new 20-year Wholesale Power Contracts with certain
wholesale customers as described in Note 12.
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES (UNAUDITED)
Calculation of Debt Service Ratios in accordance with the General Revenue
Bond Resolution for the years ended December 31, (in 000’s)
Operating revenues ......................................................................................

2015

2014

$ 1,097,216

$ 1,122,454

Operating expenses .....................................................................................

(960,259)

Operating income ....................................................................................

(1,010,693)

136,957

111,761

Investment and other income .........................................................................

22,355

26,039

Debt and other expenses ..............................................................................

(68,252)

(75,438)

91,060

62,362

Increase in net position ............................................................................
Add:
Collections for future debt retirement .........................................................

-

1,188

Debt and related expenses .......................................................................

68,252

75,438

Depreciation and amortization ...................................................................

130,247

126,440

Payments to retail communities⁽¹⁾ .............................................................

26,552

26,874

Amortization of current portion of financed nuclear fuel ................................

24,675

20,700

Amounts collected from third party financing arrangements⁽²⁾ ......................

850

1,276

250,576

251,916

302

190

Deduct:
Investment income retained in construction funds .......................................
Unrealized (loss) gain on investment securities ..........................................

(1,245)

Revolving credit agreement interest ...........................................................

1,010

1,731

67

2,124

Net position available for debt service for the General Revenue Bond Resolution .

203

$

341,569

$

312,154

$

110,265

$

124,780

Amounts deposited in the General System Debt Service Account:
Principal .................................................................................................
Interest ...................................................................................................

75,372
$

Ratio of net position available for debt service to debt service deposits ..............

185,637

82,978
$

207,758

1.84

(1) Under the provisions of the General Revenue Bond Resolution, the payments required to be made by the District w ith respect
to the Professional Retail Operations Agreements are to be made on the same basis as subordinated debt.
(2) Under the provisions of the General Revenue Bond Resolution, the payments received by the District from third party financing
arrangements provide for debt service coverage, but are not recognized as revenue under Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles.
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Schedule of Funding Progress for OPEB as of January 1, (in 000’s)

2015 (1)
2014
2013
(1)

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
(a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability (AAL)
(b)

Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability
(UAAL)
(b‑a)

$64,487
$48,274
$30,781

$309,908
$506,200
$520,705

$245,421
$457,926
$489,924

Funded Ratio

Covered
Payroll

(a/b)

(c)

UAAL to
Covered
Payroll
((b‑a)/c)

20.8%
9.5%
5.9%

$186,952
$186,637
$187,378

131%
245%
261%

The decrease in the AAL in the 2015 valuation was due to a change for Medicare-eligible retirees for prescription drugs from the District’s
self-insured employee prescription plan to a group insured Medicare Part D supplement effective January 1, 2016 and a change in
funding. The District changed its funding plan to contribute, at a minimum, the actuarially-determined ARC to achieve full funding status
on or before December 31, 2033, and to pay benefits/expenses from the OPEB Trusts.
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APPENDIX B
DESCRIPTION OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL RESOLUTION

This Appendix includes a general summary of certain provisions of the General Resolution. The summary is not
to be considered a full statement of the terms of the General Resolution, and, accordingly, is qualified by reference to the
General Resolution and is subject to the full text thereof. Copies of the General Resolution may be obtained from the
District upon request. The section references shown in parentheses are to particular sections of the General Resolution.
Definitions
The following are definitions in summary form of certain terms used in the General Resolution.
“Accreted Value” shall mean with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bond, (i) as of any Valuation Date, the
amount set forth for such Date in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Capital Appreciation Bonds and (ii) as of
any date other than a Valuation Date, the sum of (a) the Accreted Value on the preceding Valuation Date and (b) the
product of (1) a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of days having elapsed from the preceding Valuation Date
and the denominator of which is the number of days from such preceding Valuation Date to the next succeeding Valuation
Date, and (2) the difference between the Accreted Values for such Valuation Dates.
“Accrued Aggregate Debt Service” shall mean, as of any date of calculation, an amount equal to the sum of the
amounts of accrued Debt Service with respect to all Bonds, calculating the accrued Debt Service with respect to each
series as an amount equal to the sum of (i) interest on the Bonds of such series accrued and unpaid and to accrue to the end
of the then current calendar month, and (ii) Principal Installments due and unpaid and that portion of the Principal
Installment for such series next due which would have been accrued (if deemed to accrue in the manner set forth in the
definition of Debt Service) to the end of such calendar month. For purposes of this definition, (i) the principal and interest
portions of the Accreted Value of Capital Appreciation Bonds and the Appreciated Value of the Deferred Income Bonds
becoming due at maturity or by virtue of a sinking fund installment shall be included in the calculations of accrued and
unpaid and accruing interest or Principal Installments in the same manner as is provided in the General Resolution under
the definition of Debt Service; and (ii) the Principal Installments, interest, and other charges with respect to
Reimbursement Obligations, Credit Obligations, and Financial Contracts, to the extent such Reimbursement Obligations,
Credit Obligations, and Financial Contracts are payable from the Debt Service Fund, shall be deemed Debt Service to the
extent the same are accrued (calculating the accrued Principal Installments of such Reimbursement Obligations, Credit
Obligations, and Financial Contracts in the same manner as provided in the definition of Debt Service) and unpaid to the
end of such calendar month pursuant to the terms of the Reimbursement Obligations, Credit Obligations, and the Financial
Contracts. For purposes of this definition, the Principal Installments, interest, and other charges with respect to
Reimbursement Obligations shall not be included in the definition of Aggregate Debt Service if the result of such
inclusion for any period would be the duplication of the amount of the principal and interest on the Bonds and the amount
due on such Reimbursement Obligations.
“Aggregate Debt Service” for any period shall mean, as of any date of calculation, the sum of the amounts of
Debt Service for such period with respect to all series of Bonds; provided, however, that for purposes of estimating
Aggregate Debt Service for any future period, any Option Bonds Outstanding during such period shall be assumed to
mature on the stated maturity thereof.
“Aggregate Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement” shall mean the sum of the Primary Debt Service Reserve
Fund Requirement and the Secondary Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement, if any.
“Appreciated Value” shall mean with respect to any Deferred Income Bond prior to the Interest Commencement
Date, (i) as of any Valuation Date, the Appreciated Value of any Deferred Income Bond set forth for such Date in the
Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Deferred Income Bonds and (ii) as of any date other than a Valuation Date, the
sum of (a) the Appreciated Value on the preceding Valuation Date and (b) the product of (1) a fraction, the numerator of
which is the number of days having elapsed from the preceding Valuation Date and the denominator of which is the
number of days from such preceding Valuation Date to the next succeeding Valuation Date, and (2) the difference between
the Appreciated Values for such Valuation Dates.
“Bond” or “Bonds” shall mean any bonds, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness (other than Subordinated
Debt), as the case may be, issued pursuant to the General Resolution, including Reimbursement Obligations, and any
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Bonds thereafter authenticated and delivered in lieu of or in substitution for such Bonds pursuant to the General
Resolution.
“Business Day” shall mean, except as otherwise provided in a Supplemental Resolution with respect to a series
of Bonds, any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the State, or a day on which either the Trustee or the
District is legally authorized to close.
“Capital Appreciation Bonds” shall mean any Bonds hereafter issued as to which interest is payable only at the
maturity or prior redemption of such Bonds. For the purposes of (i) receiving payment of the Redemption Price, if any, of
a Capital Appreciation Bond that is redeemed prior to maturity, or (ii) computing the principal amount of Bonds held by
the Owner of a Capital Appreciation Bond in giving any notice, consent, request, or demand pursuant to the General
Resolution for any purpose whatsoever, the principal amount of a Capital Appreciation Bond shall be deemed to be its
Accreted Value.
“Credit Enhancement” shall mean the issuance or execution of an insurance policy, letter of credit, surety bond,
standby bond purchase agreement, liquidity facility, guarantee, or any other similar obligation, which provides security or
liquidity with respect to the principal of and interest on indebtedness of the District.
“Credit Enhancer” shall mean any person or entity which, pursuant to a Supplemental Resolution, is designated
as a Credit Enhancer and which provides Credit Enhancement.
“Credit Obligation” shall mean any obligation of the District under a contract, lease, installment sales agreement,
or other instrument, to make payments for property, services, or commodities, including capacity and energy or
transmission capacity, whether or not the same are made available, furnished, or received, or any other obligation of the
District under which the District lends credit to or guarantees debts, claims, or other obligations of any other person for the
purpose of obtaining property, services, or commodities, including capacity and energy or transmission capacity.
“Debt Service” for any period shall mean, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any series of Bonds
Outstanding, an amount equal to the sum of (i) the interest accruing during such period on such series of Bonds, except to
the extent that such interest is to be paid from deposits made from Bond proceeds into the Debt Service Fund and (ii) that
portion of each Principal Installment for such series which would accrue during such period if such Principal Installment
were deemed to accrue daily in equal amounts from the next preceding Principal Installment due date for such series or, if
there shall be no such preceding Principal Installment due date, from a date one year (or such lesser period as shall be
appropriate if Principal Installments shall become due more frequently than annually) preceding the due date of such
Principal Installment or from the date of issuance of the Bonds of such series, whichever date is later. Such interest and
Principal Installments for such Series shall be calculated on the assumption that no Bonds of such Series Outstanding at
the date of calculation will cease to be Outstanding except by reason of the payment of each Principal Installment on the
due date thereof and the principal amount of Option Bonds tendered for payment and not remarketed before the stated
maturity thereof shall be deemed to accrue on the date required to be paid pursuant to such tender in the manner and only
to the extent required by the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Option Bonds and the principal amount of Option
Bonds to be refinanced shall be deemed to accrue at least 35 days prior to the maturity date of such Bonds. For purposes of
this definition, the principal and interest portions of the Accreted Value of Capital Appreciation Bonds and the
Appreciated Value of Deferred Income Bonds becoming due at maturity or by virtue of a sinking fund installment shall be
included in the calculations of accrued and unpaid and accruing interest or Principal Installments made under this
definition only from and after the date (the “Calculation Date”) which is one (1) year (or such lesser period if so provided
in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing a particular series of Bonds) prior to the date on which such Accreted Value or
Appreciated Value becomes so due, and the principal and interest portions of such Accreted Value or Appreciated Value
shall be deemed to accrue in equal daily installments from the Calculation Date to such date.
“Defeasance Securities” shall mean and include, (i) direct obligations of the United States of America,
(ii) certificates that evidence direct ownership of the right to payments of principal or interest on direct obligations of the
United States of America, provided that such obligations shall be held in trust on behalf of the owner of such certificates
by a bank or trust company or a national banking association meeting the requirements for a successor Trustee under the
General Resolution, (iii) obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed by United States
of America, (iv) any obligations of any state or any political subdivision of a state (“Municipal Obligation”) which
Municipal Obligations are fully secured as to principal and interest by an irrevocable pledge of monies or direct and
general obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the United States of America, and which
Municipal Obligations are rated in the highest rating category by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies,
(v) certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or non-negotiable, of any of the 25 largest banks (measured by aggregate
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capital surplus) in the United States, and (vi) any other security designated in a Supplemental Resolution as a Defeasance
Security for purposes of defeasing Bonds issued on and after the date of adoption of such Supplemental Resolution.
Defeasance Securities in any case shall not be subject to prepayment or redemption prior to their maturity other than at the
option of the Owner thereof or as to which an irrevocable notice of redemption of such Defeasance Securities on a
specified redemption date has been given and such Defeasance Securities shall not otherwise be subject to redemption
prior to such specified date other than at the option of the Owner thereof.
“Deferred Income Bonds” shall mean any Bonds hereafter issued as to which accruing interest is not paid prior to
the Interest Commencement Date specified in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Bonds and the Appreciated
Value for such Bonds is compounded on the Valuation Date for such series of Deferred Income Bonds.
“Estimated Interest Rate” shall mean, as of any date of calculation, as to any particular Variable Interest Rate
Bonds, an assumed, fixed rate of interest equal to the greater of (a) that rate, as estimated by the District, on the date of
adoption of the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Variable Interest Rate Bonds (or the date of sale
of such Variable Interest Rate Bonds if such sale date is not the date of adoption of such Supplemental Resolution), which
such Variable Interest Rate Bonds would have had to bear to be marketed at par on such date as fixed rate obligations with
the same maturity schedule as such Variable Interest Rate Bonds, or (b) the then current Variable Interest Rate borne by
such Variable Interest Rate Bonds.
“Financial Contract” shall mean (i) any contract known as or referred to or which performs the function of an
interest rate swap agreement, currency swap agreement, forward payment conversion agreement, or futures contract,
(ii) any contract providing for payments based on levels of, or changes or differences in, interest rates, currency exchange
rates, stock, or other indices, (iii) any contract to exchange cash flows or payments or a series of payments, (iv) any type of
contract, including, without limitation, interest rate floors or caps, options, puts, or calls, to hedge or minimize any type of
financial risk, including, without limitation, payment, currency, rate, fuel supply, energy, commodities, or any other
financial risk, and (v) any other type of contract or arrangement which the District determines is to be used, or is intended,
to manage or reduce the cost of debt, to convert any element of debt from one form to another, to maximize or increase
investment return, to minimize investment return risk, or to protect against any type of financial or investment risk or
uncertainty.
“Fiscal Year” shall mean the then current annual accounting period of the District for its general accounting
purposes which period, at the time of the adoption of the General Resolution, is the twelve (12) month period commencing
on January 1 of each year and ending on the next succeeding December 31.
“General Resolution” shall mean the General Revenue Bond Resolution, as from time to time amended or
supplemented by Supplemental Resolutions in accordance with the terms thereof.
“Interest Commencement Date” shall mean, with respect to any particular Deferred Income Bonds, the date
specified in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Bonds (which date must be prior to the maturity date for such
Bonds) after which interest accruing on such Bonds shall be payable with the first such payment date being the applicable
interest payment date immediately succeeding such Interest Commencement Date.
“Investment Securities” shall mean any securities which are legal investments for the District under the laws of
the State.
“Net Revenues” for any period shall mean the Revenues during such period minus Operating Expenses during
such period.
“Nuclear Facility” shall mean Cooper Nuclear Station, which is a nominally rated 800 MW nuclear generation
plant located on a site on the Missouri River approximately 65 miles south of Omaha, Nebraska, and certain high voltage
transmission facilities associated with said Station.
“Operating Expenses” shall mean all actual maintenance and operation costs of the System incurred by the
District in any particular Fiscal Year or period to which said term is applicable or charges made therefor during such Fiscal
Year or period, but only if such charges are made in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, including
amounts reasonably required to be set aside in reserves for items of Operating Expenses the payment of which is not then
immediately required.
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Such Operating Expenses include, but are not limited to, costs related to in lieu of taxes and other governmental
charges, obligations with respect to Financial Contracts related to fuel supply, and energy to the extent provided in such
contracts, obligations with respect to the United States Treasury pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code, or similar
requirement to pay rebate, fuel costs, including the leasing of nuclear fuel, costs of purchased power and transmission
service, so long as the Nuclear Facility Resolution shall not have been satisfied and discharged, payments required to be
made pursuant to the Nuclear Facility Resolution, and any other current expenses or obligations required to be paid by the
District under the provisions of the General Resolution or by law, all to the extent properly allocable to the System, and
the fees and expenses of the Fiduciaries.
Such Operating Expenses do not include depreciation or obsolescence charges or reserves therefor, amortization
of intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a similar nature, interest charges and charges for the payment of principal,
or amortization, of bonded or other indebtedness of the District, costs, or charges made therefor, for capital additions,
replacements, betterments, extensions, or improvements to or retirements from the System which under Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles are properly chargeable to the capital account or the reserve for depreciation, and do not
include losses from the sale, abandonment, reclassification, revaluation, or other disposition of any properties of the
System nor such property items, including taxes and fuel, which are capitalized pursuant to the then existing accounting
practice of the District and any lease payments required to be made by the District with respect to the lease of municipal
retail electric distribution systems from the General Reserve Fund created under the Original Resolution or leases of such
systems or other municipal energy systems where the lease payments are required to be made on the same basis as
Subordinated Debt.
“Opinion of Counsel” shall mean an opinion signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys of recognized standing in
the field of law relating to municipal bonds selected by the District.
“Option Bonds” shall mean Bonds (i) which by their terms may be or are required to be tendered by the Owner
thereof for payment or purchase by the District or a third party on or prior to the stated maturity thereof or (ii) which the
District, as evidenced by a Supplemental Resolution adopted by the District no later than 270 days prior to the maturity
date of such Bonds, intends to refinance at least 35 days prior to the maturity date of such Bonds.
“Original Resolution” shall mean the resolution entitled “Electric System Revenue Bond Resolution” adopted by
the Board on August 22, 1968, together with amendments and supplements thereto adopted in the accordance with the
terms thereof.
“Outstanding” when used with reference to Bonds, shall mean, as of any date, Bonds theretofore or thereupon
being authenticated and delivered under the General Resolution except (i) Bonds cancelled by the Trustee at or prior to
such date; (ii) Bonds (or portions of Bonds) for the payment or redemption of which monies, equal to the principal amount
or Redemption Price thereof, as the case may be, with interest to the date of maturity or redemption date, shall be held in
trust under the General Resolution and set aside for such payment or redemption (whether at or prior to the maturity or
redemption date), provided that if such Bonds (or portions of Bonds) are to be redeemed, notice of such redemption shall
have been given or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the giving of such notice as provided in
the General Resolution; (iii) Bonds of such series in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds of such series shall
have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to any provision of the General Resolution; (iv) Bonds with respect to
which all liability of the District shall have been discharged in accordance with the defeasance provisions of the General
Resolution (for the provisions relating to defeasance, see “Defeasance of the Bonds” in this Appendix); and (v) Option
Bonds deemed tendered in accordance with the provisions of the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Bonds on the
applicable adjustment or conversion date, if interest thereon shall have been paid through such applicable date and the
purchase price thereof shall have been paid or amounts are available for such payment as provided in the General
Resolution.
For the purposes of the definition of Outstanding and subject to provisions in the General Resolution,
Reimbursement Obligations shall only be deemed Outstanding in a principal amount equal to the amount then owed by the
District to the Credit Enhancer thereunder.
“Pledged Property” shall mean the Revenues and the Funds and Accounts created under the General Resolution,
including Investment Securities held in any such Funds and Accounts, together with all proceeds and revenues of the
foregoing.
“Primary Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement” shall mean, as of any date of calculation and subject to
adjustment as hereinafter provided, an amount, equal to fifty percent of the maximum amount of interest accrued or to
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accrue for the then current or any future Fiscal Year on all Bonds Outstanding as of the date or dates of calculations (other
than Bonds secured by Credit Enhancement). Bonds secured by Credit Enhancement may have no Primary Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement for such Bonds or may have a Primary Debt Service Reserve Requirement in the amount, if
any, set forth in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Bonds. For purposes of this definition, (i) the Principal
Installments, interest, and other costs with respect to Reimbursement Obligations, Credit Obligations, and Financial
Contracts shall not, unless otherwise required by the terms of the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such
Reimbursement Obligations, Credit Obligations, and Financial Contracts, be included in the calculation of Primary Debt
Service Reserve Fund Requirement; (ii) the maximum annual interest due in any Fiscal Year with respect to Variable Rate
Bonds shall be calculated at the Estimated Interest Rate; and (iii) and with respect to Capital Appreciation Bonds and
Deferred Income Bonds, fifty percent of the maximum amount of annual interest shall be the maximum semiannual
increase in Appreciated Value for each maturity in any Fiscal Year as compared to the previous Fiscal Year.
“Principal Installment” shall mean, as of any date of calculation and with respect to any series, so long as any
Bonds thereof are Outstanding, (i) the principal amount of Bonds of such series due on a future date certain for which no
sinking fund installments have been established (including the principal amount of Option Bonds tendered for payment
and not purchased), or (ii) the unsatisfied balance (determined as provided in the General Resolution) of any sinking fund
installments due on a certain future date for Bonds of such series, plus the amount of the sinking fund redemption
premiums, if any, which would be applicable upon redemption of such Bonds on such future date in a principal amount
equal to said unsatisfied balance of such sinking fund installments, or (iii) if such future dates coincide as to different
Bonds of such series, the sum of such principal amount of Bonds and of such unsatisfied balance of sinking fund
installments due on such future date plus such applicable redemption premiums, if any.
“Redemption Price” shall mean, with respect to any Bond, the principal amount thereof plus the applicable
premium, if any, payable upon redemption thereof pursuant to such Bond or the General Resolution.
“Reimbursement Obligations” shall mean any Bonds issued pursuant to provisions in the General Resolution for
the purpose of evidencing the District’s payment obligations in connection with Credit Enhancement, whether issued in
one or more series.
“Revenues” shall mean (i) all revenues, income, rents, and receipts earned by the District from or attributable to
the ownership and operation of the System, including all revenues attributable to the System or to the payment of the costs
thereof received by the District under any contract for the sale of power, energy, transmission, or other service from the
System or any part thereof or any contractual arrangement with respect to the use of the System or any portion thereof or
the services, output, or capacity thereof, (ii) the proceeds of any insurance covering business interruption loss relating to
the System, and (iii) interest earned on any monies or investments held pursuant to the General Resolution and required to
be paid into the Revenue Fund, all as determined in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and the
provisions of the General Resolution. Revenues shall include amounts determined by the Board pursuant to Supplemental
Resolution to be included as Revenues. Revenues shall not include (i) sales tax or competitive transition charges or similar
charges which are payable by the District to third parties or which are collected by the District on behalf of or as agent of
third parties; or (ii) proceeds from the sale of any part of the System which are required to be used to pay or redeem debt
of the District or be used to acquire or construct capital improvements to the System as provided in the General
Resolution. Amounts transferred to the Stabilization Account from the Revenue Account of the Revenue Fund shall not be
deemed Revenues and amounts withdrawn from the Stabilization Account and transferred to the Revenue Account shall be
deemed Revenues.
“Secondary Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement” shall mean an initial amount of at least $44,000,000, or
such greater amount or lesser amount as the Board shall determine. The Secondary Debt Service Reserve Fund
Requirement may be eliminated in the discretion of the Board. The final initial amount shall be determined upon the
issuance of the 1998 Series Bonds.
“Subordinated Debt” shall mean indebtedness issued or incurred pursuant to the provisions of the General
Resolution which shall have a pledge subordinate and junior in all respects to the pledge and lien created by the General
Resolution as security for the Bonds.
“Supplemental Resolution” shall mean any resolution supplemental to or amendatory of the General Resolution
adopted by the District in accordance with the General Resolution.
“System” shall mean and include, (i) each facility, plant, works, system, building, structure, improvement,
machinery, equipment, fixture, permit, license, patent, or other real or personal property, which is owned, operated, or

B-5

controlled by the District on the date of adoption of the General Revenue Bond Resolution, and the Nuclear Facility,
(ii) each renewal, replacement, addition, modification, or improvement to (i) above and (iii) all real or personal property
and rights therein and appurtenances thereto, as authorized by resolution of the District to constitute part of the System
under the General Resolution. The System may include any other real or personal property which the Board by resolution
shall determine to be part of the System, and the System shall not include any properties sold pursuant to certain
provisions of the General Resolution.
“Valuation Date” shall mean with respect to any Capital Appreciation Bonds and Deferred Income Bonds, the
date or dates set forth in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Bonds on which specific Accreted Values or
Appreciated Values are assigned to the Capital Appreciation Bonds and Deferred Income Bonds, as the case may be.
“Variable Interest Rate Bonds” for any period of time, shall mean Bonds other than Reimbursement Obligations,
which during such period bear a variable interest rate, provided that Bonds the interest rate on which shall have been fixed
for the remainder of the term thereof shall no longer be Variable Interest Rate Bonds.
Additional Bonds
One or more series of Additional Bonds may be authenticated and delivered upon original issuance at any time or
from time to time for any lawful purpose of the District under the Act provided that the Board finds and determines that
the issuance of such Additional Bonds is in the best interest of the District. The proceeds, including accrued interest, of the
Additional Bonds of each series shall be applied simultaneously with the delivery of such Bonds as provided in the
Supplemental Resolution authorizing such series. (Section 204)
Reimbursement Obligations
Notwithstanding anything in the General Resolution to the contrary, one or more series of Reimbursement
Obligations may be issued concurrently with the issuance of debt of the District for which Credit Enhancement or liquidity
support is being provided with respect to such debt by a third-party. Such Reimbursement Obligations shall be issued for
the purpose of evidencing the District’s payment obligations in connection with such Credit Enhancement, including any
draws under any letter of credit, and other costs and expenses related thereto, and other payments required to be made in
connection with the agreement with the District providing for such Credit Enhancement and any other agreements
executed in connection therewith. (Section 205)
Financial Contracts and Credit Obligations
The District may enter into any Financial Contract and any Credit Obligation, which may contain such terms and
provisions, which the District determines to be necessary, desirable, or convenient. Any payments which the District shall
receive pursuant to a Financial Contract or Credit Obligation shall be deposited into such Fund or Account created by or
under the General Resolution as the District shall determine pursuant to a Supplemental Resolution adopted prior to
entering into such Financial Contract or Credit Obligation. Any payments required to be made by the District pursuant to a
Financial Contract or Credit Obligation shall be payable from, and may be secured by, any Fund or Account created by or
under the General Resolution other than the Revenue Fund, provided, however, the District may enter into a Financial
Contract payable under the Revenue Fund with respect to fuel or energy, and such payment or security may be on a parity
with, or subordinate to, other required payments and security from such Fund or Account, all as the District shall
determine pursuant to a Supplemental Resolution prior to entering into such Financial Contract or Credit Obligation. So
long as the Nuclear Facility Resolution of the District shall not have been satisfied and discharged, the District shall not
enter into any Financial Contract Fund or Credit Obligation which shall rank in parity with or have priority over the
obligation of the District to pay for power and energy from the Nuclear Facility in accordance with the Nuclear Facility
Resolution. (Section 206)
The Pledge Effected by the General Resolution
The Bonds are direct and special obligations of the District payable solely from and secured as to payment of the
principal and Redemption Price thereof and interest thereon in accordance with their terms and the provisions of the
General Resolution solely by the Pledged Property and there is pledged and assigned as security for the payment of the
principal and Redemption Price of, and interest on, the Bonds in accordance with their terms and the provisions of the
General Resolution, subject only to the provisions of the General Resolution permitting the application thereof for the
purposes and on the terms and conditions set forth in the General Resolution, all of the Pledged Property. All Pledged
Property shall immediately be subject to the lien of the pledge without any physical delivery thereof or further act, and the
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lien of this pledge shall be valid and binding as against all persons having claims of any kind in tort, contract, or otherwise
against the District, irrespective of whether such persons have notice thereof.
Nothing contained in the General Resolution shall be construed to prevent the District from acquiring,
constructing, or financing through the issuance of its bonds, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness any facilities which
do not constitute a part of the System for the purposes of the General Resolution or from securing such bonds, notes, or
other evidences of indebtedness by a mortgage of the facilities so financed or by a pledge of, the revenues therefrom or
any lease or other agreement with respect thereto or any revenues derived from such lease or other agreement or from
funds withdrawn from the General Resolution which are free and clear of the lien of the General Resolution provided,
however, that prior to the issuance of such bonds, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness, the District shall make a
finding that such issuance shall not materially adversely affect the Owners of the Bonds then Outstanding. The District
expressly reserves the right to adopt one or more resolutions separate and apart from the General Resolution and reserves
the right to issue bonds or other obligations of the District under such resolutions for any of its authorized
purposes. (Section 501)
Establishment of Funds and Accounts
The General Resolution establishes the following funds and separate accounts:
(a)

Construction Fund, to be held by the District; Revenue Fund, to be held by the District, which shall
consist of a Revenue Account and a Stabilization Account; Debt Service Fund, to be held by the
Trustee; and Debt Service Reserve Fund, to be held by the Trustee, which shall consist of a Primary
Account and a Secondary Account. The District may, pursuant to a Supplemental Resolution, create
additional funds and accounts to be held by the Trustee or the District under the General
Resolution. (Section 502)

Construction Fund
There shall be paid into the Construction Fund the amounts required to be so paid by the provisions of a
Supplemental Resolution, and there may be paid into the Construction Fund, at the option of the District, any monies of
the District. Amounts in the Construction Fund shall be applied for any purpose of the System in the manner provided in
the General Resolution or in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing a series of Bonds. (Section 503)
Revenue Fund
All Revenues shall be promptly deposited by the District upon receipt thereof into the Revenue Account in the
Revenue Fund.
(a)

The District may transfer to the Stabilization Account such amounts as it shall determine from the
Revenue Account. Amounts in the Stabilization Account may be withdrawn at any time and from time
to time by the District and transferred to the Revenue Account.

(b)

Amounts in the Revenue Account may be applied from time to time in each month to the payment of
Operating Expenses.

(c)

The District may, pursuant to Supplemental Resolutions, create additional accounts in the Revenue
Fund into which amounts on deposit in the Revenue Account may be transferred or deposited prior to
the application of the Revenues to the payment of principal and interest on the Bonds. (Section 504)
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Payments into Certain Funds
After the application to fund transfers and to the payment of Operating Expenses described under the subheading
“Revenue Fund” above, no later than the fifth Business Day preceding the end of each month (except for transfers to
Secondary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund which transfers are only required to be made no later than the fifth
Business Day preceding the end of each June and December), the District shall transfer from the Revenue Account for
deposit or transfer, as applicable, to the following Funds, in the following priority, the amounts set forth below to the
extent available in the Revenue Account (such application to be made in such a manner so as to assure immediately
available funds in such Funds on the last Business Day of such month):
(a)

To the Debt Service Fund, the amount, if any, required so that the balance in said Fund shall equal the
Accrued Aggregate Debt Service as of the last day of the then current month or, if interest and/or
principal are required to be paid to the Owners of Bonds or a Credit Enhancer or pursuant to a Financial
Contract or a Credit Obligation during the next succeeding month on a day other than the first day of
such month, Accrued Aggregate Debt Service as of the day through and including which such interest
and/or principal is required to be paid; provided that, for the purposes of computing the amount to be
deposited in said Fund, there shall be excluded from the balance of said Fund the amount, if any, set
aside in said Fund from the proceeds of Bonds (including amounts, if any, transferred thereto from the
Construction Fund) for the payment of interest on Bonds; and

(b)

To the Debt Service Reserve Fund (except as provided below), (i) the amount, if any, required for the
Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, after giving effect to any surety bond, insurance
policy, or other similar obligation deposited in such Account pursuant to the General Resolution, to
equal the Primary Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement as of the last Business Day of the then
current month and (ii) the amount, if any, required for the Secondary Account in the Debt Service
Reserve Fund, to equal the Secondary Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement as of the fifth Business
Day preceding the end of each June and December;

Notwithstanding anything contained in the above paragraph, so long as there shall be held in the Debt Service
Fund and the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund an amount sufficient to pay in full all Outstanding Bonds
in accordance with their terms (including principal or applicable sinking fund Redemption Price and interest thereon), no
transfers shall be required to be made to the Debt Service Fund.
Any deficiency in the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, (other than a deficiency resulting from
a conversion of Variable Interest Rate Bond or Bonds to a fixed rate Bond or Bonds which are not secured by Credit
Enhancement), after giving effect to any surety bond or insurance policy deposited in such Account pursuant to the
General Resolution, shall be cured by depositing into the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund each month
during the period commencing with the month following the month in which the determination of the deficiency was made
an amount equal to one-twelfth (1/12th) of the deficiency. A deficiency in the Primary Account in the Debt Service
Reserve Fund, after giving effect to any surety bond or insurance policy deposited in such Account pursuant to provisions
of the General Resolution, resulting from a conversion of Variable Rate Bond or Bonds to a fixed rate Bond or Bonds
which are not secured by Credit Enhancement, shall be cured by depositing into the Primary Account in the Debt Service
Reserve Fund each month during the period commencing with the first month of the first Fiscal Year following the Fiscal
Year in which such conversion occurred, an amount equal to one-twenty-fourth of the deficiency.
Any deficiency in the Secondary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be cured by depositing into the
Secondary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund each June and December during the period commencing with the
June and December following the month in which the determination of the deficiency was made, an amount equal to
one-tenth (1/10th) of the deficiency; provided, however, the Board is permitted to determine a curative period of longer or
shorter duration.
Notwithstanding the above, if a new valuation of Investment Securities held in the Debt Service Reserve Fund is
made pursuant to the General Resolution during the period that such deposits are required, then the obligation of the
District to make deposits during the balance of such period on the basis of the preceding valuation shall be discharged and
the deposits, if any, required to be made for the balance of such period shall be determined under this sentence on the basis
of the new valuation with respect to the remaining balance of the initial deficiency. (Section 505)
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Debt Service Fund
The Trustee shall pay out of the Debt Service Fund to the respective paying agents or to the Credit Enhancers
with respect to the payment of Reimbursement Obligations or the party to a Financial Contract or Credit Obligations to the
extent such Financial Contract or Credit Obligations is payable from the Debt Service Fund (i) on or before each interest
payment date for any of the Bonds, the amount required for the interest payable on such date; (ii) on or before each
Principal Installment due date, the amount required for the Principal Installment payable on such due date; (iii) on or
before any redemption date for the Bonds, the amount required for the payment of interest and premium, if any, on the
Bonds then to be redeemed; and (iv) on or before any payment date with respect to a Financial Contract or Credit
Obligation payable from the Debt Service Fund, the amount for the payment under such Financial Contract or Credit
Obligation. In the case of Variable Rate Bonds, the District shall furnish the Trustee with a certificate setting forth the
amount to be paid on such Bonds on each interest payment date, such certificate shall be furnished on or prior to the
appropriate Record Date with respect to any interest payment date. Such amounts shall be applied by the paying agents on
and after the due dates thereof. In the case of Reimbursement Obligations, Credit Obligations, or Financial Contracts, the
District shall furnish the Trustee with a certificate setting forth the amount to be paid with respect to such Reimbursement
Obligations, Credit Obligations, or Financial Contracts on or prior to the appropriate payment dates related thereto. The
Trustee shall also pay out of the Debt Service Fund the accrued interest included in the purchase price of Bonds purchased
by the District or the Trustee for retirement, provided that at the time of payment of such accrued interest there shall exist
no deficiency in the Debt Service Fund.
Amounts accumulated in the Debt Service Fund with respect to any sinking fund installment may and, if so
directed by the District, shall be applied by the Trustee, on or prior to the 40th day next preceding the due date of such
sinking fund installment, to (i) the purchase of Bonds of the series and maturity for which such sinking fund installment
was established, or (ii) the redemption at the applicable sinking fund Redemption Price of such Bonds, if then redeemable
by their terms. All purchases of any Bonds pursuant to this paragraph shall be made at prices not exceeding the applicable
sinking fund Redemption Price of such Bonds plus accrued interest, and such purchases shall be made by the Trustee as
directed in writing from time to time by the District. The applicable sinking fund Redemption Price (or principal amount
of maturing Bonds) of any Bonds so purchased or redeemed shall be deemed to constitute part of the Debt Service Fund
until such sinking fund installment date, for the purpose of calculating the amount of such Account. As soon as practicable
after the 40th day preceding the due date of any such sinking fund installment, the Trustee shall proceed to call for
redemption, by giving notice as provided in the General Resolution, on such due date Bonds of the series and maturity for
which such sinking fund installment was established (except in the case of Bonds maturing on a sinking fund installment
date) in such amount as shall be necessary to complete the retirement of the unsatisfied balance of such sinking fund
installment. The Trustee shall pay out of the Debt Service Fund to the appropriate paying agents, on or before such
redemption date (or maturity date), the amount required for the redemption of the Bonds so called for redemption (or for
the payment of such Bonds then maturing), and such amount shall be applied by such paying agents to such
redemption (or payment). All expenses in connection with the purchase or redemption of Bonds shall be paid by the
District as an Operating Expense.
Upon any purchase or redemption of Bonds of any series and maturity for which sinking fund installments shall
have been established, there shall be credited toward any one or more sinking fund installment thereafter to become due
such amount or amounts as shall be determined by the District. The portion of any such sinking fund installment
remaining after the deduction of any such amounts credited toward the same (or the original amount of any such sinking
fund installment if no such amounts shall have been credited toward the same) shall constitute the unsatisfied balance of
such sinking fund installment for the purpose of calculation of sinking fund installments due on a future date.
The amount, if any, deposited in the Debt Service Fund from the proceeds of each series of Bonds shall be set
aside in such Fund and applied to the payment of interest on Bonds as provided in the Supplemental Resolution authorized
such series of Bonds.
In the event of the refunding of any Bonds, the Trustee shall, if the District so directs in writing, withdraw from
the Debt Service Fund all, or any portion of, the amounts accumulated therein with respect to Debt Service on the Bonds
being refunded and deposit such amounts with itself as Trustee to be held for the payment of the principal or Redemption
Price, if applicable, and interest on the Bonds being refunded or deposit such amounts in any Fund or Account created
under the General Resolution.
Upon the issuance of each series of Bonds secured by a Credit Enhancer, the District may establish a separate
subaccount in the Debt Service Fund for such Bonds and shall deposit into such separate subaccount the proceeds of such
Credit Enhancement. Each such subaccount established in the Debt Service Fund shall be solely for the benefit of the
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series of Bonds for which such subaccount was established and not for the Owners of any other series of Bonds. The
monies in such subaccount shall not be commingled with other monies in the Debt Service Fund. (Section 506)
Debt Service Reserve Fund—Primary Account
If on any interest or Principal Installment due date with respect to any series of Bonds, payment for such interest
or Principal Installment in full has not been made or provided for, and there are no monies available therefor in the
Secondary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund the Trustee shall forthwith withdraw from the Primary Account in
the Debt Service Reserve Fund, an amount not exceeding the amount required to provide for such payment in full and
deposit such amount in the Debt Service Fund for application to such payment. To the extent provided in the Supplemental
Resolution authorizing a Financial Contract or Credit Obligations, the Trustee shall withdraw and apply to the payment of
such Financial Contract or Credit Obligations such amounts from the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund
as shall be provided for in such Supplemental Resolution.
Whenever the amount in the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall exceed the Primary Debt
Service Reserve Fund Requirement, after giving effect to any surety bond or insurance policy deposited in the Primary
Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund pursuant to the General Resolution, and the amount on deposit in the
Secondary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be at least equal to the Secondary Debt Service Reserve Fund
Requirement, such excess shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund.
Whenever the amount in the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund (exclusive of any surety bond or
insurance policy therein), together with the amount in the Debt Service Fund is sufficient to pay in full all Outstanding
Bonds in accordance with their terms (including principal or applicable sinking fund Redemption Price and interest
thereon), the funds on deposit in the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be transferred to the Debt
Service Fund. Prior to said transfer, all investments held in the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be
liquidated to the extent necessary in order to provide for the timely payment of principal and interest (or Redemption
Price, if any) on the Bonds.
In lieu of the required transfers or deposits to the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the District
may cause to be deposited into the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund a surety bond or an insurance
policy for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds in an amount equal to all or a portion of the Primary Debt Service
Reserve Fund Requirement. The surety bond or insurance policy shall be payable (upon the giving of notice as required
thereunder), on any due date on which monies will be required to be withdrawn from the Primary Account in the Debt
Service Reserve Fund and applied to the payment of a Principal Installment of or interest on any Bonds and such
withdrawal cannot be met by amounts on deposit in the Accounts in the Debt Service Reserve Fund. The insurer providing
such surety bond or insurance policy shall be an insurer whose municipal bond insurance policies insuring the payment,
when due, of the principal of and interest on municipal bond issues results in such issues being rated in the highest rating
category by two of the national rating agencies at the time of deposit of such surety bond or insurance policy. The District
may issue a Reimbursement Obligation payable solely from the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund to
evidence its obligations with respect to any bond insurance policy or surety bond.
In the event of the refunding of any Bonds, the Trustee shall, if the District so directs in writing, withdraw from
the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund all, or any portion of, the amounts accumulated therein with
respect to the Bonds being refunded and deposit such amounts with itself as Trustee to be held for the payment of the
principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest on the Bonds being refunded; provided that such withdrawal
shall not be made unless (a) immediately thereafter the Bonds being refunded shall be deemed to have been paid pursuant
to the General Resolution, and (b) the amount remaining in the Primary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, after
giving effect to the issuance of the refunding Bonds and the disposition of the proceeds thereof, shall not be less than the
Primary Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement. (Section 507)

B-10

Debt Service Reserve Fund—Secondary Account
If on any interest or Principal Installment due date with respect to any series of Bonds, payment for such interest
or Principal Installment in full has not been made or provided for, the Trustee shall forthwith withdraw from the
Secondary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund an amount not exceeding the amount required to provide for such
payment in full and deposit such amount in the Debt Service Fund for application to such payment. To the extent provided
in the Supplemental Resolution authorizing a Financial Contract or Credit Obligations, the Trustee shall withdraw and
apply to the payment of such Financial Contract or Credit Obligations such amounts from the Secondary Account in the
Debt Service Reserve Fund as shall be provided for in such Supplemental Resolution.
(1)
Whenever the amount in the Secondary Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall
exceed the Secondary Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement, and the amount on deposit in the Primary
Account in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be at least equal to the Primary Debt Service Reserve Fund
Requirement, such excess shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund.
(2)
Notwithstanding anything contained in this subheading to the contrary, amounts on deposit in
the Secondary Account may be applied by the District for any lawful purpose of the District upon receipt by the
Trustee of a certificate of an Authorized Officer of the District stating the purposes for which such monies are to
be used.
(3)
The District shall advise the Trustee in writing of any increase or reduction in the amount of
the Secondary Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement. (Section 508)
Investment of Certain Funds
Monies held in any Fund or Account shall be invested and reinvested to the fullest extent practicable in
Investment Securities which mature or otherwise become payable no later than such times as shall be necessary to provide
monies when needed for payments to be made from such Fund or Account. Each depository and the Trustee shall make all
such investments of monies held by it in accordance with instructions, from time to time received from any authorized
officer of the District. In making any investment in any Investment Securities with monies in any Fund or Account
established under the General Resolution, the District may instruct the Trustee or any depository to combine such monies
with monies in any other Fund or Account, but solely for purposes of making such investment in such Investment
Securities.
Unless otherwise provided in a Supplemental Resolution, interest (net of that which represents a return of
accrued interest paid in connection with the purchase of any investment) earned or any gain realized on any monies or
investments in such Funds and Accounts, other than the Construction Fund, shall be paid into the Revenue Fund at such
times and in such manner as the District shall determine; provided, however, that at the direction of the District, such
income earned on monies or investments in any Fund or Account or any portion thereof shall be paid into the Construction
Fund in such times and in such manner as the District shall determine. Interest earned or gain realized on any monies or
investments in the Construction Fund shall be held in such Fund for the purposes thereof or, if so directed by the District,
paid into the Revenue Fund. (Section 603)
Valuations and Sale of Investments
Obligations purchased as an investment of monies in any Fund or Account created under the provisions of the
General Resolution shall be deemed at all times to be a part of such Fund or Account and any gain realized from the
liquidation of such investment shall be credited to such Fund or Account, and any loss resulting from the liquidation of
such investment shall be charged to the respective Fund or Account.
In computing the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund created under the provisions of the General
Resolution for any purpose provided in the General Resolution, except as otherwise provided under this subheading,
obligations purchased as an investment of money therein shall be valued at the amortized cost of such obligations,
provided that obligations, other than any repurchase agreement or investment agreements, which mature five years or later
after such date of evaluation shall be valued at the market price thereof. Any insurance policy or surety bond deposited in
the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be valued at the lesser of the amount to be drawn thereunder or the principal amount
thereof. Any repurchase agreement or investment agreement shall be valued at the principal amount thereof. Such
computation shall be determined by the Trustee on December 31 of each year and at such other times as the District shall
determine. (Section 604)
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Creation of Liens; Sale and Lease of Property
The District shall not issue any bonds, notes, debentures, or other evidences of indebtedness of similar nature,
other than Financial Contracts payable as Operating Expenses, payable out of or secured by a pledge or assignment of the
Pledged Property having any lien or charge on the Pledged Property superior or in priority to the lien thereon of the Bonds,
Financial Contracts or Credit Obligations authorized by the General Resolution.
The District may not sell all or substantially all of the System unless payment or provision for payment of the
outstanding Bonds is made. The District may sell or exchange at any time and from time to time any property or facilities
constituting part of the System; provided, however, prior to any sale of any generation facilities or transmission facilities,
the Board shall adopt a resolution determining that such sale is in the best interest of the District. The net proceeds of any
such sale not used to acquire other property necessary or desirable for the purposes of the District in the operation of the
System shall forthwith be deposited in any Fund or Account under the General Resolution provided, however, such
amount of sale proceeds which exceeds 5% of the original cost of the District’s utility plant in service, as set forth on the
books of the District, shall be applied to the payment or redemption of Bonds or be used for the construction or acquisition
of other capital improvements to the District. The District may lease or make contracts or grant licenses for the operation
of, or make arrangements for the use of, or grant easements or other rights with respect to, any part or parts of the System.
Any payments received by the District under or in connection with any such lease, contract, license, arrangement,
easement, or right with respect to the System or any part thereof shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund. (Section 706)
Rents, Rates, Fees, and Charges
The District shall charge and collect rents, rates, fees, and charges for the use or the sale of the output, capacity,
or service of the System and any contracts entered into by the District for the use of the output, capacity, or service of the
System shall provide for rents, rates, fees, and charges, which together with other monies expected by the District to be
available therefor, are expected to produce Revenues for each Fiscal Year which will be at least sufficient to pay the sum
of:
(a)

all amounts estimated to be required to pay Operating Expenses during such Fiscal Year;

(b)

a sum equal to 100% of the Aggregate Debt Service for such Fiscal Year computed as of the beginning
of such Fiscal Year;

(c)

the amount, if any, to be paid during such Fiscal Year into the Debt Service Reserve Fund (other than
the amounts required to be paid into such Fund out of the proceeds of Bonds); and

(d)

amounts necessary to pay and discharge all charges or liens payable out of the Revenues during such
Fiscal Year including, but not limited to, payment of Reimbursement Obligations, Credit Obligations,
Subordinated Debt, and Financial Contracts.

In estimating Aggregate Debt Service on any Variable Rate Bonds for purposes under this subheading for a
Fiscal Year, the District shall be entitled to assume that such Variable Interest Rate Bonds will bear interest at the interest
rate borne by such Variable Interest Rate Bonds as of the first day of July of the preceding Fiscal Year. (Section 709)
Accounts and Reports
The District shall keep or cause to be kept proper books of record and account (separate from all other records
and accounts) in which complete and correct entries shall be made of its transactions relating to the System and each Fund
and Account established under the General Resolution and held by the District and which, together with all other books
and papers of the District, including insurance policies, relating to the System, shall at all times be subject to the inspection
of the Trustee and the Owners of an aggregate of not less than 5% in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or
their representatives duly authorized in writing. (Section 710)
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Events of Default
The following events shall constitute an Event of Default under the General Resolution:
(i)
if default shall be made by the District in the due and punctual payment of the
principal (including any sinking fund installment) or Redemption Price of any Bond when and as the same shall
become due and payable, whether at maturity or by call for redemption, or otherwise;
(ii)
if default shall be made by the District in the due and punctual payment of any installment of
interest on any Bond for five Business Days after such interest installment shall become due and payable;
(iii)
if default shall be made by the District in the performance or observance of any other of the
covenants, agreements, or conditions on its part in the General Resolution or in the Bonds contained, and such
default shall continue for a period of 30 days after written notice thereof to the District by the Trustee or to the
District and to the Trustee by the Owners of not less than 10% in principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding;
provided, however, if any such default shall be such that it cannot be corrected within 60 days, it shall not
constitute an Event of Default if corrective action is initiated within such period and diligently pursued until such
failure is corrected;
(iv)
if the District shall commence a voluntary case or similar proceeding under any applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar law now or hereafter in effect or shall authorize, apply for, or consent to
the appointment of or taking possession by a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee, custodian, sequestrator, or
similar official for the District and/or its rents, fees, charges, or other revenues of the System, or shall make any
general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall make a written declaration or admission to the effect that
it is unable to meet its debts as such debts mature, or shall authorize or take any action in furtherance of any of
the foregoing;
(v)
if a court having jurisdiction in the premises shall enter a decree or order for relief with
respect to the District in an involuntary case or similar proceeding under any applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
or other similar law now or hereafter in effect, or a decree or order appointing a receiver, liquidator, assignee,
custodian, trustee, sequestrator, or similar official for the District, and/or the rents, fees, charges, or other
revenues of the System, or a decree or order for the dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of the District and its
affairs or a decree or order finding or determining that the District is unable to meet its debts as such debts
mature, and any such decree or order shall remain unstayed and in effect for a period of 90 consecutive days; and
(vi)
any event pursuant to an agreement between the District and a Credit Enhancer or any event in
a Financial Contract which is set forth in a Supplemental Resolution as an Event of Default under the General
Resolution;
then, and in each and every such case, so long as such Event of Default shall not have been remedied, unless the principal
of all the Bonds shall have already become due and payable, either the Trustee (by notice in writing to the District ), or the
Owners of not less than 25% in principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding (by notice in writing to the District and the
Trustee), may declare the principal of all the Bonds then Outstanding, and the interest accrued thereon, to be due and
payable immediately, and upon any such declaration the same shall become and be immediately due and payable, anything
in the General Resolution or in any of the Bonds contained to the contrary notwithstanding. The right of the Trustee or of
the Owners of not less than 25% in principal amount of the Bonds to make any such declaration as aforesaid, however, is
subject to the condition that if, at any time after such declaration, but before the Bonds shall have matured by their terms,
all overdue installments of interest upon the Bonds, together with interest on such overdue installments of interest to the
extent permitted by law and the reasonable and proper charges, expenses, and liabilities of the Trustee, and all other sums
then payable by the District under the General Resolution (except the principal of, and interest accrued since the next
preceding interest date on, the Bonds due and payable solely by virtue of such declaration) shall either be paid by or for
the account of the District or provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall be made for such payment, and all defaults under
the Bonds or under the General Resolution (other than the payment of principal and interest due and payable solely by
reason of such declaration) shall be made good or be secured to the satisfaction of the Trustee or provision deemed by the
Trustee to be adequate shall be made therefor, then and in every such case the Owners of 25% in principal amount of the
Bonds Outstanding, by written notice to the District and to the Trustee, shall rescind such declaration and annul such
default in its entirety, or, if the Trustee shall have acted itself, and if there shall not have been theretofore delivered to the
Trustee written direction to the contrary by the Owners of 25% in principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding, then any
such declaration shall ipso facto be deemed to be rescinded and any such default shall ipso facto be deemed to be annulled,
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but no such rescission or annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent default or impair or exhaust any right or
power consequent therein. (Section 801)
Remedies
Application of Revenues After Default. The District covenants that if an Event of Default shall happen and shall
not have been remedied, the District, upon the demand of the Trustee, shall pay over or cause to be paid over to the
Trustee (a) forthwith, all monies, securities, and funds then held by the District in any Fund under the General Resolution,
and (b) all Revenues which are not paid directly to the Trustee as promptly as practicable after receipt thereof.
During the continuance of an Event of Default, the Trustee shall apply all monies, securities, funds, and
Revenues received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken under the default and remedy provisions
under the General Resolution together with amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Fund and the Debt Service Reserve
Fund or any other fund or account held by the Trustee under the General Resolution as follows, subject to the obligation of
the District to make the payments required to be made by the System pursuant to the Nuclear Facility Resolution, the
payment of which shall be made prior to the payments set forth in (iii) below, and in the following order:
(i)
Expenses of Fiduciaries—To the payment of the reasonable and proper charges, expenses, and
liabilities of the fiduciaries;
(ii)
Operating Expenses—To the payment of the amounts required for Operating Expenses and for
the reasonable renewals, repairs, and replacements of the System necessary in the judgment of the Trustee to
prevent loss of Revenues. For this purpose the books of record and accounts of the District relating to the System
shall at all times be subject to the inspection of the Trustee and its representatives and agents during the
continuance of such Event of Default; and
(iii)
Principal or Redemption Price and Interest—To the payment of the interest and principal or
Redemption Price then due on the Bonds, as follows:
i.

unless the principal of all of the Bonds shall have become or have been declared due and
payable,
First: Interest—To the payment to the persons entitled thereto of all installments of
interest then due in the order of the maturity of such installments, together with accrued and
unpaid interest on the Bonds theretofore called for redemption, and, if the amount available
shall not be sufficient to pay in full any installment or installments maturing on the same date,
then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts due thereon, to the persons
entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference; and
Second: Principal or Redemption Price—To the payment to the persons entitled
thereto of the unpaid principal or Redemption Price of any Bonds which shall have become
due, whether at maturity or by call for redemption, in the order of their due dates, and, if the
amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full all the Bonds due on any date, then to
the payment thereof ratably, according to the amounts of principal or Redemption Price due
on such date, to the persons entitled thereto, without any discrimination or preference;

ii.

if the principal of all of the Bonds shall have become or have been declared due and payable,
to the payment of the principal and interest then due and unpaid upon the Bonds without
preference or priority of principal over interest or of interest over principal, or of any
installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond over any other
Bond, ratably, according to the amounts due respectively for principal and interest, to the
persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or preference except as to any difference
in the respective rates of interest specified in the Bonds.

If and whenever all overdue installments of interest on all Bonds, together with the reasonable and proper
charges, expenses, and liabilities of the Trustee, and all other sums payable by the District under the General Resolution,
including the principal and Redemption Price of and accrued unpaid interest on all Bonds which shall then be payable by
declaration or otherwise, shall either be paid by or for the account of the District, or provisions satisfactory to the Trustee
shall be made for such payment, and all defaults under the General Resolution or the Bonds shall be made good or secured
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to the satisfaction of the Trustee or provision deemed by the Trustee to be adequate shall be made therefor, the Trustee
shall pay over to the District all monies, securities, and funds then remaining unexpended in the hands of the
Trustee (except monies, securities, and funds deposited or pledged, or required by the terms of the General Resolution to
be deposited or pledged, with the Trustee), and thereupon the District and the Trustee shall be restored, respectively, to
their former positions and rights under the General Resolution. No such payment over to the District by the Trustee nor
such restoration of the District and the Trustee to their former positions and rights shall extend to or affect any subsequent
default under the General Resolution or impair any right consequent thereon.
Notwithstanding anything contained in the General Resolution to the contrary, proceeds of Credit Enhancement
shall be used solely to pay the principal of and interest and any premium (to the extent such premium is secured by such
Credit Enhancement) on, or purchase price of, any Bonds secured by such Credit Enhancement. Notwithstanding anything
contained in the General Resolution to the contrary, proceeds of Credit Enhancement, proceeds of a remarketing of any
Bonds and any monies held for a redemption once a notice of redemption has been sent shall only be used to pay the
purchase price of any Bonds so remarketed. (Section 803)
Proceedings Brought by Trustee. If an Event of Default shall happen and shall not have been remedied, then and
in every such case, the Trustee, by its agents and attorneys, may proceed, and upon written request of the Owners of not
less than 25% in principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding and receipt of security and indemnity satisfactory to it shall
proceed, to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the Owners of the Bonds under the General Resolution forthwith
by a suit or suits in equity or at law, whether for the specific performance of any covenant contained in the General
Resolution, or in aid of the execution of any power granted in the General Resolution, or for an accounting against the
District as if the District were the trustee of an express trust, or in the enforcement of any other legal or equitable right as
the Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem most effectual to enforce any of its rights or to perform any of its duties
under the General Resolution.
All rights of action under the General Resolution may be enforced by the Trustee without the possession of any
of the Bonds or the production thereof at the trial or other proceedings, and any such suit or proceedings instituted by the
Trustee shall be brought in its name.
The Owners of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding may direct the
time, method, and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or
power conferred upon the Trustee, provided that notwithstanding the first paragraph above the Trustee shall have the right
to decline to follow any such direction if the Trustee shall be advised by counsel that the action or proceeding so directed
may not lawfully be taken, or if the Trustee in good faith shall determine that the action or proceeding so directed would
involve the Trustee in personal liability or be unjustly prejudicial to the Owners of the Bonds not parties to such direction.
Upon commencing a suit in equity or upon other commencement of judicial proceedings by the Trustee to
enforce any right under the General Resolution, the Trustee shall be entitled to exercise any and all rights and powers
conferred in the General Resolution and provided to be exercised by the Trustee upon the occurrence of any Event of
Default.
Regardless of the happening of an Event of Default, the Trustee shall have power to, but unless requested in
writing by the Owners of 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or a Credit Enhancer and furnished with
security and indemnity satisfactory to it, shall be under no obligation to, institute and maintain such suits and proceedings
as it may be advised shall be necessary or expedient to prevent any impairment of the security under the General
Resolution by any acts which may be unlawful or in violation of the General Resolution, and such suits and proceedings as
the Trustee may be advised shall be necessary or expedient to preserve or protect its interests and the interests of the
Owners of the Bonds.
Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee shall have right pursuant to an appropriate proceeding to
the appointment of a receiver of the System.
Anything in the General Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, (a) a Credit Enhancer, so long as the Credit
Enhancer is not in default in its obligations to provide Credit Enhancement, or (b) with the prior written consent of a
Credit Enhancer, so long as the Credit Enhancer is not in default in its obligations to provide Credit Enhancement, the
Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds in default then Outstanding, shall have the right, at any time
during the continuance of an Event of Default of such Bonds, by an instrument or instruments in writing executed and
delivered to the Trustee, to direct the time, method, and place of conducting all proceedings to be taken in connection with
the enforcement of the terms and conditions of the General Resolution, or for the appointment of a receiver or any other
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proceedings thereunder; provided, however, that such direction shall be accompanied by security and indemnity
satisfactory to the Trustee and subject to the provisions of paragraph 3 above, and shall not be otherwise than in
accordance with the provisions of law and of the General Resolution. (Section 804)
Restrictions on Actions by Owners of the Bonds. No Owner of any Bond shall have any right to institute any
suit, action, or proceeding at law or in equity for the enforcement of any provision of the General Resolution or the
execution of any trust under the General Resolution or for any remedy under the General Resolution, unless such Owner
shall have previously given to the Trustee written notice of the happening of an Event of Default, as provided in the
General Resolution, and the Owners of at least 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have filed a
written request with the Trustee, and shall have offered the Trustee reasonable opportunity, either to exercise the powers
granted in the General Resolution or by the laws of the State or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name,
and unless such Owners shall have offered to the Trustee to its satisfaction security and indemnity against the costs,
fees (including reasonable attorneys’ fees), expenses, and liabilities to be incurred therein or thereby, and the Trustee shall
have refused to comply with such request for a period of 60 days after receipt by it of such notice, request, and offer of
indemnity, it being understood and intended that no one or more Owners of Bonds shall have any right in any manner
whatever by his or their action to affect, disturb, or prejudice the pledge created by the General Resolution, or to enforce
any right under the General Resolution, except in the manner therein provided; and that all proceedings at law or in equity
to enforce any provision of the General Resolution shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner provided in the
General Resolution and for the equal benefit of all Owners of the Outstanding Bonds.
Nothing in the General Resolution or in the Bonds contained shall affect or impair the obligation of the District,
which is absolute and unconditional, to pay at the respective dates of maturity and places therein expressed the principal
of (and premium, if any) and interest on the Bonds to the respective Owners thereof, or affect or impair the right of action,
which is also absolute and unconditional, of any Owner to enforce such payment of its Bond. (Section 805)
Effect of Waiver and Other Circumstances. No delay or omission of the Trustee or any Owner of a Bond to
exercise any right or power arising upon the happening of an Event of Default shall impair any right or power or shall be
construed to be a waiver of any such Event of Default or be an acquiescence therein; and every power and remedy given
by the General Resolution to the Trustee or to the Owner of the Bonds may be exercised from time to time and as often as
may be deemed expedient by the Trustee or by the Owners of the Bonds. No waiver of an Event of Default may be made
for Bonds which are secured by Credit Enhancement until such Credit Enhancement has been reinstated.
The Owners of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding, or their
attorneys-in-fact duly authorized, may on behalf of the Owners of all of the Bonds waive any past default under the
General Resolution and its consequences, except a default in the payment of interest on or principal of or premium (if any)
on any of the Bonds before any such waiver shall be effective. No such waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other
default or impair any right consequent thereon. (Section 807)
Supplemental Resolutions
For any one or more of the following purposes and at any time or from time to time, a Supplemental Resolution
of the District may be adopted without the consent of the Trustee (except for a Supplemental Resolution for any of the
purposes set forth in (3), (4), and (6) below which shall require the consent of the Trustee) or the Owners of the
Outstanding Bonds, which shall be fully effective in accordance with its terms:
(1)
To authorize Bonds of a series and to authorize Financial Contracts, Credit Obligations, Credit
Enhancements, and Reimbursement Obligations and, in connection therewith, specify and determine the matters
and things referred to in the General Resolution, and also any other matters and things relative to such Bonds,
Financial Contracts, Credit Obligations, Credit Enhancements, or Reimbursement Obligations, or to amend,
modify, or rescind any such authorization, specification, or determination at any time prior to the first
authentication and delivery of such Bonds or the execution of such Financial Contracts, Credit Obligations,
Credit Enhancements, or Reimbursement Obligations;
(2)

To confirm any pledge under the General Resolution of the Revenues or any other monies;

(3)
To cure any ambiguity, supply any omission, or cure or correct any defect or inconsistent
provision in the General Resolution;
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(4)
To insert such provisions clarifying matters or questions arising under the General Resolution
as are necessary or desirable;
(5)
To comply with the provisions of the Code, the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended or the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended or permit the
qualifications of the Bonds for sale under the securities laws of any state of the United States or to comply with
regulations and procedures as are from time to time in effect relating to establishing and maintaining a
book-entry-only system; or
(6)
To modify any other provision of the General Resolution which modification does not
materially adversely affect or diminish the rights or security of the Owners as the Bonds.
Any modification or amendment of the General Resolution which adversely affects or diminishes the right of the
Owners of the Bonds, in any particular, may be made by a Supplemental Resolution, with the written consent (i) of the
Owners of at least a majority in principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding at the time such consent is given and (ii) in
case less than all of the several series of Bonds then Outstanding are affected by the modification or amendment, of the
Owners of at least a majority in principal amount of the Bonds of each series so affected and Outstanding at the time such
consent is given; provided, however, that if such modification or amendment will, by its terms, not take effect so long as
any Bonds of any specified like series and maturity remain Outstanding, the consent of the Owners of such Bonds shall not
be required and such Bonds shall not be deemed to be Outstanding for the purpose of any calculation of Outstanding
Bonds under this paragraph. No such modification or amendment shall permit a change in the terms of redemption or
maturity of the principal of any Outstanding Bond or of any installment of interest thereon or a reduction in the principal
amount or the Redemption Price thereof or in the rate of interest thereon to be without the consent of the Owner of such
Bond, or shall reduce the percentages of Outstanding Bonds the consent of the Owners of which is required to effect any
such modification or amendment, or shall change or modify any of the rights or obligations of any fiduciary without its
prior written assent thereto. For the purpose of this paragraph, a series shall be deemed to be affected by a modification or
amendment of the General Resolution only if the same adversely affects or diminishes the rights of the Owners of Bonds
of such series. The Trustee may in its discretion determine whether or not, in accordance with the foregoing powers of
amendment, Bonds of any particular series or maturity would be affected by any modification or amendment of the
General Resolution and any such determination shall be binding and conclusive on the District and all Owners of
Bonds. (Section 1002)
Consent of the Credit Enhancer When Consent of Owner Required
Each Credit Enhancer which is unconditionally obligated to pay when due the principal of and interest on the
Bonds, so long as such Credit Enhancer which is so obligated is not in default of its obligations to provide such Credit
Enhancement, and not the Owners of the Bonds, shall be deemed to be the Owner of Bonds of any series as to which it is
such Credit Enhancer at all times for the purpose of giving any approval, request, consent, direction, declaration,
rescission, or amendment which under the Resolution is to be given by the Owners of Bonds of such series at the time
Outstanding. However, no such Credit Enhancer may consent to a modification or amendment which shall permit a change
in the terms of redemption (including sinking fund installments) or maturity of the principal of any Outstanding Bond or of
any installment of interest thereon or a reduction in the principal amount or the Redemption Price thereof or in the rate of
interest thereon or cause the interest on such Bond to be no longer excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes without the consent of the Owner of such Bond, or shall reduce the percentages of Bonds the consent of the
Owners of which is required to effect any such modification or amendment, or shall change or modify any of the rights or
obligations of any fiduciary without its written assent thereto. (Section 1007)
Defeasance of the Bonds
Defeasance. If the District shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall otherwise be paid, to the Owners of all
Bonds the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due or to become due thereon, at the times and in the
manner stipulated in the Bonds, and in the General Resolution, then the pledge of the Pledged Property and other monies
and securities pledged under the General Resolution and all covenants, agreements, and other obligations of the District to
the Owners of the Bonds, shall thereupon cease, terminate, and become void and be discharged and satisfied. In such
event, the Trustee shall cause an accounting for such period or periods as shall be requested by the District to be prepared
and filed with the District and, upon the request of the District, shall execute and deliver to the District all such
instruments as may be desirable to evidence such discharge and satisfaction, and the Fiduciaries shall pay over or deliver
to the District the Pledged Property, including all monies or securities held by them pursuant to the General Resolution
which are not required for the payment of principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, on Bonds not theretofore
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surrendered for such payment or redemption. If the District shall pay or cause to be paid, or there shall otherwise be paid,
to the Owners of the Outstanding Bonds of a particular series, or of a particular maturity or particular Bonds within a
maturity within a series, the principal, or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due or to become due thereon, at the
times and in the manner stipulated therein, and in the General Resolution, such Bonds shall cease to be entitled to any lien,
benefit, or security under the General Resolution, and all covenants, agreements, and obligations of the District to the
Owners of such Bonds shall thereupon cease, terminate, and become void and be discharged and satisfied.
Bonds or interest installments for the payment or redemption of which monies shall have been set aside and shall
be held in trust by the paying agents (through deposit by the District of funds for such payment or redemption or
otherwise) at the maturity or redemption date thereof shall be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the
effect expressed in the immediately preceding paragraph. Any Outstanding Bonds shall prior to the maturity or redemption
date thereof be deemed to have been paid within the meaning and with the effect expressed in the immediately preceding
paragraph if (a) in case any of said Bonds are to be redeemed on any date prior to their maturity, the District shall have
given to the Trustee instructions accepted in writing by the Trustee to mail as provided in the General Resolution notice of
redemption of such Bonds (other than Bonds which have been purchased by the Trustee at the direction of the District or
purchased or otherwise acquired by the District and delivered to the Trustee as hereinafter provided prior to the mailing of
such notice of redemption) on said date, (b) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee either monies in an amount
which shall be sufficient, or Defeasance Securities the principal of and the interest on which when due will provide monies
which, together with the monies, if any, deposited with the Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient, to pay when due
the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due and to become due on said Bonds on or prior to the
redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and (c) in the event said Bonds are not by their terms subject
to redemption within the next succeeding 60 days, the District shall have given the Trustee in form satisfactory to it
instructions to mail a notice to the Owners of such Bonds that the deposit required by (b) above has been made with the
Trustee and that said Bonds are deemed to have been paid and stating such maturity or redemption date upon which
monies are expected, to be available for the payment of the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, on said
Bonds (other than Bonds which have been purchased by the Trustee at the direction of the District or purchased or
otherwise acquired by the District and delivered to the Trustee as hereinafter provided prior to the mailing of the notice of
redemption referred to in clause (a) hereof). Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the District may reserve the right
to redeem Bonds prior to maturity or earlier than their stated redemption date, if such reservation shall be stated in the
notice referred to in (c) above. Any notice of redemption mailed pursuant to the preceding sentence with respect to Bonds
which constitute less than all of the Outstanding Bonds of any maturity within a series shall specify the letter and number
or other distinguishing mark of each such Bond.
The Trustee shall, if so directed in writing by the District (i) prior to the maturity date of Bonds deemed to have
been paid which are not to be redeemed prior to their maturity date or (ii) prior to the mailing of the notice of redemption
referred to in clause (a) above with respect to any Bonds deemed to have been paid which are to be redeemed on any date
prior to their maturity, apply monies deposited with the Trustee with respect to such Bonds and redeem or sell Defeasance
Securities so deposited with the Trustee and apply the proceeds thereof to the purchase of such Bonds and the Trustee
shall immediately thereafter cancel all such Bonds so purchased; provided, however, that the monies and Defeasance
Securities remaining on deposit with the Trustee after the purchase and cancellation of such Bonds shall be sufficient to
pay when due the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due or to become due on all Bonds, with
respect to which such monies and Defeasance Securities are being held by the Trustee on or prior to the redemption date or
maturity date thereof, as the case may be. If, at any time (i) prior to the maturity date of Bonds deemed to have been paid
which are not to be redeemed prior to their maturity date or (ii) prior to the mailing of the notice of redemption referred to
in clause (a) with respect to any Bonds deemed to have been paid which are to be redeemed on any date prior to their
maturity, the District shall purchase or otherwise acquire any such Bonds and deliver such Bonds to the Trustee prior to
their maturity date or redemption date, as the case may be, the Trustee shall immediately cancel all such Bonds so
delivered; such delivery of Bonds to the Trustee shall be accompanied by written directions from the District to the
Trustee as to the manner in which such Bonds are to be applied against the obligation of the Trustee to pay or redeem
Bonds deemed paid in accordance with this provision. If the District has reserved the right to redeem Bonds deemed to
have been paid prior to their maturity or stated redemption date as provided above, the Trustee shall, if so directed in
writing by the District prior to the maturity date or stated redemption date and upon receipt of an opinion of counsel to the
effect that such actions are authorized by the Resolution and applicable laws, (i) redeem such Bonds prior to their maturity
or stated redemption date, as applicable, if the District shall have given to the Trustee instructions accepted in writing by
the Trustee to mail, as provided in the General Resolution, a notice of redemption of such Bonds or a revised notice of
redemption, as applicable and (ii) apply monies deposited with the Trustee with respect to such Bonds and redeem or sell
Defeasance Securities so deposited with the Trustee and apply the proceeds thereof to the redemption of such Bonds prior
to the maturity date thereof or stated redemption date, as applicable, provided, however, that the monies and Defeasance
Securities remaining on deposit with the Trustee after the redemption of such Bonds shall be sufficient to pay when due
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the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due or to become due on all Bonds with respect to which such
monies and Defeasance Securities are being held by the Trustee on or prior to the maturity date or redemption date thereof.
The directions given by the District to the Trustee referred to in the preceding paragraph shall also specify the
portion, if any, of such Bonds so purchased or delivered and cancelled to be applied against the obligation of the Trustee to
pay Bonds deemed paid upon their maturity date or dates and the portion, if any, of such Bonds so purchased or delivered
and cancelled to be applied against the obligation of the Trustee to redeem Bonds deemed paid on any date or dates prior
to their maturity.
In the event that on any date as a result of any purchases, acquisitions, and cancellations of Bonds, the total
amount of monies and Defeasance Securities remaining on deposit with the Trustee is in excess of the total amount which
would have been required to be deposited with the Trustee on such date with respect to the remaining Bonds, the Trustee
shall, if requested in writing by the District, pay the amount of such excess to the District free and clear of any trust, lien,
pledge, or assignment securing said Bonds or otherwise existing under the General Resolution; provided, however, before
any such excess is transferred to the District, the District shall have received a report of an independent nationally
recognized certified public accountant or a financial advisor or financial consultant of recognized standing in the field of
municipal bonds to the effect that the amount of monies and the principal of and interest when due on the Defeasance
Securities remaining on deposit with the Trustee after such is transferred to the District shall be sufficient to pay when due
the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest due and to become due on said Bonds on or prior to the
redemption or maturity date thereof, as the case may be.
Except as otherwise provided in the General Resolution, neither Defeasance Securities nor monies deposited with
the Trustee nor principal or interest payments on any such Defeasance Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any
purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for, the payment of the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and
interest on said Bonds; provided that any cash received from such principal or interest payments on such Defeasance
Securities deposited with the Trustee, (A) to the extent such cash will not be required at any time for such purpose, shall
be paid over to the District as received by the Trustee, free and clear of any trust, lien, or pledge securing said Bonds or
otherwise existing under the General Resolution, and (B) to the extent such cash will be required for such purpose at a
later date, shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in Defeasance Securities maturing at times and in amounts
sufficient to pay when due the principal or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest to become due on said Bonds on
or prior to such redemption date or maturity date thereof, as the case may be, and interest earned from such reinvestments
shall be paid over to the District, as received by the Trustee, free and clear of any trust, lien, pledge, or assignment
securing said Bonds or otherwise existing under the General Resolution. (Section 1101)
Defeasance of Variable Rate Bonds. For purposes of determining whether Variable Interest Rate Bonds shall be
deemed to have been paid prior to the maturity or redemption date thereof, as the case may be, by the deposit of monies, or
Investment Securities and monies, if any, in accordance with the second sentence of the second paragraph under the
subheading “Defeasance” above, the interest to come due on such Variable Interest Rate Bonds on or prior to the maturity
date or redemption date thereof, as the case may be, shall be calculated at the Maximum Interest Rate permitted by the
terms thereof; provided, however, that if on any date, as a result of such Variable Interest Rate Bonds having borne interest
at less than such Maximum Interest Rate for any period, the total amount of monies and Investment Securities on deposit
with the Trustee for the payment of interest on such Variable Interest Rate Bonds is in excess of the total amount which
would have been required to be deposited with the Trustee on such date with respect to such Variable Interest Rate Bonds
in order to satisfy the second sentence of the second paragraph under the subheading “Defeasance” above, the Trustee
shall, if requested in writing by the District, pay the amount of such excess to the District free and clear of any trust, lien,
pledge, or assignment securing the Bonds or existing under the General Resolution. (Section 1102)
Defeasance of Option Bonds. Option Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid in accordance with the second
sentence of the second paragraph under the subheading “Defeasance” above only if, in addition to satisfying the
requirements of clauses (a) and (c) of such sentence, there shall have been deposited with the Trustee monies in an amount
which shall be sufficient to pay when due the maximum amount of principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such
Bonds which could become payable to the Owners of such Bonds upon the exercise of any options provided to the Owners
of such Bonds; provided, however, that if, at the time a deposit is made with the Trustee, the options originally exercisable
by the Owner of an Option Bond are no longer exercisable, such Bond shall not be considered an Option Bond for
purposes of this paragraph. If any portion of the monies deposited with the Trustee for the payment of the principal of and
premium, if any, and interest on Option Bonds is not required for such purpose the Trustee shall, if requested by the
District, pay the amount of such excess to the District free and clear of any trust, lien, pledge, or assignment securing said
Bonds or otherwise existing under the General Resolution. (Section 1103)
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APPENDIX C
PROPOSED FORM OF LEGAL OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL
[Date of Closing ]
Board of Directors
NEBRASKA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT
Columbus, Nebraska
Directors:
We have examined a record of proceedings relating to the issuance of $20,810,000 aggregate principal amount of
General Revenue Bonds, 2017 Series A (the “2017 Series A Bonds”), and $65,180,000 aggregate principal amount of
General Revenue Bonds, 2017 Series B (the “2017 Series B Bonds” and, together with the 2017 Series A Bonds, the
“2017 Series A/B Bonds”) of Nebraska Public Power District (the “District”), a body politic and corporate, constituting a
public corporation and political subdivision of the State of Nebraska.
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are issued under and pursuant to Chapter 70, Article 6, of the Revised Statutes of the
State of Nebraska, as amended (the “Act”), and under and pursuant to a resolution of the District adopted on June 4, 1998
entitled “General Revenue Bond Resolution,” and a resolution of the District supplemental thereto authorizing the
2017 Series A/B Bonds (said General Revenue Bond Resolution as heretofore supplemented and as so supplemented being
herein called the “Resolution”).
The 2017 Series A Bonds will mature on January 1, in the years and in the principal amounts, and bear interest at
the respective rates per annum, shown below:

Year

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$ 2,685,000
2,765,000
2,905,000
3,045,000
2,610,000
1,025,000

5.00%
5.00
5.00
5.00
2.00
4.00

Year

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

$ 1,070,000
1,105,000
1,160,000
1,205,000
1,235,000

4.00%
5.00
3.00
3.00
5.00

The 2017 Series B Bonds will mature on January 1, in the years and in the principal amounts, and bear interest at
the respective rates per annum, shown below:

Year

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$ 6,010,000
5,930,000
6,225,000
6,545,000
6,865,000
4,945,000

5.00%
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00

Year

Principal
Amount

Interest
Rate

2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

$ 5,180,000
5,450,000
5,725,000
6,000,000
6,305,000

5.00%
5.00
5.00
5.00
5.00

The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are dated, and shall bear interest from their date of delivery, except as otherwise
provided in the Resolution. Interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds is payable on January 1 and July 1 in each year,
commencing July 1, 2017. The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are subject to redemption as provided in the Resolution. The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are
lettered and numbered as provided in the Resolution.
The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are being issued for the purpose of (i) refunding certain of the District’s outstanding
General Revenue Bonds, 2007 Series B (the “Refunded Bonds”), and (ii) financing the costs of issuance related to the
issuance of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds.
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The District reserves the right to issue Additional Bonds (as defined in the Resolution) ranking equally as to
security and payment with the 2017 Series A/B Bonds on the terms and conditions and for the purposes stated in the
Resolution.
We are of the opinion that:
1.
The District is duly created and validly existing under the provisions of the Act and has good right and
lawful authority to operate, maintain, and improve the System and to fix and establish fees and other charges in respect of
such System and collect revenues therefrom, as provided in the Resolution, and to perform all its obligations under the
Resolution in those respects.
2.
The District has the right and power under the Act to adopt the Resolution, and the Resolution has been
duly and lawfully adopted by the District, is in full force and effect, and is valid and binding upon the District and
enforceable in accordance with its terms and no other authorization for the Resolution is required. The Resolution creates
the valid pledge which it purports to create of the Pledged Property (as defined in the Resolution), subject only to the
application thereof to the purposes and on the conditions permitted by the Resolution. The several trusts created by the
Resolution are valid trusts, and all monies, securities, and funds constituting trust property thereof, as and when received
in accordance with the Resolution, will be validly subjected to the pledge and lien created by the Resolution.
3.
The District is duly authorized and entitled to issue the 2017 Series A/B Bonds and the 2017 Series A/B
Bonds have been duly and validly authorized and issued by the District in accordance with the Constitution and statutes of
the State of Nebraska, including the Act, and in accordance with the Resolution, and constitute the valid, binding, and
direct obligations of the District as provided in the Resolution, enforceable in accordance with their terms and the terms of
the Resolution and entitled to the benefits of the Act and the Resolution. The 2017 Series A/B Bonds are special
obligations of the District payable from and secured by the funds pledged therefor under the Resolution.
4.
Provisions having been made for the payment and redemption of the Refunded Bonds and the payment
of the interest thereon in accordance with the terms of the Resolution, the Refunded Bonds are no longer entitled to any
lien, benefit or security under the Resolution and all covenants, agreements and obligations of the District to the holders of
the Refunded Bonds have been discharged and satisfied.
5.
Under existing statutes, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds
is excluded, pursuant to Section 103(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”), from gross income for federal
and State of Nebraska income tax purposes and is not a specific item of tax preference for purposes of the Code’s
alternative minimum tax provisions. We call to your attention that interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds owned by a
corporation (other than an “S” corporation or a qualified mutual fund, real estate mortgage investment conduit, real estate
investment trust, or a financial asset securitization investment trust) will be included in such corporation’s adjusted current
earnings for purposes of calculating the alternative minimum taxable income of such corporation. A corporation’s
alternative minimum taxable income is the basis on which the alternative minimum tax imposed by Section 55 of the Code
is computed.
In rendering the opinions set forth in paragraph 5 above, we have relied upon representations and covenants of
the District contained in the Resolution and in the Tax Certificate of even date herewith. In addition, we have assumed that
all such representations are true and correct and that the District will comply with such covenants. We express no opinion
with respect to the exclusion of the interest on the 2017 Series A/B Bonds from gross income under Section 103(a) of the
Code or Nebraska laws, in the event that any of such representations are untrue or the District should fail to comply with
such covenants, unless such failure to comply is based on our advice or opinion. Except as stated in paragraph 5 above, we
express no opinion as to any other federal or state tax consequences of the ownership, receipt of interest on, or disposition
of the 2017 Series A/B Bonds.
Our opinions are based on existing law, which is subject to change. Such opinions are further based on our
knowledge of facts as of the date hereof. We assume no duty to update or supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or
circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may hereafter occur or
become effective. Moreover, our opinions are not a guarantee of result and are not binding on the Internal Revenue
Service; rather, such opinions represent our legal judgment based upon our review of existing law that we deem relevant to
such opinions and in reliance upon the representations and covenants referenced above.
The opinions contained in paragraphs 2 and 3 above are qualified to the extent that the enforceability of the
2017 Series A/B Bonds and the Resolution, respectively, may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, debt
adjustment, moratorium, reorganization, or other similar laws or equitable principles affecting creditors’ rights generally.
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We have examined an executed 2017 Series A Bond, and an executed 2017 Series B Bond and in our opinion the
form of said Bonds and their execution is regular and proper.
Very truly yours,
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APPENDIX D
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT
This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated as of April 19, 2017, is executed and
delivered by the Nebraska Public Power District (the “District”) in connection with the execution and delivery of the
General Revenue Bonds, 2017 Series A, and the General Revenue Bonds, 2017 Series B. The Bonds are being executed
and delivered pursuant to the terms of the General Revenue Bond Resolution, adopted on June 4, 1998, as supplemented
by supplemental resolution of the District authorizing the Bonds (said Resolution, as supplemented, the “Resolution”). The
District hereby covenants and agrees as follows:
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the purchase of the Bonds from the District by the Underwriters and
the contemplated sale of the Bonds to, and transfer of Bonds between, owners and beneficial owners from time to time, the
District hereby sets forth, pursuant to Section 211 of the supplemental resolution authorizing the Bonds, certain terms of
its continuing disclosure agreement made for purposes of the Rule and formed, collectively, by said Section 211 and this
Agreement for the benefit of the owners and Beneficial Owners from time to time of the Bonds, as follows:
Section I. Purpose of Agreement. This Agreement is being executed and delivered by the District for the
benefit of the Owners and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order to assist the Underwriters in complying with the
Rule.
Section II. Definitions. In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply to any capitalized
term used in this Agreement unless otherwise defined in this Section, the following capitalized terms have the following
meanings:
“Annual Report” means any Annual Report of the District provided by the District pursuant to, and as described
in, Sections III and IV of this Agreement.
“Beneficial Owner” means any person who (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote or consent with
respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds through nominees, depositories, or
other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for federal income tax purposes.
“Commission” means the Securities and Exchange Commission.
“Listed Events” means any of the events listed in Section V(A) of this Agreement.
“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and its successors.
“Official Statement” means the Official Statement delivered in connection with the Bonds.
“Rule” means paragraph (b) (5) of Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Commission under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.
“Underwriters” means the original purchasers of the Bonds required to comply with the Rule in connection with
the offering of the Bonds.
Section III. Provision of Annual Reports.
A.
The District shall not later than sixty (60) days after the District normally receives its audited financial
statements from its auditors in each year but in no event later than June 30, commencing with the report for the District’s
Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2017, provide to the MSRB copies of an Annual Report of the District which is
consistent with the requirements of Section IV of this Agreement. Each Annual Report may be submitted as a single
document or as separate documents comprising a package, and may include by reference other information as provided in
Section IV of this Agreement; provided that the audited financial statements of the District may be submitted separately
from the balance of such Annual Report and later than the date required above for the filing of such Annual Report if they
are not available by that date. If the District’s Fiscal Year changes, the District shall give notice of such change in the same
manner as for a Listed Event under subsection V(C).
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Section IV. Content of Annual Reports. The Annual Reports of the District shall contain or include by
reference the following:
A.
The audited financial statements of the System for the Fiscal Year most recently ended, prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to governmental entities from time to
time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. If the District’s audited financial statements are not available by
the time the Annual Reports are required to be filed pursuant to subsection III(A) of this Agreement, the Annual Reports
shall contain unaudited financial statements in a format similar to the financial statements contained in the final Official
Statement relating to the Bonds, and the audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual
Reports when they become available.
B.
To the extent not included in the financial statements, the following types of information will be
provided in one or more reports:
(1)
Update the tables provided in the Official Statement under the heading “THE
CUSTOMERS: Classifications; District’s Wholesale Customers—2016 Wholesale
Power Contracts—CFC Data; Customers, Energy Sales, and Revenues;” and under the
heading “THE SYSTEM: Capacity Resources; Energy Supply; and District Owned
Generation Facilities.”
(2)
Update the audited financial information under the table provided in the
Official Statement entitled “Summary Statements of Revenues and Expenses Per
Financial Statements and Reconciliation to Net Revenues Under the General Resolution
for the Three Years Ended 2016, 2015, and 2014,” under the heading “FINANCIAL
INFORMATION: Revenues and Expenses Under the General Resolution.”
Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, including official
statements or other disclosure documents of debt issues of the District or related public entities, which have been
submitted to the Commission. If the document included by reference is a final official statement, it must be available from
the MSRB. The District shall clearly identify each such other document so included by reference.
The contents, presentation, and format of the Annual Reports may be modified from time to time as determined
in the judgment of the District to conform to changes in accounting or disclosure principles or practices and legal
requirements followed by or applicable to the District or to reflect changes in the business, structure, operations, or legal
form of the District or any mergers, consolidations, acquisitions, or dispositions made by or affecting the District;
provided that any such modifications shall comply with the requirements of the Rule.
C.
this Section IV.

To the MSRB, in a timely manner, notice of a failure to provide any Annual Information required by

Section V. Reporting of Significant Events.
A.
Pursuant to the provisions of this Section V, the District shall give, or cause to be given, to the MSRB
in a timely manner (not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event) notice of the occurrence of any of
the following events with respect to the Bonds:
(1)

Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(2)

Non-payment related defaults, if material;

(3)

Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

(4)

Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

(5)

Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

(6)

Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final
determinations of taxability, Notice of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701—TEB) or other
material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material
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events affecting the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of
the Bonds;
(7)

Modifications to rights of the Bondholders, if material;

(8)
Optional contingent or unscheduled calls of any Bonds other than scheduled sinking fund
redemptions for which notice is given pursuant to Exchange Act Release 34-23856, if material, and
tender offers;
(9)

Defeasances;

(10)

Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;

(11)

Rating changes;

(12)
Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the District (a “Bankruptcy Event”).
A Bankruptcy Event is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a
receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the District in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code
or in any other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has
assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the District or if such jurisdiction
has been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession but
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order
confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental authority
having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the District;
(13)
The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the District or the sale
of all or substantially all of the assets of the District, other than in the ordinary court of business, the
entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and
(14)
Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if
material.
Section VI. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The District’s obligations under this Agreement shall
terminate upon the legal defeasance, prepayment, or payment in full of all of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to
the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event
under subsection V(C).
Section VII. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the District may
amend this Agreement, and any provision of this Agreement may be waived, provided that the following conditions are
satisfied:
A.
If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of subsection III(A), Section IV, or
subsection V(A), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal
requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature, or status of an obligated person with respect to the Bonds,
or the type of business conducted;
B.
The undertakings, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of counsel
expert in federal securities laws, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the original issuance of the
Bonds, after taking into account any subsequent amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in
circumstances; and
C.
The amendment or waiver either (i) is approved by the Owners of the Bonds in the same manner as
provided in the Resolution for amendments to the Resolution with the consent of Owners of the Bonds, or (ii) does not, in
the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, materially impair the interests of the Owners or Beneficial Owners of
the Bonds.
In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Agreement, the District shall describe such amendment in
its next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver
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and its impact on the type (or, in the case of a change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial
information or operating data being presented by the District. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting
principles to be followed in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as
for a Listed Event under subsection V(C), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made shall
present a comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements as
prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former accounting principles.
Section VIII. Additional Information. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to prevent the District from
disseminating any other information, including the information then contained in the District’s official statements or other
disclosure documents relating to debt issuances, using the means of dissemination set forth in this Agreement or any other
means of communication, or including any other information in any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed
Event, in addition to that which is required by this Agreement. If the District chooses to include any information in any
Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this
Agreement, the District shall have no obligation under this Agreement to update such information or include it in any
future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. Any information provided to the MSRB shall be provided
by an electronic format prescribed by the MSRB and shall be accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the
MSRB.
Section IX. Default. This Agreement shall be solely for the benefit of the Owners and Beneficial Owners from
time to time of the Bonds. The exclusive remedy for any breach of this Agreement by the District shall be limited, to the
extent permitted by law, to a right of Owners and Beneficial Owners to institute and maintain, or to cause to be instituted
and maintained, such proceedings as may be authorized at law or in equity to obtain the specific performance by the
District of its obligations under this Agreement. Any individual Owner or Beneficial Owner may institute and maintain, or
cause to be instituted and maintained, such proceedings to require the District to provide or cause to be provided a
pertinent filing if such a filing is due and has not been made. Any such proceedings to require the District to perform any
other obligation under this Agreement (including any proceedings that contest the sufficiency of any pertinent filing) shall
be instituted and maintained only by a trustee appointed by the Owners or Beneficial Owners of not less than 25% in
principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding or by Owners or Beneficial Owners of not less than 10% in principal
amount of the Bonds then outstanding. A default under this Agreement shall not be deemed an Event of Default under the
Resolution with respect to the Bonds, and the sole remedy under this Agreement in the event of any failure of the District
to comply with this Agreement shall be an action to compel performance, and no person or entity shall be entitled to
recover monetary damages under this Agreement.
Section X. Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit of the District, the Underwriter, the
Owners, and Beneficial Owners from time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity.
Section XI. Governing Law. This Agreement is to be delivered and performed in, and shall be construed and
enforced in accordance with, and the rights of the parties shall be governed by, the laws of the State of Nebraska,
notwithstanding its law governing conflicts of law and choice of law; which State shall also be the venue of any legal
action on, arising out of, or related to this Agreement.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District has caused this Agreement to be duly signed and delivered to the
Underwriter, as part of the Bond proceedings and in connection with the original delivery of the Bonds to the
Underwriters, on its behalf by its official signing below, all as of the date set forth above, and the owners and beneficial
owners from time to time of the Bonds shall be deemed to have accepted the District’s continuing disclosure undertaking,
as contained in Section 211 of the supplemental resolution authorizing the Bonds and further described and specified
herein, made in accordance with the Rule.
NEBRASKA PUBLIC POWER DISTRICT

By:
Authorized Signatory
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